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Mayor Darren Braund
PO Box 57
MAITLAND SA 5573

November 2023

Dear Mayor,

RE: Regional Development Australia Yorke and Mid North 2022/2023
Annual Report

Regional Development Australia Yorke and Mid North (RDAYMN) are pleased to provide you with a copy of our
Annual Report for the 2022/2023 financial year.

Our Annual Report outlines our achievements over the past year including:
* 857 Unique Assistance provided to businesses
* $5M worth of direct funding investment facilitated into the region
* 91 cross-regional or cross-government projects supported
58 stakeholders connected into specific government programs, and 24 organisations supported with
applications for government grants
* 8 submissions and responses to inquiries lodged to help inform policy development in key areas impact the
region, including digital infrastructure, skills training and vocational education, and childcare.

We will continue to collaborate with industry, government and regional stakeholders and look forward to working
with you into 2022/2023.

Thank you for your ongoing support and please contact us with any queries.

Yours sincerely

Bill Vandepeer

85 Ellen St, PORT PIRIE, SA, 5540

Phone: 1300 742 414 | Email: in

Local people creating local opportunities rda.gov.au
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Regional Development Australia Yorke and Mid North would like to acknowledge the Nukunu,
Nharangga, Kaurna and Ngadjuri people whose ancestral land and waters we stand on
today and pay our respects to their Elders, past, present and emerging, and extend that

respect to all Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people.
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Message from Chair

The previous 12 months have been pivotal for our
region, our stakeholders and our organisation.
Investment and economic activity has continued at
near historic levels, with strong inward migration,
strong seasonal conditions in the agricultural sector
and a $12 billion investment pipeline all contributing to
near full-employment, growth in most regional towns
and a sense of optimism for the region. At the same
time, the end of the COVID-19 pandemic (giving way
to the disease becoming endemic) has also given
many of us an opportunity to bed down fundamental
changes in the way we see the world, and the way we
operate.

Many of these changes have been positive for the
Yorke and Mid North. Perhaps most importantly, we
are seeing continued migration to our region from
metropolitan areas providing a crucial opportunity to
bolster our communities, as people have come to
appreciate the lifestyle and opportunities for living well
in our beautiful, vibrant and aspirational communities.

However, certain challenges remained pervasive
throughout the year, and continue to cloud the outlook
for the immediate future. The combination of greater
inward migration, continuing strength in our domestic
visitor economy and construction workforces
mobilizing on a number of major infrastructure projects
means our housing stock remains severely over-
subscribed. Drier seasonal conditions, and broader
softening in economic conditions, have also started to
dampen the forward economic outlook.

This duality of strong opportunities and persistent
challenges represents our core purpose and vision as
an organisation — to leverage our regional advantages
to deliver and grow a resilient, attractive and secure
future for the Yorke and Mid North.

We do this by working in partnership with our regional
stakeholders - our local, State and Commonwealth
funding partners, and the businesses, industry groups,
community organisations and individuals that
comprise the Yorke and Mid North.

Our approach and contribution to these partnerships is
grounded in bringing facts, evidence and analysis to help
inform better decisions and planning for the Yorke and Mid
North — both in terms of the merits of investing, working
and living in the region, and in terms of how to approach
the planning and delivery of projects and solving of
problems to achieve the best possible outcomes.

I am incredibly proud of the achievements of this
organisation over the past 12 months in the progress made
towards this vision. These achievements include, but not
limited to, the following:

« 857 unique organisations supported with different
projects and activities that grew businesses and
strengthened communities;

« Nearly $5 million of investment directly facilitated, as
well as many millions of additional investment
effectively supported in progressing towards future
investment decisions;

* 91 cross-regional or cross-government projects
supported;

« 58 stakeholders connected into specific government
programs, and 24 organisations supported with
applications for government grants, and;

« 8 submissions and responses to inquiries lodged to help
inform policy development in key areas impacting the
region, including digital infrastructure, skills training
and vocational education, and childcare.

In reflecting on the outcomes achieved by the team over
the past year, | want to acknowledge and thank our
previous CEO Kelly-Anne Saffin for her contributions and
leadership of our organisation for the past 12 years. Her
contribution to the progress of the Yorke and Mid North
region, and development of our organisation, has been
monumental; we thank her for her service.

We look forward to continuing this important work
together with our partners to create greater economic
prosperity and improved liveability of our regional
communities into the future. | commend the 2022-23
Annual Report to our stakeholders and invite you to
engage with us on how we can best work together to
achieve even better outcomes in the future.

\

[

I,
|1 oo

Bill Vaadepeer. Chair

Annual Report 2022/23 5
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About Us

Regional Development Australia Yorke and Mid North is a not-for-profit organisation that acts as
a conduit between all levels of government and the Yorke and Mid North community to optimise
the economic future of our region.

Our role is to facilitate the efforts of all levels of government and the Yorke and Mid North
business and residential communities to maximise economic opportunities.

Our long-term vision for the region encapsulates the economic and social goals we believe will
best serve the region.

To fulfil our role we will deliver advocacy, facilitation, and funded services to work closely with
our stakeholders in government, industry, not for profits and community groups working in our
region.

Building alliances with many of the other organisations who are also seeking to improve the
economic and social outcomes for the region, will be a key factor in how effectively and efficiently
we can progress our Vision.

Our Vision

Leverage our regional advantages to deliver and grow a resilient, attractive and secure future.

Our Values

Our values provide the context for how we work together with others. They are the standard
against which we hold ourselves and others accountable. We are committed to building a high
performing, inclusive and sustainable workplace for the future that is based on these values
and are integral to our culture.

* Professionalism - acting with integrity and transparency.

* Respect - showing commitment to the organisation and all stakeholders.
¢ Innovation - continually challenging and improving what we do.

¢ Determination - being tenacious and enthusiastic in achieving our goals.
» Effective Leadership - by being progressive, supporting, and focused.

Annual Report 2022/23 6
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Board and Staff

We thank our Board Members and Staff for their commitment and contribution to

the organisation.

Board Members
Name

Bill Vandepeer
Brenton Vanstone
Paul Thomas AM
Gail Bartel
Malcolm May
Peter Ackland

Dr Helen Macdonld
Philip Heaslip
Tom Rosewarne
Lindsay Crouch
Vivienne Lambert
Lyndsey Jackson
James Black

Farewell to:
Mayor Ben Browne
Dr Ann Alder

Staff

Name

Daniel Willson
Leah Frith

Julie Thomas

Jo Buchanan
Alan Zubrinich
Larissa Mackrill
Amanda Redden
Jordan Martin
Deb Moller

Farewell to:
Kelly-Anne Saffin
Hayley Trott
Miriam Ward
Jodi Shaw

Aaron Oehms
Belinda Siviour

Position

Chair

Deputy Chair
Treasurer
Secretary
Board Member
Board Member
Board Member
Board Member
Board Member
Board Member
Board Member
Board Member
Board Member

Board Member
Board Member

Position

Chief Executive Officer / Director of Regional Development
Corporate Services Manager

Executive Assistant

Economic Development Officer

Workforce & Industry Coordinator

Heavy Industry & Multi-Skills Program Coordinator
Regional Leadership Program Coordinator
Communications and Relationship Analyst

Finance Officer

Chief Executive Officer / Director of Regional Development
Economic Development Officer

Regional Tourism Manager (Clare Valley)

Economic Development Officer

Drought Resilience Project Officer

Administration Officer

Annual Report 2022/23 7 2
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Funding

Funding Partner Project/Contract Funding Amount
Department of Infrastructure, Transport,
Regions SA Funding $247.940
and Regional Development
PIRSA Regions SA Funding $501,725
Local Government Regional Development $354,300
* Port Pirie Regional Council $109,103
* Clare and Gilbert Valley Council $54,399
* Copper Coast Council $36,368
* Yorke Peninsula Council $33.867
* Regional Council of Goyder $33,205
* Northern Areas Council $28,679
* Wakefield Regional Council $19,621
* District Council of Mount Remarkable $17.644
* District Council of Peterborough $9,707
* Barunga West Council £6,943
* District Council of Orroroo Carrieton $4,764
PIRSA Drought Resilience Planning $35,000
PIRSA Regional Leadership Development $133,250
PIRSA Regional Work SA Project $15,000
Department of Education, Skills and
Heavy Industry Multi-Skills $137.828
Employment
South Australian Tourism Commission Clare Valley Tourism / Marketing $95,925
Annual Report 2022/23 8
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KPI Targets

857 unique businesses
assisted
(Target: 500)

8 submissions to governments
about critical regional
development issues
(Target: 6)

91 projects assisted
(Target: 24)
p ¢ . 2‘:'

24 grant applications assisted
(Target: 20)

58 organisations assisted
(Target: 40)

4 investigations or business
cases driven (Target: 4)

. . 75 individuals linked to

business growth & leadership

'C\\D‘ programs (Target: 40)

' $4,823,509 - Total investment in
@ region directly assisted
2 . (Target: $10,000,000)

#smashedit

Annual Report 2022/23 9
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Regional Focus Areas

Our Strategic Plan is built around regional focus areas by establishing priorities and initiatives to
deliver and grow a resilient, attractive, and secure future. The following sections detail some key
highlights under these focus areas in 2022-23.

* Great Infrastructure and Technology

* Economy built on Value Adding and Innovation
People with the Skills to Get the Job Done

* Growing a Diverse Population

People with the Skills to get the Job Done

Regional Development Australia Yorke and Mid North is working with the industry
to grow the labour force through targeted skills and training programs. They are
also skilling local businesses to be employers of choice.

Heavy Industry Multi-Skills Program

The Heavy Industry Multi-Trades program
was an 18 week pre-employment vocational
and employability skills development
program targeting young people wanting to
enter the workforce in fields such as
construction, mining, civil engineering and
metal fabrication. RDAYMN was successful
in an application for funding to deliver the
program under the Department of
Educations, Skills and Employments (DESE)
Local Jobs Program (LJP).

Three accredited skills sets were delivered
by TAFE which included Construction,,
Introduction to Civil Construction, and Basic
Welding Skills. Participants were also
involved in a Drug and Alcohol Education
program, a Job Seeking workshop,
Observational Work Experience with local
employers, and industry mentoring.
Participants undertook a large amount of
soft skill, personal development and work
readiness activities.

11 participants graduated from the first
intake and 13 from the second intake.

Heavy Industry Multi-Skills Graduation

Annual Report 2022/23 10
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Job and Skills Network

The Jobs and Skills Network brings together
the three tiers of Government, employers,
educational, training and employment
providers, the non-government sector and
community organisations to advise,
collaborate and act on regional skills and
employment challenges and opportunities.

Meetings were held quarterly throughout the
Yorke and Mid North and facilitated by
RDAYMN, in conjunction with the regional
Employment Facilitator.

Members that attended included Employment
Service Providers, Group Training
Organisations, Training and Education
Providers, Apprenticeships/Traineeships
Centres, Labour Hire, and Government
funded program representatives.

Each meeting focused on current programs
and workshops to discuss labour market
trends, needs, barriers and issues to
employment throughout the region as well as
networking opportunities. Numbers in
attendance ranged from 20 to 40. There are
over 260 subscribed members of the Jobs and
Skills Network, receiving information via
direct mailout and RDAYMN Jobs and Skills
monthly newsletter.

Regional Leadership Program Graduation '

Regional Leadership Development Program

The Department of Primary Industries and
Regions (PIRSA) provided funding to deliver the
Regional Leadership Development Program
(RLDP Program). Under the program, each
regional RDA received funding to deliver a place-
based program for strengthening leadership in
RDASs' local communities.

The key deliverables for the RLDP program were:

¢ Establishment of a steering committee to
inform the development and implementation
of the place-based program

* Regional gap analysis to identify key areas of
unmet need for leadership in local
communities

* Development of place-based program(s) to
address key areas of unmet need for
leadership

* A minimum of 60 participants to be
supported through the program

¢ Co-contributions of a minimum of 10 per cent
of program cost to be made by program
participants

* Promotion of the place-based program, and
engagement with stakeholders to promote
scholarship and mentoring opportunities.

Facilitators were engaged to present the 6-
module course, with sessions covering the
following topics: Program Induction and
Understanding  Leadership, Foundation of
Governance, Managing Finances and Risk,
Project and Event Management, Media, PR and
Presentation Skills, and Managing Teams and
Future Planning.

Three courses have been run in the Southern
Flinders, Yorke Peninsula and Mid North with a
total of 60 participants benefiting from the
program.

Annual Report 2022/23 11
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Great Infrastructure and Technology

RDAYMN is working to have all business, education and health being able to have
access to technology in region in line with Adelaide CBD. All businesses and new
proponents will have access to freight infrastructure and input enablers to

facilitate industrial growth.

Investment Pipeline

RDAYMN collects and collates information
on a range of project developments across
the Yorke and Mid North region to provide
stakeholders with intelligence on projects
under consideration or construction in the
region.

The information produced through this
investment pipeline (which includes project
location, value, status and employment
impacts) provides valuable intel used to
plan project delivery, explore
complementary investment opportunities
and promote the region's economic
vibrancy.

As of June 2023, the investment pipeline
comprised 66 projects valued at an
estimated $12.17 billion.

Key highlights of the investment pipeline
include:
* Multiple renewable energy projects
valued at $9.3 billion
¢ Mining projects worth $593 million
* Value-adding manufacturing projects
in the food manufacturing sector worth
$1.2 billion
* Transport projects worth
approximately $656 million
* Arts and Recreation upgrades worth
$68 million

Technology Webinars

RDAYMN delivered a series of webinars focused
on bringing new information to regional
stakeholders on the opportunities offered by
adopting new technologies in their business.

Cyber Security Webinar

The first webinar was held in November 2022.
Guest speakers were Nick Sincock from the
Department of Home Affairs Cyber and
Infrastructure Security Centre, and Jasmin lllic,
CEO of Control Z, IT support. As part of
registration for the event, participants were
invited to submit prior questions. The session
gained much positive feedback from the 17
participants and our speakers were pleased to be
involved.

AgriTech Webinar

The second webinar was held in January 2023.
The 22 attendees listened to speakers Lyndsey
Jackson, CEO of PlatFarm), and Michael
Macolino, Managing Director of SVG Ventures
Thrive.

Michael Macolino speaking during the AgriTech Webinar

Annual Report 2022/23 12
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Mobile Blackspots and Connectivity

For over ten years RDAYMN has undertaken
several projects focused on improving the
regions mobile black spots and internet
connectivity. Ten years ago, our community
consultation identified just over 100 mobile
black spots. Those identified locations were
added to the National database and has
since swelled to approximately 245
locations.

Anecdotally there have been several
locations within our region where blackspots
have varied or expanded during the past
two years. To try and capture this data, we
launched a further consultation survey. The
survey also sought information regarding
internet connectivity, as a further follow up
from our 2019 internet connectivity
consultation.

Funded mobile blackspot improvements
within our region have, thus far, been limited
to 12 locations to date: Curramulka, Port
Moorowie, Winninowie, Bute, Robertstown,
Bower township, Brinkworth, Mount Bryan,
Mount Hallett, Rhynie, Riverton, Pichi Richi,
and Yongala. Round 6 has just pre-identified
54 priority locations, with 2 only for the
region, Port Rickaby and Wool Bay in Yorke
Peninsula.

Additionally RDA has supported a program
delivered by PIRSA and Telstra supporting
people seeking to improve their mobile
coverage in pre-identified local government
areas. The Mobile Network Extension
Devices Pilot Program is currently available
for people either living in or operating a
business within the LGAs of Barunga West,
Copper Coast and Yorke Peninsula.

There are over 13,000 identified black spots
listed on the national database, hence accessing
funds through federal funding programs is
extremely competitive, and often relates to
Mobile Network Operators (MNOs) priorities in
terms of the number of customers they can
service and attract.

A further consultation survey has been
conducted and the information collected from
this will be used to:

* Advocate for further improvements for
mobile coverage within region

* Advocate for improved internet connectivity
within region

* Assess against the current 250 blackspot list
for any changes / additions and subsequent
submission to the National database register

* Work collaboratively with (MNOs) on funding
bids through the Mobile Black Spot &
Regional Connectivity funding programs

* Provide information to RDAYMN's Council
partners on funding bids and encourage
potential collaborative use of existing
infrastructure for shared use toward digital
improvements

* To inform the submissions to government
consultations, enquiries and specifically to
inform the submission to the Australian
Competition & Consumer Commission
(ACCC) — Regional Mobile Infrastructure

Inquiry

Annual Report 2022/23 13
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Economy built on value adding and innovation

RDAYMN is looking to extend the lead in the region's growth industries of
renewable energy, tourism and primary production. They are also looking to
develop existing and new entrepreneurs in the region.

Business Advisory Groups

RDAYMN has established three business
advisory groups (Yorke Peninsula, Mid North
and Southern Flinders Ranges) for the
region. The groups have been created to
seek advice from industry leaders so
RDAYMN can respond quickly, look for ways
to jointly re-invent the region, and as an
opportunity for businesses to connect.

Yorke Peninsula Advisory Groups' Inaugural
meeting was held in September 2022 with
representatives across many sectors
including: construction, aquaculture &
fishing, manufacturing, community
transport, tourism, agriculture, and housing
& resort development. The group is keen to
determine what issues it can address
focusing on actions.

The Housing Supply and Demand waorkshop
was held in October 2022. Guest speakers
were from the Master Builders Association
of SA and Leonie Boothby Consulting.

The Mid North Advisory Group is primarily
based around Wakefield Regional Council.
The group met in April 2022 and discussed
housing availability and water supply
requirements

The Southern Flinders Ranges Business
Advisory group incorporates five local
government areas including Port Pirie
Regional Council, the District Council of Mount
Remarkable, the Northern Areas Council, the
District Council of Orroroo Carrieton, and the
District Council of Peterborough. It was
established back in December 2021 with 14
business and industry leaders from the area.

A meeting for the Southern Flinders Ranges
Business Advisory group was held in
September 2022 with seven businesses
represented. This session involved a
presentation from Planning and Land Use
Services (PLUS) of the Department of Trade
and Investment on the Port Pirie Master
Planning project, together with their
consultants from Jensen Plus. It was convened
to provide a wider range of businesses with
exposure to the master planning project.
Participants were taken through the master
planning process and given a brief overview of
current spatial planning, before a workshop
was undertaken canvassing the groups views
on growth ambitions, spatial planning (where
the city can grow) and related topics around
infrastructure priorities and precincts.

Annual Report 2022/23 14
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Clare Valley Marketing

To the end of December 2022, the Clare
Valley Tourism Region had achieved 115 per
cent of the 2025 visitor expenditure target as
outlined in the 2025 Regional Visitor Strategy.

Other highlights for 2022 / 2023 included:

¢ Tourism Experience Development Forum
hosted in Clare and supported by the
Clare & Gilbert Valleys Council and the
Adelaide Business Hub. Attended by over
100 operators from the Clare Valley, Yorke
Peninsula and Southern Flinders Ranges,
with a range of presenters including local
operators.

* Sharing your Story and Creating
Experiences workshops for tourism
operators, held in Auburn and presented
by the Tourism Collective.

* Tourism Roundtable Discussion with Hon.
Minister Zoe Bettison.

* Attendance at Destination Australia
(Tourism Australia).

¢ Attendance of state and national Tourism
Award presentations.

* Increased collaboration with the Clare
Valley Wine & Grape Association on
marketing strategies and events.

* Production of the 2023/2024 Clare Valley
Visitor Guide.

Regional
ievelopmen

Miranda Lang (South Australian Tourism
Commission), Miriam Ward and Sophie Treasure
{Tourism Australia) at the Tourism Experience
Development Forum

Tourism Experience Development Forum

The Tourism Experience Development Forum
was held on July 5, 2022 in the Clare Town Hall.
It was kindly supported by the Clare and Gilbert
Valleys Council and the Adelaide Business Hub.
This event was developed to assist tourism
operators within the Clare Valley Tourism
Region, Yorke Peninsula and Southern Flinders
Ranges to think about what experiences they
could develop that would entice the visitor to
stay a night longer in regions and do more.

82 tourism operators from 55 businesses across
the three regions attended.

The main presenters were from Tourism
Accelerator, South Australian Tourism
Commission (SATC), Tourism Australia and
Experience SA and RAA. Their combined wealth
of knowledge provided so much inspiration
within the room.

In addition, experienced and successful tourism
operators from the Southern Flinders Ranges
provided tips and tricks to collaborate, value
add, tour and more.

To finish off the event, five fearless operators
presented their 'Big Idea’' to our expert panel to
develop tourism experiences within the region.
The ideas were diverse and well thought out. At
the end of the day Naomi Jaeschke (Remedy
Cows) and Mel Kitschke (indigenous medical
and culinary garden) received $500 each to
assist them in bringing their product to fruition.

Annual Report 2022/23 15
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Yorke Peninsula Business Workshop
Series

As part of RDAYMN's commitment to assist
the Yorke Peninsula Council implement their
Economic Development and Tourism
Strategy, we conducted a range of business
workshops.

The first workshop was held in Ardrossan in
April 2022.

The second and third workshops were held
in Minlaton in July 2022 and focused on
social media for businesses. Two workshops
were held, one for beginners and one more
advanced. Vee Consulting delivered these
workshops, which were highly informative
and received extremely well by the 24
businesses attending.

The fourth workshop was held in Minlaton in
May 2023. This was a visual merchandising
workshop delivered by Sarah Davies from
The Merchandiser with 22 businesses
attending and one business winning a
competition for a window display makeover.

RDAYMN are developing the new workshop
calendar from August 2023 to the end of
June 2024. This will now include expanding
the geographical area that many of the
workshops may be held to now include
Barunga West and Copper Coast Council
areas, with the potential for running popular
workshops in more than one location.

Northern Yorke Regional Alliance Forum

RDAYMN is a member of the Northern Yorke
Regional Alliance which hosted its regional forum
in March this year for the first time since 2019.

This regional forum is targeted at local
stakeholders on topics of common interest with
this year’s focus being on land use. Our
contributions involved a presentation on the
Northern and Yorke Regional Drought Resilience
Plan and facilitating a panel session on the role
of land use planning in improving liveability in
regional and rural communities.

Sarah Davies from The Merchandiser delivering the
Visual Merchandising Business Workshop

The Social Media for Business Workshop hosted by Vee
Consulting

Annual Report 2022/23 16
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Regional Drought Resilience

The Northern and Yorke Regional Drought
Resilience Planning Program commenced in
October 2021 and has identified the regions
drought resilience capacity and priorities to
improve resilience for future droughts. The
program was one of the streams under the
Commonwealth's Future Drought Fund,
which will distribute approximately $100
million per annum until 2031 towards
projects and initiatives that improve drought
resilience in regional communities and align
with the priorities identified in regional
drought resilience plans.

The draft NYRDRP (Northern and Yorke
Regional Drought Resilience Plan) was
submitted to the State and Commonwealth
for independent review by the CSIRO.

A final draft has been submitted to the
Department of Agriculture, Forestry and
Fisheries (via the Department of Primary
Industries and Regions) for review and
approval by the (Commonwealth) Minister
responsible for Drought.

TOGETHER WE ARE
DROUGHT RESILIENT.

Economic Development Plans

RDAYMN helps local councils by developing
Economic Development Plans. These plans
will provide strategies and actions aiming
to stimulate economic development and
take advantage of opportunities.

The District Council of Mount Remarkable
(DCMR) asked RDAYMN to help develop an
action plan for them. The draft was agreed
with the DCMR CEO in November 2022 and
was ready to be provided to the council for
approval in January 2023.

RDAYMN is also working with Clare and
Gilbert Valleys Council to update its
economic development plan, having been
first adopted in 2018.

Economic Development Briefings

RDAYMN held quarterly economic briefings to
update stakeholders on the local economy and
topics of interest pertaining to growth
opportunities and challenges.

The first webinar was held in December 2022
and dived deeper into the results of the 2021
Census. The second webinar was in April 2023
and focused on unpacking the Investment
Pipeline for the region. The third webinar was
held in June 2023 and talked about the
2023/2024 State and Federal Budgets
regarding the region.
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Growing a Diverse Population

RDAYMN is trying to attract and retain a diverse working population to underpin
industry needs and to position the liveability and amenity of the region to reflect

the region's strengths.
Industry Outreach

RDAYMN has implemented an industry
engagement program to build engagement
with local businesses to connect with and
promote our brand and services, while
obtaining primary data to inform our
advocacy agenda.

There have been 503 industry outreach
engagements since July 2022.

Between 250-400 job vacancies are being
captured by the Job Board every month.

Housing Access

Kadina Social Housing

Regional Development Australia Yorke and Mid
North, has been supporting Copper Coast
Council in undertaking an expression of interest
process to attract development of social housing
on Council-controlled land. An EOI proposal was
submitted to Council for consideration.

Port Pirie Housing - TLAP Project

A proposal has been made to use Crown Land to
develop 14 dwellings; four sold to market to fund
the remaining 10 for temporary relocation of
families (via the TLAP program) and crisis
accommodation (via a Community Housing
Provider). The proposal is currently with Crown
Lands division within the Department for
Environment and Water (DEW), for
consideration; once confirmed in principle, it will
be advanced through TLAP partnership with ad-
hoc commercial advice from Regional
Development Australia Yorke and Mid North.

Childcare

A review of childcare provision across the
country has deemed that 82 per cent of regional
South Australians are living in a “childcare
desert”. These are areas where three or more
children under four are vying for each childcare
space. The Commonwealth Electorate of Grey
had the highest need, and it is acutest in Yorke
and Mid North.

Wilmington Childcare Working Group have been
formed to investigate options for establishing a
childcare service in Wilmington. The District
Council of Mount Remarkable is supporting the
group in their investigations. Regional
Development Australia Yorke and Mid North, has
fielded a demand survey to inform options, with
the results of the survey presented to Rowan
Ramsey MP by the working group in August, and
Department for Education in September.

Orroroo has formed a Working Group to
investigate options for establishing a childcare
service within Orroroo. A meeting was held on
14 November following strategic planning
facilitated in October. They are currently working
to secure access to facilities for extended RICE
service (via kindergarten and school), as well as
promoting training opportunities to help secure
local workforce.

Crystal Brook has a group working towards
establishing a service based at Crystal Brook
kindergarten. Crystal Brook Childcare has
recently been incorporated as an association
and is progressing accreditation activities (as a
provider) and planning activities (including
detailed costings) to establish a service.
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Communications and Marketing Snapshot

10,911 subscribers for
RDAYMN's e-business
newsletter

264 Instagram followers

208 posts on Facebook

2,837 Facebook followers
(10.8% increase)

66,640 Facebook reach
(90.4% increase)

New website is almost complete
to allow better accessibility
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Audited Financial Statements

Regional Development Australia Yorke and Mid North
ABN 68 705 101 048

Financial Stalements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Prepared by Accru Harris Orchard
Audited by Galpins
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Regional Development Australia Yorke and Mid North ABN 68 705 101 048
Committee’s Report
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Your committee membars submit the inancial accounts of the Reglonal Development Australia Yorke and
Mid North for the financial yoar ended 30 June 2023

Committes Members

The names of commities memders ot the dato of this report are
Viliam Vandepeer (Chair)

Brenton Vanstone (Doputy Chair)

Paud Thoamas AM (Treasurer)

Mayor Bon Broane Rosigned 18172023

The principal actrdties of the association were 1o promobe and support the policies, strategic plans and
priortes of Me Commonwealth, the State Govermment and the Local Government Bodies that faclitate
community economic development oulcomes in the Region. To provide services and undertake projects that
facilitate community economic development outcomes in Ihe Region that are consistent with the policies,
strategic plans and priodtes of the Commonwealth, the State Govemmant and Local Government Bodes,

Significant Changes
No significant change n the nature of fhese activilies occurred during the penod.

Operating Rosult
The profit from ordinary activities amounted to

For the year ended 30 June 2023 s 51776 (2022: ${242.537))

Sigred in accordance with & of the Members of the Commiltiee on

Calpins
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Regional Development Australia Yorke and Mid North ABN 68 705 101 048
Income Statement

For the year ended 30 June 2023
2023 2022
Note $ $

Core grant revenue 2 602,240 579,250
Project revenue 3 1,138,375 1,047,685
Other revenue 4 16,151 21,683
Employee benefits 5 (997.976) (1,077,871)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 6 (77.362) (74,955)
Supplies & services 7 (544,090) (673,533)
Project Expenses 8 (15,223) (5,577)
Board & commillee expenses 9 (42,055) (42,962)
Net (Loss)profit on disposal property, plant & equipment 10 (9.483) 454

Finance Costs 1 (18,801) (16.691)
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year 51,776 (242,537)

Net Surplus/(Deficit) attributable to members of the association 51,776 (242,537)
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Regional Development Australia Yorke and Mid North ABN 68 705 101 048
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2023

2023 2022
Note $ $
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year 51,776 (242 .537)
Other Comprehensive Income
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - -
Total Comprehensive Income 51,776 (242,537)
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Regional Development Australia Yorke and Mid North ABN 68 705 101 048

Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2023
2023 2022
Note $ $
Current Assets
Cash assels 13 701,616 690,174
Financial assets/invesiments 14 40,274 39,867
Receivables 16 206,342 201,722
Total Current Assels 948,232 931,763
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 17 23,375 43,221
Total Non-Current Assoets 23,375 43,221
Total Assets 971,607 974,984
Current Liabilities
Payables 18 488,078 534,630
Provisions 19 65,226 65,452
Total Current Liabilities 553,304 600,082
Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions 19 15,531 23,907
Total Non-Current Liabilities 15,531 23,907
Total Liabilities 568,835 623,989
Net Assets 402,772 350,995
Members' Funds
Retained profits 402,771 350,995
Total Members' Funds 402,771 350,995
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Regional Development Australia Yorke and Mid North ABN 68 705 101 048

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2023
$ S
Retained
Note Earnings Total

Balance at 30 June 2019 942,829 942,829
Comprehensive Income

Surplus/Deficit attnbutable to members (40,601) (40,601)
Adjustment from the adoption of AASB 16 (580) (580)
Adjustment from the adoption of AASB 1058 (296,065) (296,065)
Balance at 30 June 2020 605,583 605,583
Comprehensive Income

Write back revaluation of assets sold - -
Surplus/Deficit attributable to members (12,051) (12,051)
Balance at 30 June 2021 593,532 593,532
Comprehensive Income

Surplus/Deficit attributable to members (242,537) (242,537)
Balance at 30 June 2022 350,995 350,995
Comprehensive Income

Surpius/Deficit attributable to members 51,776 51,776
Balance at 30 June 2023 402,771 402,771

Item 16.6- Attachment 1

Page 34



COUNCIL MEETING ATTACHMENTS

13 DECEMBER 2023

231113792

Regional Development Australia Yorke and Mid North ABN 68 705 101 048

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2023
2023 2022
Note S S
Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Receipts from grantors & other sources 1,791,498 1,748,399
Payments to suppliers and employees (1,714,513) (1,627.871)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 15 76,985 120,528
Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Payment for:
Receipts from sales of property, plant and equipment - 454
Payments for property, plant and equipment (5,000) -
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (5,000) 454
Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Payment of lease liabilities (60,544) (70,441)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (60,544) (70,441)
Net increase (decrease) in cash held 11,441 97,725
Cash at the beginning of the year 690,174 592,449
Cash at the end of the year 13 701,615 690,174

Galpins
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Regional Development Australia Yorke and Mid North ABN 68 705 101 048
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation

Regional Development Australia Yorke and NGd North incorporated (the Association) applios Ausiralian Accountng Standards-
Reduced Disclosure Requirement 3s set out in AASE 1053 Appiication of Tiers of Australlan Accounting Standards and AASS 2010
2 Amondments 10 Austraban Accounting Standards artsing from Reduced Disclosure Requirerments and ofhar appiicable Austratan
Accourtrg Stendads- Reduced Disciosure Requicements.

The francial stalements are gereral purpose Snancial staternents That have Deen prepared In accordance with Accounting
Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASS) and the Asscciations
Incorporation Incorporation Act 1985, The Associalion & & not for profit enlity for financial reporting purposes under Australion
Accounting Standards.

Australion Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASE hes concluded would result in financial statements
contairmg relevant and reliable information about fransactions, events and conditions. Material accounting policles adopted in the
praparation of the financial statements are presented below and have been consistently appled uniess stated otharwise.

The financial statemants, axcept for the cash fow information, have been propared on an accruals basis and are basad on hstorical
costs, modified, where appicable. by the measuremenlt al fair value of selected non-currort assals, fnancial assets and financal
labiities. The amounts presented in the financial statements have been rounded 10 the nearest doar.

Accounting Policies

(2) Income tax
The Association |s exempt from paying income tax due 10 being exmpt as A not for profit entity under Division 50 of the Income Tax
Assossment Act 1087,

() Property, Plant and E quipmant
Each class of property, plant and equigement & camied at cost or fakr value less, whoro appicable, any scoumulated depraciation.

1) Property
Freehoid land is shown at Far Vaiuo and bullkdings are shown at cost value es accumulated depreciation.

) Prant and equipmaent
Plant and oquipmant is measured ot cost value less sccumulated depreciation. The carrying amount of plant and equipment is
reviowed annually to ensure i€ is not in excess of the recoverable amount from those assets. The recoverabie amount is assessed
on the basis of the expected net cash flows that will be recaived from the assets deployment and subsoquent disposal. The
wpoected not cash flows have not been discountad to present values in determining the recoverable amounts.

Subseguent costs are included in the assel's carying amount recognised as & separalo sssel, as appropriate, only when A is
probable that the hiure econamic benefits associatod with the dem wil Blow to the Association and the cost of the item can ba
measured relably. Al other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income staloment durkng the finencial period In which hey
are incured.
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Regional Development Australia Yorke and Mid North ABN 68 705 101 048
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

i) Depreciation

The depreciable amount of all fived assets including buldings and capitalised leased assets, but exciuding freehold land, Is
depreciated on a straight line basis over their usedul lfe 1o Regional Development Australia Yorke and Mid Nerth commencing from
the §me the asset is held ready for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the sharter of either the unexpired period of
he lease or the estrmated useful ¥e of the Improvements.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable asset are:

Class of Asset Depreciation Rate %

Buikdings 4%

Plant and aquemant 10- 25%

Motor vehicies 12.50%

Right-of-use assets Straight line over the pariod of the loase

The assel residual valuss and useful Ives are reviewsd, and adjusted I appropeiate, at each balance sheet date.

An assat’s carrying amount is written down immediately to 2s recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater then ts
estinated recoverable amount.

Gains and josses on disposal are delormined by comparing proceads with the carmying amourt. These gains or l0sses are ncluded
in the Profit & Loss.

Financial Instruments

The Association holds financial instruments in the form of cash and cash equivaients, trade and other receivables and trade and
other payables. Risks related o the association’s financial instruments are outfirved in Nobe 23,

(iv) Impairment of Assets

Al each reporting date, the Association reviews the carrying values of s assels 10 determing whether thore is sy indication that
those assets have been impaired If such an indication axists, the recoverable amount of the assel, baing the higher of the assels
fair valuo loss costs to sef and value In use, is compared 1o the asset's carying valso. Any axcess of the asset’s camying value over
s recoverable amount is axpensed o the income stalement.

(c) Financlal Instruments

The Asscciation holds financial instruments in the form of cash and cash equivallents irade and other recelvables and trade and
other payables. Risks refated 1o the association’s financial instruments are autined in Note 23

(d) Provisions

Provision s made for the Association's fabiity foe employee entiffoments arising from services rendered by employves o the end of
the reporting period. Employee entitiements that are expeciod 10 be seltied within one year have been measured at the amounts
expected 1o be paid when the Eabilty is setifed. Employee entitiements payable later than one year have been measured ol the
present value of the astimated future cash outflows 10 be madle for those entilements. In detarminng the liability, corsidecation is
given to employee wage ncreases and (he probabiity that the employee may not satisfy vesing requirements. Those cash outflows
are discounted using marke! yislds on national government bonds with term 1o maturity thal malch the expected timing of cash
fows.

The Assocation’s obiigations for long-term employse benafits are presented as non-current provisions in the Statement of Financial

Position, except where the Association does not have an unconditional right to defer settiement for at least 12 months after the
reporting penod, in which case the obligations are presented as current provisions.
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Regional Development Australia Yorke and Mid North ABN 68 705 101 048
Notos to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

(e) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents inchudes cath on hand, doposits held at call with banks or financial nsttutions, other short term highly
Squid Inveésiments with ongingl maturilies of three monthy or lees, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within short term
barrowings in Gurrent kabiities on (he balance shoel.

1) Revenue

Non reciprocad grant revenue from councils and state and federal government is recogrised whan the Assocmion obtains conlrol of
the revenue of whon the Association bacomes 10 entitied 1o the revenue.

If conditions are attachad 10 the grant which must be satsfied before & is eligibie 1o e the contrbution, the gretion of the
grant as reverne will be deferred untl those conditions are satisfied.

Intarost revenue s recognised on an acorual basis taking In 1o account the interest rates applicable to the financial assets.

Revenus has been dassified inlo the following Bvee categories -

L. Core Grant Revenue ~ Revenue recelved from the South Australian State Governmaent, the Commonwealth Government and
Local Governments 10 support the principal activities of the Associstion.

Il Projct Revenuo ~ Grants recelved from the South Australian State G ™, the Cor alth G yment and Local
Governments for specific projects implomented within the reglon by the association

0. Other Revenue ~ Reverue recelved from othor sources such as interes! or miscollaneous grants.

Income Is recognised in accordance with the requirements of AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and AASBE 1068
Income of Not-for-Profit Entities, dependent on whether thete is & contract with a customer defined by AASS 185,

To determine whether 10 recognise revenuo, he prooess below is followed:
1. identity the contract with & customer

2. ideniying the perfarmance obligations

3. Determining the transaction price

4. Allccating the Yansaction price 10 e performance cbigations
§. Recogrising revanue when'as performance obigations aro satsfiod

The Association recognises contract labillies for convderation received in respect of unsatiafied performance obigations and
reports these amounts as Contract Liabiiies In Payatios in The statement of fnancial position.

Al roverue (s stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST).

n
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Regional Development Australia Yorke and Mid North ABN 68 705 101 048
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

(9) Expenses
Exporson incured are recogrised on an accrual basis.
Expensas have beon classiied into the following $vo categories —
1 Employee Benolits - Compensation 10 empiopees Including wages, superannuation and leave accruals.
I Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses — Costs of assets wilten off over Bwir uselud Mo
W Supples and Services ~ General rurning costs and on costs weialed 10 $pecific projects.
V. Project Expenses - Al costs ncurred in imglementation of projects funded by Project Revenus.
V. Bowd and Commitioe Expenses - Remuneration 10 board members.
A expensos aro siated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST)

(h) Goods and Service Tax (GST)

Revenues, ;axponses and assels are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where e smount of GST incurred is not
rocoverable from the Australian Taxstion Office. In these cirtumstances, the GST is recognised as pant of the cost of scquisiion of
the assot or as part of an Bom of the expense, Receivables and payablos in the balance sheot ae shown inclusive of GST.

Cash flows are presonted in the cash flow stalement on a gross basis, except for the GST component of investing and financing
activities, which are dsciosed as operating cash flows.

() Accounts Payable and Other Payables

Accounts Payable and other payables represent the llabilties outstanding at the end of the reparting period for goods and services
received by the Association during the reporting that remain unpaid. The balance & recognised as a current llabiity with the
amounts normially pad within 30 days of the recogrition of the llabiity.

{J) Evonts After Balance Date

Adustrments are made 1o amounts recognised in he financial statements, where an evert occurs after 30 June and bDefore the date
he Snancial statements are authorised for ssues, where those events provide nformation about conditions that existed at 30 June.

There were no avents that required adustments.

”
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Regional Development Australia Yorke and Mid North ABN 68 705 101 048
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yoar ended 30 June 2023

(k) Economic Dependency

The Association is dopendent on Grants Revenue received from the Department of Infrastructure, Transport, Regional Develcpment
and Cameunications (Commonwealth Govemment), Departmont of Primary industres and Regions (State Government) and
corributions from local councils 1o lund the ongoing operations of the Association. Totul Grant Revenue recsived from government
agencies in he 30 June 2023 financial year amounted to $1,113,012 (202122 $1,112.900)

Department of Infrastructure, Transport, Reglonal Development & Communications funding for Support Regional Ecomomic
Development expires 3062025, Departmaent of Primary industries and Regions funding expired 30V06/2028,

Local Government (Clave & Gilbert Valley Council, Regional Council of Goyder, District Councll Orroroo Carrieton, District Councll
Peterborough, District Councll Barunga West, Wakefield Regional Councll, Yorke Peninsuta, District Council of Copper Coast.
Dstrict Councll of Mourt Remarikable, Northern Areas Regional Councll) funding for Regional Economic Development s undertaken
on an annudl Subsonplion basls. The Port Pire Regionad Councl has changed 0 & two year contraciusl arrangement expiring
302023

Shoukd the Assocation not secure funding or a reduced Jevel of funding in fulre years, @ may Impact on e abilty of the
ASSOCIAtON 10 CONtNUG OParaiing A% a QOINgG concerm

(m) New Accounting Standards
Amancments 10 AASE 101 and AASS 108 Defirtion of Material

The amendments provide a new dofirilion of material Thal states, “nfaemation is material f omilling, misstating or cbsouring I could
reascnatly be expected 0 influance decinions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements makes on the bass of
hose financial statements, which provide financial information about a spacific reporting entity * The amendments clanfy that
materiadity will depend on the naturs o magnitude of INformation. ethee individualy or In combination with other Indormation, I the
cordext of the firancial statements. A misstatement of informalion is mataral £ it could reascnatily be axpectad 10 iInSuence
decisions made by the primary users. Thess amendments had no impect on the financial statemants of. nor & there expected 10 be
any futura iImpact 1o the Association.

"
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Regional Development Australia Yorke and Mid North ABN 68 705 101 048

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2023

Total Core Grant Revenue

*DITRDCA ~ Depariment of Infrastructure, Reglonal Development, Communications and he Arls

2023 2022

$ $
247,940 233,580
247,940 233,590
54,399 53,072
33,206 32,395
4,784 4848
9,707 9.470
6,043 6,774
19,621 19,143
33,867 13,041
6,368 35,481
17,644 17214
109,103 106,442
28,679 27,980
354,300 345,660
602,240 579,250

Galpins
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Regional Development Australia Yorke and Mid North ABN 68 705 101 048
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2023
2023 2022
Note 3: Project Ravenue ¢ N
Clare Valey Marketng 71,35 39 545
Clare Valley Touriam 62725 81,528
Heavy Industry Mudti- Skills 158 968 .
Regonal Leadership Development Program 120437 .
0o . 331639
Petecborough Vokuntesr Grant . 3638
RDA Fund Cultivate Investment 501,725 5§24 650
Regional Worklorce Coord . 10.000
YP Awards . (7%0)
Peterborough Enterprses . 10.000
Youth Care Connect 13625 65,933
Regional Work SA Progect a7 1025
Drought Resllence Plarning 153 087 196 914
Total Project Revenue 1198,375 1047668

Project reverus raiates 10 speciic fundng received by he Association from he State and Commonwealth
Governments that is requived (0 De spert on specific progects underiaken within The ragion

Calpins
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Regional Development Australia Yorke and Mid North ABN 68 705 101 048
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2023
2023 2022

Note 4: Other Revenue $ $

Indecest rocetved 740 8

Rent DTEDDFEEST 5123 6423

Industry Training Hub Rent 9,545 $.000

Oer Income 343 6.252

Total Othes Revenue 16,151 21683
Note 5: Employee Banefits

Salares & Wages 917,554 990718

Employment On-costs 80422 82,156

Total Employee Benefits gijn o 1
Note 6: Depreciation

Depraciation - Buldngs 1.471 1971

Depreciation - Plant 88 831

Degpraciation - Right.of-Use Assets 75,310 72,903

Total Depreciation Expense 77,362 74,955
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Reglonal Development Australia Yorke and Mid North ABN 68 705 101 048

Notes to the Financial Statemonts
For the yeoar ended 30 June 2023

Note 8: Project Subcontractor Expenses

Sundry Project Expentes
Youth Care Cornect

Heavy Industry Multi-Skils
Total Project Expenses

2023 2022

$ $
7,500 9,400
15.2% 13,408
22,768 29,365
. 2,180
487 518
74689 8,553
34,350 52,745
6,104 15,860
214,168 326,584
4.0 Jan
2740 1,890
87 3147
. 3515
35M 4568
6,993 32,743
13217 21690
1260 14635
11,203 2940
8,809 arne
. (8.980)
3537 6454
19929 18.45¢
32265 35430
61,198 55,350
19,554 12204
. 136
4213 i‘“
. 1%
. 5441

18,

—i —w

Project Subcontractor expenses aro third pasty costs retated 1o the managament of projects by the Assoclalion as a dicect cost of
the peoject revenue discussod in Note 3. Other direct costs incurred by thge Association relating to menagemant projects are
recognised in Note 7 with operaling sxpanses. Thers are 8 numbaer of projocts that remain active. Adequate Tunds have been
commitiod by the Assockation 10 ensure these projects will be completed.

”
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Regional Development Australia Yorke and Mid North ABN 68 705 101 048

Notes to the Financial Statoments
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 9: Board and Committee Expenses
Droctors & Moeting Expenses
Sang Foos
Honorarium Fees

Total Board and Committee Expenses

Note 10: Net Loss{profit) on disposal of property, plant & equipment
Proceeds on sale of Property”
Loss: Writhen Down Vialue and Costs of Property

Total Capitasl Lons on sale Property
Total Net Loss on disposal property, plant & equipment

Note 11; Finance Costs
Interost

Total Finance Costs

Note 12: Disaggregated Disclosure
Covern and Funded

Swppon Projects
2023 2023
Income
Core Grant Roverwe 602,240
Project Reverwo 1,006 089 61,926

Other Revenus 6668 g%
Total Income 1,613, d J kD

2023 2022
$ $
2,760 5333
10,320 9,350
28975 28.269
42.055 42,962
2023 2022
(9.483) s
{9.483) 4
{3.483) 454
2023 2022
18,801 16691
18,801 16,691
cvTm
hdng T
2023 2023
£02.240
71,361 1,138,378

Expenses

Emgioyes Borwits 997 976 |9

Degrociation snd Amornisaton 17382 TR

Suppiies and Services 383 588 02616 67885 544 090

Project Expenses AL %74 15223

Board and Commitieo Exponses 42,055 42056
Finance Costs 18 801 18,801

Total Expenses TS0 WA GIAm 188507
Surplus for the yesr 78,992 (30.801) AATS 51,778

Activities of the Board

In achieving its objectives the Board provides a range of services dlassified inlo the following activities:

Calpins
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Notes to the Financial Statermnents
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Governance and Support

RDAYMN operationad activities that ensure the organsation meets 25 objectives in a productive, efficient and effoctive mannor wivist
Mbwmwwm This ivolves the day 10 day management of the organisation, financial
9. and providing administrative support 1o all projects and other acthibies.

-

CVIM Funding
mwt«mmnmmdwmummvnrwmum
ROAYMN has secured funding from the South Austrafian T ission (SATC) to provide a local contadt poind in he region.
mmummnmmnmmmmarc by prowiding SATC with up
10 date and acourate nformation about the products and sorvices on offer in the Clare Valley Tourlsm Region,

Eunded Projects
Funded projects inchude a range of regionady approprato and industry supported workforce programs and commenity impeavament
programs. As the debvery pactner ROAYMN contributes it local inteligence, reglonal notworks and in-depth undorstanding of
markels and condiions,

Risegoreqeted disclosures
The disagpregated disciosure schedule prosent exp and information attributable 1o each of the acthilies for the year

ended 30 June 2023
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2023
Note 13: Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purp of the L of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand and in banks, net of cutstanding bank overdralts.
Cash ot the ond of the year as shown in Ihe stalement of cash Sows is reconciied 10 the related Rems In the balance sheet as
folown

2023 2022
$ $

Cash Al Bank - Core Account 701,31 690,033
Cash on hand 300 41
Total Coash and Cash Equivalents 701,616 650,174
Interost rate risk

Cash on hand s non-interest beanng. Cash at bonk earns a floating interest rate. The camying amount of cash and cash

oquivalonts reprasects far valus

Note 14; Financial Assets/investments

Torrn Doposd - invesiment Account 40,274 39 867
Total Financial Assets/avestments u;ig m
Note 15: Reconciliation Of Net Cash Provided By/Used in Operating Activities To Net Profit

Oporating peofit (loss) sfer tax 51,776 (242537)
Deprodiation oase 7,562 74955
Neot Loss on disposal of Property Plant & Equipment 9.483 (454)
Changes in assets and liabiidties:

(Increase) decrease in rade dediors (4.620) 42589
crease (decreass) in rade Creditons and accruals (46.552) 297204

Mot Cah used by eperatiag setiviis _% — i1}

Note 16: Receivables

Trade debtors 187 823 151,809
Prepayments 18519 49,913
Total Debtors anl_u_:_ 201,722
Interest rate and credit risk

Receivablos are raised for all goods and services provided for which payment has nol been received, Raceivables are normaly

settiod within 30 days. Recedvables, prepayments and sccrued revenues are non-nteres! bearing
The carrying amount of recelvabies approximates net far value 25 thoy are receivable on demand

Galpins
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yoar ended 30 June 2023

Note 17: Property, Plant and Equipment

Buddngs:
- Al cost
- Less: Accumudated depreciation

2023 2022
$ $

29,264 20,264
|13ISME “ﬁm}
s

37,049 37,049
5,000 0

. 0

5.000 0

2794 95,597

The remaning uselul Ide and depreciation rate of assets held are doemed appropriato 1o reflect the fair value less cost of disposal of
proparty, plant and equipment. There is therelore no NECAON of Impakement at 30 June 2023

Note 18: Payables
Unsecured:

= Trade credtons

- Credi cands

16223 4997
475 1.010
44863 80,797
- 25296
394,110 433,867
4311 (10,930)
13444 16,608
5850 4610

O:M 0: 1%
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Notes to the Financial Staterments
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Interont and Credit Risk
Creditors and accruals are rassed foc all amounts owed 1o the Board (billed and un-biled) but unpaid.  Sundry creditors are normally
settied within 30 days All payables sre non-nterest bearing. The carrying amount of payables represents fakr vadue due 1o the

amounts bairg payable oo demansd
2023 2022

Note 19: Provisions $ $

Curremt

Anrwanl Lexve 0.1 4a.0m

Long Service Loave 18 087 18 381

Non Current

Loryg Sensce Leave !gﬁ! gm
90,757 89,959

Theve ware 14 amployees at 30 June 2023

Provision for Employee Entitlements
A provision has been recognised for employes entifemaents relating to anrual and long service leave for employees. In caloutating

Note 20: Audit Fees
Auditor Expense Included m Supplies and Servioss relate 1o separate projects as follows,

Core Activities 1 13,408
Total Audit Fees 1§ 1“

Note 21: Committed Grant and Project Funds
The following furdds harve boen recoived but not yat spent as the projects are in Drogress of have not yot commenced:

Coma See Change 6,049 TA23
Solving Skills Shortages Program 101,950 .
Small Buainess Fundamaentals 58 562 .
Co-Working Space . 56,532
Heavy Industrios Mult-Trades Program . 71,850
Reglonal Workforce SA Prograen . Ran
Reglonal Drought Resillence Planning . 121,810
Rogional Leadeortip Program 151,011 136,177

317651 426,128

Calpins
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Notes to the Financial Statemonts
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 22: Contingent Assets and Liabilities
Thw Association is nol sware of any contingent assets or Rabiities.

Note 23: Financial Instruments

Detalls of hw spnilicant accounting policies and methods adopled Including the criteda for recognition, the basis of measurement,
and the basis 00 which Income and expersos are recognised with respect 10 each dass of fnancial assel, firancal Tabiity and
oquity Indirament aro dsciosed in Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

Categorisation of financial instruments

2023 2022
$ $
Vaive Fale Vaioe
lnote_[pmoset
[Financial Liabilities $ 3 $ 5
Trade ard other peyaties 18 81561 61,661 004
Totat Financial Liabilities 61,561] 61,861 %
[Financial Assets
o 13 701,616] 701,618 890,174
14 4o'm| 39,967
and 16
Total Financial

Rocolvabie and payable amounts disclosad above exclude amounts relating 1o stalidory recelvables and payabies.

The falr values dsdosed in the above table have boen determined based on cash and cash oquivalonis, trade and ofher receivables
and rade and ofher payabios being short term instruments In natire whose Carmying value is equivaient 10 fair value.

Specific Financial Risk Exposures and Management

The mamn risks the Associalion s exposed 1o Byough &5 fnancal instruments are credit rsk, Souidty risk and market risk.

I Credh Risk

Exposure 10 crodit risk rolating 1o financiad assets arises from Ihe potental non-performance by counterparbes of condract
obligations that could lead 1o a financial 1083 1o the Associalion.

Credit ik Iy managed through maintaining procedures 10 regutary monitor the financial stabiity of cusiomers and counterparties
and by irwvesting surplus funds in financial instituions that maintain a high credit rating.

Thare is no coliateral held by the Asscciation securing trade and other recefvables.
B Liquidity Risk
Liquidity tisk arisas from the possiity that the Assoclation might ancounter diffiouity in setting its debts of otherwise

meoting its obligations related 1o tnancial lablites, The Association manages this risk by preparing and monitoring budgels,
only mvesting surplus cash with major financial institutions and proactively monilioring the recovery of unpald debls.

No assots have been pledged as security for any Eabiiies.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

L Market Risk

Exposuro 1o inderest rate risk arises on fnancial assets and financial liatslities recognised at the end of the reporting period

whoroby a future change in interest rates will affoct futuro cash flows,

Tho following table Blustrates sensiiivies 1o the Association’s exposures 10 changes in interest rates.

3 2022
% % $
Weighted | Carrying | Weighted | Carrying
Average Value Average Value
Interest Interest
ale. gato
81,561 o%] 55,004
Assets
1 1 1, 174
2.40% 4 2
rade and other recedvabins 151 1

Note 24: Key Management Personnel Compensation

WMI)WM“MMMMNM“MU”M directly or indirectly,

ncluding any director (whether execulive of otherwise) of that entity is consédored key managernent

The totals of remunerstion paid 10 key management parsonnel (KMP) of Bhe campany during the year are as follows -

371“7 g

Calpins
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Regional Development Australia Yorke and Mid North ABN 68 705 101 048
Statement by Members of the Committee
For the year ended 30 June 2023

In the opinion of the Commitiee the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Financial
Performance, Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to the Financial Statements:

1. Presents fairly the financial position of Regional Development Australia Yorke and Mid North
as at 30 June 2023 and its performance for the year ended 30 June 2023 in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards, mandatory professional reporting requirements and other
authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board.

2. At the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds fo believe that the Association will
be able to pay Its dedts as and when they fall due.

This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Committee and is signed for and
on behalf of the Commitiee by:

William Vandepeer

It/ U

Danlel Wilisor{
Chief Executive Officer
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Regional Development Australia Yorke and Mid North ABN 68 705 101 048
Statement by Members of the Committee
For the year ended 30 June 2023

In accordance with Section 35(5) of the Associations Incorporation Act 1985 (SA), the
commitiee of Reglonal Development Australia Yorke and Mid North hereby states that during the
financial year ended 30 June 2023;

a) 1) no officer of the Association;

) no firm of which an officer is a member; and

iif) no body corporate In which an officer has a substantial financlal interest,
has received or become entitied lo receive a benefit as a resull of a contract between officer,
firm or body corporate and the Association (other than as disclosed in the financial statements)

b) No officer of the Association has received directly or indirectly from the Association any
payment or other benefit of pecuniary value (other than as disclosed in the financial statements),

This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Committee and is signed for and
on behaif of the Commitiee by:

Wiliam Vnndopny

Galpins
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Accountants, Auditors INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
& Business

Consultants To the members of Regional Development Australia Yorke & Mid North Inc
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report
Audit Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Regional Development Australia Yorke
it it and Mid North Inc (the Association) which comprises the statement of financial position as at
30 June 2023, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant

accounting policies and the Director’s declaration.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Association presents fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Association as at 30 June 2023, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards and the Association Incorporation Act SA 1985.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are independent of the
Association in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and
Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110: Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
Independence Standards) (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in
Australia. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and The Committee for the Financial Report

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report,
and has determined that the basis of preparation described in Note 1 is appropriate to meet
the requirements of the Associations Incorporation Act SA 1985 and is appropriate to meet
the needs of the members. Management’s responsibility also includes such internal control
as Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of a
financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the Management are responsible for assessing the

int Gambier S e . : ] : : :
e Association’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating

to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Association or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Stirling

y Mount
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Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Australian
Auditing Standards will always detect a3 material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.
As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Association’s internal control.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Association’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Association to cease to continue as a going concern.
- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

GALPINS ACCOUNTANTS, AUDITORS & BUSINESS CONSULTANTS
'-’ »’ :/‘/‘V
Luke Williams CA, CPA. Registered Company Auditor

Director

16/10/2023
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Contact Us
M. 1 i ot | Y I | (D) S

Alwstvalia

YORKE AND MID NORTH

Phone: 1300 742 414
Email: info@yorkeandmidnorth.com.au @rda_ymn

Website: yorkeandmidnorth.com.au

@rda_ymn
Office Locations:

Port Pirie - 85 Ellen Street, Port Pirie SA 5540
Kadina - Kadina Town Hall, Cnr Taylor & Digby Street, Kadina SA 5554 @rdaymn
Clare - 155 Main North Road, Clare SA 5453

@rda-yorke-and-mid-north
Our office hours are from 9:00am - 5.00pm Monday to Friday.
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of South Australia
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Mutual Services

Local Government Association 7 8 NOV 2023 L
B Y vriiiaiiaiicn

Yorke Peninsula Council
PO Box 57,
MAITLAND SA 5573

Dear Andrew,

Please find enclosed, the 2022/23 LGASA Mutual Services Annual Report.

This financial year, LGASA Mutual achieved significant milestones. A four-year Self-Insurance License renewal
from RTWSA was secured for the LGAWCS, a testament to the collective efforts of all participating Councils.
Additionally, the renewal of the Treasurer's Indemnity with the State Government was successfully negotiated for
the LGAMLS, a crucial component of the cover provided to Councils, This agreement reassures Members in the
face of catastrophic events,

The Board has invested significantly in innovative programs designed to help Councils navigate the evolving
risks in the sector, These initiatives, focused on risk management, will be further developed and implemented in
the coming year to support the sector in managing its ever-changing risk landscape. Among these efforts is the
LG Safe Program, which received substantial investment to provide a user-friendly and compliant WHS
framework. Despite operating in a challenging environment, both LGAMLS and LGAWCS have consistently
outperformed budget expectations. In addition, the LGAWCS has generated a surplus that enabled a $1M
Special Distribution and $500K Risk Incentive Fund allocation. The stability of claim volumes and costs has
played a key role in the strong financial performance.

In discussions with global reinsurers earlier this year, emphasis has been placed on the benefits of the mutual
model and the commitment to consistent risk management practices. This has helped mitigate increases in
reinsurance costs, allowing stable contributions to Members during challenging market conditions and economic
times.

Throughout this year, the sector has attained significant milestones, made possible by Member's commitment,
The LGASA Mutual Board eagerly anticipates ongoing collaboration with Members in delivering stable
contributions, the best available protection, and ever-evolving risk services.

Please take the time to review the Annual Report for more detailed insights into activities and achievements over
the past year, If there are any questions or a need for further information, please don't hesitate to contact us. A
digital copy of this report can be accessed and downloaded via LGRS Member Centre (www.lgrs.com.au).

Together, the future is faced with anticipation.

y

Yours faithfully,

Dr Andrew Johnson Tony G
Chief Executive Officer Gen:ralrl?/lyanager
LGASA Mutual Pty Ltd LGRS
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Mutual Services Providing unique cover and risk services
Local Government Association
-y

of South Australia

LGASA
Mutual Services

202225

Annual Report

www.lga.sa.gov.au/mutual
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LGASA Mutual acknowledges the Traditional Owners of
country throughout South Australia, and pays its respects
to Elders past, present and emerging.

We acknowledge the unique cultural and spiritual relationships
to the land, waters and seas and the rich contribution that First
Nations People continue to make to our society.

LGASA Mutual operates on Kaurna land, and our work extends
across many First Nations communities within South Australia.

We acknowledge that local government can learn from the
deep feelings of attachment that First Nations People have to
country and respect this relationship in the delivery of services

to communities.

LGASA is committed to strengthening connections between
First Nations People, councils and the broader community as the
peak body for local government in South Australia.
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Our strategy and purpose

The LGASA Mutual Board's mission is to...

“Provide unique cover and risk services that meet our Members needs.”

David Holston
Chair, LGSA Mutual Board

__' ) 'm|]|
- - 2 ulll

Governance & Risk

We will provide and maintaln a robust, contemporary governance framewaork that creates and delivers Member
value by dellvering outcomes relating to the Board, corporate governance, risk management, service agreement

management and enhancing our reputation and business

Financial Stability

We will ensure the ongoing financial sustainability of LGASA Mutual Pty Ltd and the services we provide to our

members by delivering outcomes relating to contributions, financial performance and balance sheet management

Member Focused

We will actively engage members in order to understand and add value to their business by delivering
wtcomes relating to listening, responding and communicating with members and Increasing their

understanding of our business

Member Services

We will provide Innovative, high quality, accessible services, advice, systems and cover to meet current

and emerging needs of the sector by delivering best practice service levels and stakeholder engagement

W LGASA Mutual 2022/23 Annual Report B e m [ f m "
e ™ | [ [ miin ® u

LGASA Mutual Team
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LGASA Mutual Team

Chair’s Message

David Holston Dascla Bennett Joanne Denley Jenny White Clinton Jury

Independent Director Independent Director State Government GACEOQ / Director

LGASA
Mutual
Board
Members

Dr Andrew Johnson
CEO

Scheme Tony Gray Kirsty Gold
Managers LGA Worker LGA Mutual Liability
Compensation Scheme cheme Manager
Mar
3] f | W LGASA Mutual Team B LI | [ I ] "
e " [ ] ] [ ] El
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Chair’s Message “..successfully
negotiated a
renewal of

the Treasurer’s
Indemnity

with the state

| am delighted to present the Annual Report
- . . government.”

for LGASA Mutual Pty Ltd, encompassing the
LGA Workers Compensation Scheme (LGAWCS)
and LGA Mutual Liability Scheme (LGAMLS),

for the year ending 30 June 2023. Both Schemes
have continued to deliver outstanding results
and value for local government.

I have had the opportunity to visit a Additionally, LGASA Mutual successiully providing a user-friendly and compliant WH! ring our annual discussions with CEQ, Dr Andrew Johnson for his ongoing
m number of councils during the year neqgotiated a renewal of the Treasurer’s framework. Extensive consultation within global reinsurers, we have continued upport, and the hard work and dedication
discuss the work your Mutual has undertaken Indemnity with the state government the sector has informed the development to highlight the benefits of our mutual of the LGRS team who continue to dellver all

" : ind 10 gain an understanding of the : § f a simplified framewaork, user-friendly nodel, emphasising the consistent risk the Scheme services and were pivotal in the
Sector savings through being he Treasurer's Indemnity is a unique
Individual challenges each council faces | | locumentation, and an enhanced electronic nanagement practices, the value derived dellvery of another cutstanding year for both
- greement and 15 a pivotal component
aSEIfInsurEdemployer' These visits are instrumental in helping ; | ‘” bl f system. The benehits of this investment are from 100% council membership and the Schemes, Most of all, | would like to thank our
if the cover the LGAMLS 1s able 1o provide
Inform the Board on the services and . igerly anticipated in the years ahead value of our long-term relationship, Thi Members for your angoing support
ounclls, The agreement requires the
yssistance our members require from us . has significantly mitigated increases | . )
reasurer and LOASA Mutual to come Despite operating within a challenging The LGASA Mutual Board looks forward to
einsurance costs, enabling us to continue
| also had the honour of presenting a together to resolve any claims that the environment, the Schemes have consistently the continuing ongoing collaboration with
10 provide stable contributions to our
number of awards at the LGA Annual Schemg LGAMLS recelves bevond the relnsurance utperformed budget expectations, Notably Members in delivering stable contributions
Members during challenging times L
Awards as part of the 2023 LGA AGM. It never that It acquires from the commerclal 1enerating surpluses of $1.08mand 51,13m best available cover and unique risk services
r“("mb(_‘fﬁ'“p retention Ceases to amaze me at the innovation that | surance market, The Treasurer’s Indemnity n the LGAMLS and L( CS respectively The LGAMLS remains committed to meet yvour needs. Together, we face the future
to LGAWCS&LGAMLS occurring within the sector. While the prize Is thus important to the viabllity of the These outstanding results enabled the dellivering outstanding value to member with confidence and anticipation
re generous, the genuine value lies in the Mutual Liability Scheme and offers councils Board to make a Special Distribution of $Tm This year, the LGAMLS has assisted council
collective sharing of these Initlatives across ind the South Australian Community ind a turther allocation of $500k with the production of a number of guldes
the sector, fostering learning and arowth ) level of reassurance In the face of 10 the Risk Incentive Program from the and best practice manuals, alongsic ( Q
>
atastrophlic event LGAWCS. Both Schemes have maintained aunching the Behavioural Standards
@ surpluses in line with the recommendations Risk Management Service (BSRMS). Thi
Our Board has Invested heavily during

HH' 'M._'] vear i.(,._ '”I”“,{i e s s e L T f the Independent actuary. Declining nitlative offers early Intervention when David Holston

LGAWCS issue Shn S[)L’Ci(ﬂ ) y ;i laim numbers, Increasing interest rates elected member relationships start to break Chalr, LGSSA Mutual Board
Distribution and $500k ignificant milestones for Inta:8 humber of innovative programs Jeposits, and prudent management of down. The LGAMLS continues to provide

: : ' (CACA Ak VA med at assisting counclls in naviaating
allocation to Risk Incentive LGASA Mutual, Firstly, we b 9 oathrabiabis reinsurance costs have all contributed to essential support to counclls for identifying
! - the emerging risks facing the sector ; & : g ‘ 2
program in 2023/24. achieved a four-year license hese proactive initiatives, aimed at risk AR A i H|H : “Hs ke ”' .

T 1 A 3 ‘ SKS, alor with delivering comprenhensive
renewal from RTWSA fo lowing management, will be further developed he LGAWCS received 438 new claims ) ] ! I pren L

i training for staff and elected members

’”'“"l"”'“"('!""'IllJx||("'|1|"‘|(*»' ind implemented in the upcoming year t« marginally up on last year’s record low 4

: support the sector In managing its ever I'he stabllisation of both claim volume and My sincere gratitude extends to my fellow
a testament to the collective evolving risk landscape werage cost of claims has been a key driver Board members for thelr assistance and
|'”l)”,l)'«|||:hl|[|'.‘ I[).IIH\] f this year's strong hnancial performance contributions during the year and 10 our

Among these endeavours has been the | p \
tfor the LGAWCS

CEO's rated Schemes via councils. afe program, with a substantial investment
LGASA Member Survey. made to ensure the program'’s objectivi

2} w W Chalr's Message W " =3 o
=
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LGASA extends Treasurer’s
Indemnity with State Government,

2022/23 a key intergovernmental agreement,
underpinning the broad cover

Overview Highlights extended by LGAMLS.

100% § "»Jd7 B $304
SA councils = & million

LGAWCS & LGAMLS retai 3 Sector savings th h be
e AL TR Value for Money & CEO's 10/10 In YR o W L R 1
Self-insured employer.

100% councll membership. G
' the LGASA Member Survey.

1

-

= $1.5 $31.4

880 million million

LGAWCS issue $1m Special Annual Scheme value to sector
LGAWCS secures 4-Year Distribution and $500k

extension to the RTWSA allocation to Risk Incentive
Self-Insurance License, program in 2023/24,

as confirmed in report, LGA
Value of Membership.
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2022/23
Financial Highlights

Item 16.7- Attachment 1

Operating Surplus for 2022/23

Special Distributions
paid in 2023,

Operating surplus for 2022/23

Reduction in future
claims liabilities,

13 DECEMBER 2023

@ Local Government Association
of South Australia

Net Fund Reserves 2022/23.

Allocation to the LGAWCS
Risk Incentive Program

Mutual Liabllity Schem
Local Government Association
of South Australia

Net Fund Reserves 2022/23,

LGAMLS Risk Incentive funds
paid to Members to date.

21/22 Highlights W
kil
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LGASA Mutual Survey

LGASA Mutual Survey Results

Our members are central to our mission, and feedback plays a

crucial role in enhancing our services,

Every year, LGASA Mutual Invites member
CEQs and Executives to participate in a

survey to evaluate the effectiveness, value,

and quallty of services. The main objective s

aaln Insiaghts Into how members perceive

thelr Interactions and overall experlences
with the mutual S5chemes and Local

Government Risk Services (LGRS)

This undertaking Involves evaluating the

WHS and Risk management programs,

protection and indemnity, provision of
Information and advice, the level of trust,
the efhiciency of claims management

and the overall quality of service

The feedback from this survey
provides LOASA Mutual with valuable
comprehension of areas that warrant
Improvement and steers the strategi
allocation of investments and resource:

towards the appropriate areas

The latest survey results clearly highlight the strong Member relationship, with

+93% of member councils responded to the survey,

+46% of respondents have personally had direct dealings with LGRS for more than 10 years

85% Value

Being part of an industry-based self-insurance Scheme &
72% are proud to be part of the SA Mutual Schemes.

77% Believe

Risk services and programs received as part of membership
support better practices, improve risk profile and reduce

claims across the sector.

76% Agree

LGRS is a valuable source of information. 79% agree
LGRS is professional and acts with integrity.

&6

As reflected in the latest survey results, it is reassuring to see that
the level of trust from our members remains consistently high,

with a strong endorsement of the Mutual Schemes and the LGASA
Mutual Board'’s strategic direction. While there are opportunities for
further enhancements, the findings suggest we're on the right track

in serving members and the wider Local Government sector.

Dr Andrew Johnson

CEO, LGASA Mutual
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LGASA Mutual Survey Results 2022/23

Scheme members perspectives on the relative importance

and performance of core membership services: PERFORMANCE
IMPORTANCE
8/10
Liability claims management/advice
910
Value of Risk Programs, as rated by members: 810
Workers Compensation claims/advice/workplace conflict advice 9/10
8/10
Workers Compensation RTW services (Injury management) 9/10
Healthy Lifestyle Program Skytrust 8/10 8/10
Advice regarding protection/indemnity
910
First Ald Readiness Program | 8/10 710
- AL, o Risk management & advice
810
710 Mock Court Simulations 710 710
WHS management & advice
" 9/10
| bl o i e e Overall service provided by LGRS i
| ] verall service provided by LGRS 9/10
Areodrome Risk Program 710
Source of WHS/Risk information and advice 8/10

While member perceptions didn't reveal any areas of significant concern for
the Mutual Schemes, we also know there’s always room for improvement.

Members did provide feedback on what they would like to see more of:

w9 | > Ny

Workers Compensation
Support into reglonal Strateglc Risk advice
claims advice & workplace
and remote councils & support
conflict advice

W Year In Review W f W | ( | } I W Year In Review m
] \orn: [ \ | | L ) | { ) S ) t | s
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Reinsurance Market Insight

As a self-insured discretionary mutual fund, the LGAMLS retains risk, but to protect the fund Pacific and Australian trends
and cap potential losses, the LGAMLS acquires a range of reinsurances. In recent years, the global
insurance market conditions have hardened, however, Mutual arrangements continue to be the

key ingredient in delivering stable contributions for South Australian councils. Cha"englng market

Since its inception, the Schemes have innovated to ensure that they A key benefit of the Schemes [s able to absorb the volatility in Conditions in the Pacific market continue to be
deliver continued, sustainable protection to the South Australian local the Insurance market so that members can experience financlal (.l111||("\(]|'1§)4/\|| classes of insurance are under
government sector, This has enabled them to take risks by accepting predictability pressure and the market remains hard.

covers when the commercial market has shown no appetits

B iha i mchmakons vl nidia volsiiy e maisl The current insurance cycle In tl.m climate (re)insurers are more uswrl.lvc in ‘
continues providing the South Australlan Local Government sector is known as a “hard market” paring back coverage and limits, app|ylng

with stable contributions delivering outstanding value for money @ where insurers lose appetite for certain exclusions, which impacts our purchase of
risks and withdraw capacity or increase indemnity protection for the mutual.
rates and limit covers,

ind financial stability

The Schemes have developed protection and reinsurance structures

over a number of vears 1o reflect the omplex risk profile of Lo al
Government, While not immune to the impacts in the broader

Insurance market, the Schemes provide the maost effective means to

biartfia roscastEover s ey Bl tines Liability (General and Professional)

Pricing in the liability market is challenging, due in large measure to
claims inflation and reduced capacity from some major underwriters.
Professional indemnity capacity has continued to

tighten with reduced insurer appetite.

‘ ‘ The insurance market continues to have concerns
‘ about weather related catastrophic events and

. ‘ environmental exposures.

Catastrophic events

a0 76%

33%
: Australian weather-related catastrophe losses
24% were again significant this season., ', !
0 On the back of last years flooding events, we saw / /
‘ TS the devastation caused by the River Murray floods
) st Al bl s that passed through both Victoria and South / N
. LG Operating Revenue Australia.
) e
‘ LGAMLS Net Contribution: ¢ S il »

2014 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

W Year In Review W A I 1l ( ! I W Year In Review W
u Norm ‘ \ nancial Summary 8 Boa { ‘ ts W Auditors | =
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$90k

awarded annually to

Scheme members.

$1.9m

has been awarded to

Scheme members since .
inception,

LGA Scheme Awards

For more than twenty years, the LGA Scheme Awards

have recognised Local Government excellence in risk

management

With a remarkable sum of over §1.9 million awarded to

members since its inception, these awards stand as a

testament to the commitment and innovation present

in the sector,

efforts in the spac

Initiatives, processes, systems, and advancements developec

he care focus of the LGA Scherme Awards lies In acknowledging ploneering

counclls and local government authorities

Each vear the awards program exists

1O promote
Ihe successtul imy lementation to Improve safety;

Elimination or minimisation of injury risk

of WHS, RTW and risk. These encompass a wide array o

| by South Australia

wpporting Injured workers to return to, or remalin at work,;

Recognition of risk management as a8 management

Awareness of risk management issues

* Innovation in risk reduction

Mructure,

In the most recent iteration, the 2022/23 award winners have emerged as

true champlons -I|-:: sitive change within their organisations

ommunity. This awards sea

undersconng the heightened dedication to excellence

I

(&

ved was nothing short of exceptiona

What's truly Inspiring Is witnessing the local governmer

proactive steps to roster ine

!

he quality of r

son witnessed a strong Infly

and the broadet

x Of applications

members taking

ovation within thelr communities

ind workplace

By implementing robust safety measures, they are not only safeguarding their
stafl but also fortifying the well-being of the communities they seryve

As the LGA Scheme Awards continue to shine a spotlight on exceptional
achieverments, they undoubtedly Inspire others to strive for even greater

(

X(

llence in the pursult of safety and innovation

he following 202

1/23 LGA Scheme Awards winners were proudly announce

it the LGA OGM in April 2023

W Year In Review W
E]

ominations

v 1 L
LGAWCS WHS Best Practice
Metropolitan Award

City of Charles Sturt
‘Safety Starts With Me'

The City of Charles Sturt worked
together to create
the ‘Safety Starts With Me'initiative,

L promotes a strang safety culture
by sharing storles, tips, and
mplementing safety Initiatives across

the arganisation

cmplovees are encouraged to
personally engage In Safety and
prioritise the safety of themselves and
their workmates by believing and
coming from the heart in connecting
with what they are doing and why

they do it

LGAWCS WHS Best Practice
Reglonal Award

Adelaide Hills Region Waste
Management Authority (AHRWMA)
“Training Competency Progress'

AHRWMA developed a Training
Module (TMO) and Verification
of Competency (VOC) to assess
their employee's competency in
operating high-risk machinery.

This tool ass: s employee

competency through qualitative
and quantitative methods, tied to
Standard Operating Procedures
(SOP), and uses a rating scale to
gauge task completion ability
with a minimum total required for

competency dermonstration

Congratulations to the 2022/23 Merit Award winners!

LGAMLS Risk Management Award
City of Salisbury ‘Assurance Map'

The City of Salisbury identified
the lack of an Assurance Map as
a contemporary governance risk
with strategic Implications.

An Assurance Map is a tool that
visually presents all assurance
processes and activities of an
organisation, both internal and
external, as they apply to the

arganisation’s risks.

¥
»

LGAWCS WHS Best Practice Merit Award Winner
City of Holdfast Bay - ‘Any Time Mate'

LGAWCS WHS Best Practice Merit Award Winner
Tatlara District Councll - 'Taking up the slack’

LGAWCS WHS Best Practice Merit Award Winner
City of Playford - ‘'WHS Mental Health Framework'

LGAWCS WHS Best Practice Merit Award Winner
Wattle Range Council - The Resilience Project’

LGAMLS Risk Incentive Award Winner
City of Onkaparinga - 'RelianSys'

You can discover videos featuring the stories of

maljor award winners on the LGRS Member Centre,

W Year In Review W
il t | s
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Risk Incentive Program

Risk management underpins the success of
the Schemes, ensuring a safer workplace and
community.

The Risk Incentive Program, active for nearly 6 years through LGAMLS
and LGAWCS, has been essentlal in empowering Scheme members

to Invest in the safety and well-being of their staff and community.

A plvotal aspect of the Risk Incentive Program lies in its promotion
of continuous improvement, The Risk Incentive Program is a crucial
channel for Scheme members enabling the strategic Investment in
risk-focused resources and underpins the evolution of risk profiles,
crucially supporting our Self-Insurance License through continuous

Improvement

As a testament to the strong financial performance of the
LGAWCS in 2022-23, the LGASA Mutual Board has supported the
recommendation to issue a $500k allocation to the Risk Incentive
Program, which will be paid in October 2024, Since it's

inception, $7.4m has been allocated to Scheme members
through the LGAWCS & LGAMLS Risk Incentive Program,

The scope of services and resources available under the Risk
Incentive Program Is both comprehensive and strategic, Members
are empowered to seek funding for a range of Initiatives that
embody proactive risk mitigation

Additionally, the program extends Its support to recommendations
stemming from risk audits, facilitating the acquisition or enhancement
of safety equipment, lifting devices, ergonomic teols, playaround

facilities, and community Infrastructure

W Chale's Message B 2022/23 Highlights 1 Year In Review

15’ Report M Financial Raport Auditor's fieport B Schemae Member

What members are using their Risk Incentive funds for:

Ot
o=>

Risk Management Costs for Preventative Purchases/upgrades Funding to support
(non-core) contracting WHS and Risk recommended from a safety/risk
services including specialised Risk services (e.g. arisk audit - safety mitigation program
WHS consulting Management health & well- equipment, lifting moving forward.
and/or training resources/ being programs, devices, ergonomic
services. discrete Risk Influenza equipment, playground,

services, vaccinations). or community facility,

What members are using their Risk Incentive funds for:

29%

HUMAN CAPITAL

31%

WHS & RISK COMPLIANCE

14% e

WHS SAFETY EQUIPMENT Incentive
Program

21%

ASSETS

5%

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT)

fghlights 18 Year In Review W
ts M Auditor's Report M Schemo M
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LGAWCS A Year in Review

As we look back on the past financial year, it's an opportunity
for us to consider the achievements and challenges and what

LGA Workers
Compensation
Scheme

we need to effectively plan for in the future.

FY2023 saw some outstanding achlevements
for the Local Government Assoclation W
Compensation Scheme (LGAWCS) with a

leglslative back drop that Includes continued

reviews Into both the Return to Work Scheme

and the Return to Work Act 2014 which,
along with the Performance Standards for
Self-Insurers (PSS, govern the way in which

claims are managed by the LGAWC

We continued 1o see new claim numbers
stabllise at 438, marginally ahead of last
vear's 419, but still well below historical
trends, Average costs of claims have now
stabllised at around 517,000 per claim, It's
Interesting to highlight that back in FY2016
when the current RTW Act was implemented
new claims totalled 669, Considering the
present average cost per clalm, this decreast
translates to potential annual savings of

round $3.9 million for the sector

These results highlight the financial
benefit of Local Government being
a Self-Insured employer, with
independent Actuarial projections
confirming that the collective sector
has saved Local Government over
$304m since the LGAWCS and self

insurance came into effect.

A significant achievement in the past year
for LGAWCS and the broader sector was the

|

successtul extension of LGASA'S Self-Insurance

Licence with Return to Work SA for anothe:
4 years, effective September 2022. This was
the culmination of 12 months of dedicated
efforts from the LGRS team and, importantly,
Scheme Members whom the regulator
chose to be evaluated, This evaluation

was more comprehensive compared to
prior years, Involving a substantially higher
number of locations belng chosen lor on
site assessments, numerous face-to-face

Interviews with various stakeholders such

Vorkers

as claimants, Prac titloners, managers, union
representatives, and extensive reviews ( |

claim files

As with all license extensions, It has come
with conditions, Both the LGAWCS Injury
Managerment and WHS Risk teams have
confirmed partnership plans with Return To
Work SA, committing to address observations
through structured programs to support the
Membership. This will see continued support
provided to members in areas such as

ntermal auditing capabillity (through the LGRS
Procedure Valldation team) and the provision
of WHS & Risk Evaluations, which will evolve
to focus on member progress in completing

thelr updated Plan & Program actions

This Is an opportune moment to
acknowledge and extend appreclation to
the Members who participated in the or
site evaluations. Their involvement has not
gone unnoticed, Recognition goes to the
following members: City of Charles Sturt
City of Port Adelaide Enfield, Adelalde Plains
Councll, District Councll of Peterborough
City of Whyalla, District Council of Lower
Eyre Peninsula, District Council of Grant,
Naracoorte Lucindale Council, District
Councll of Karoonda East Murray, Coorong
District Councll, City of Mount Gambler, City
ol Playford, City of Onkaparinga, Reglonal
Councll of Goyder, City of West Torrens, City
of Marion, City of Victor Harbor and District

Councll of Yankalllla

The LGAWCS continues to deliver strong
results for Scheme members amidst a
challenaing leqislative, economic and
ndustrial climate that continues to test
Counclls in this critical aspect of workforce

management

[The advantages of mutuality shine particularly
bright when observing mature scheme such
as the LGAWCS, which has now reached Its
37th year, [s able to consistently dellver year
on-year results that outperform other workers

compensation schemes

¥

A

in estimated Annual
Membership value
for Members.

4 o) ‘
, /70

0

Return to Wor
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LGAWCS A Year in ReVieW 2orers Lompensat on schem: LGAWCS Self-Insurance License Extension

Local Government Association
of South Australia

In September 2022 the LGASA, through the LGAWCS, Josie experienced a
successfully extended the RTWSA Self-Insurance License for musculoskeletal injury at
4 years. The sector has saved over $304m by being a Self- work in June 2022
Insured employer,

“lfound that my consultants were
understanding, easy to talk to and
supported me In every way possible,
They went above and beyond to tailor
my medical treatment requirements in
line with the recommendations of my
doctor to ensure | was supported and
recovered from my infury.”

Local Government soclation of South Australia applied to ReturnToWorkSA for

renewal of its self ured employer registration beyond 30 September 2022. Renewal
of sell-insured employer registration involves consideration and evaluation of various
factors as outlined in the Return to Work Act including organisation performance in

regards management of work health & safety and work injury claims. To this end, Local

Government Association of South Australia Members were selected to participate in
the evaluation conducted by ReturnToWorkSA. Members actively planned for and

participated in the evaluation program including those Member employees identified and

selected for engagement in the evaluation due their roles and re Josle Kowalewski

’ selec sponsibilities. Member
2 employees were both informati ind passionate about thelr roles and responsibilities, LGAWCS Claimant
contribution to management of work health & safety and / or injured worker recovery and
X return to work within their workplace. Local Government Assoclation of South Australia
\ et achieved a favourable evaluation outcome with renewal of self-insured employer
i - reqistration to 30 September 202¢
-

Nell McVicar

Evaluator, Self-Insured Services

In FY2022 LGAWCS Members received a $1m Special Distribution (based on FY2022 performance) and the strong ) e A
wtrun loYWorkhA

financial results in FY2023 have enabled the Scheme Manager to recommend to the LGASA Mutual Board to reduce

the average contribution rate Members in 2024FY to 2.47%, compared to last years 2.519%, along with ancther $1m

Special Distribution and a further allocation of $500k to the LGAWCS Risk Incentive Fund

When factoring In the retum of capital Ihe legislative environment continues to Mare recently, In June 2023, the State new Elected Member Behaviour Standards program will have a particular focus this policles and procedures as well as

to members and the additional costs provide some degree of uncertainty In Government clrculated the draft Return With the new mandatory Elected Member vear on Nolse-Induced Hearing loss (NIHL) significant enhancements to the Skytrust
yssoclated with adhering to requlatory respect to projected claim llabilities with 1o Work (Employment and Progressive Behaviour Management Policy taking effect with these claims costing the sector over risk software 1o elevate the user experience
requirements and covering claim continued reviews into the RTW Act 2014 Injuries) Amendment Bill, proposing In the 2023FY, the LGAWCS, in conjunction more than $3 million over the past 5 years, To facilitate the integration of the new
related costs, the outcome Is a decreas and c¢ritical guiding elements such as the further changes to the Act, Amongst the with the LGAMLS, has established an along with further support for members on LG Sale framework, the LGRS team has

In the comparable rate to 1.6%. This i Impairment Assessment Guidelines used changes, this includes placing greater Elected Member Behavioural Standards Pre-Employment Medical Services been conducting WHS Plan & Program

exceptionally noteworthy and underscores to determine compensability for those commitment on employers to provide Risk Management Service 1o act as an early workshops across the Membership, thereby

Members will alse continue to receive

the advantages of the value-added WHS & permanently injured and seriously Injured Injured workers sultable employment, int itlon nsk mitigation Initiative, The

establishing a solid foundation for adoption

] the complimentary benefits of LGAWCS
Risk Management resources that members workers. The increased risk 1s predominantly changes to the definition of employer for service Is complimentary to members of iy Anzein mici o o ¢
Membership, Including WHS & Risk Advisory The LGASA Mutual Board, the CEO and the

qain through their Membership with claim development costs assoclated qgroup self-insured employers and also both Schemes, and at the time of writing

services, Internal Auditing support, the entire LGRS team have worked tirelessly this
with permanent impairment payments for Introducing requirements to offer sultable this report, many members have access

While we can reflect on the 2023FY

Healthy Lifestyle Program, Certified First year 1o ensure that the LGAWCS continues

physical injuries, Nolse Induced Hearing Loss duties to labour hire candidates where this programs and the associated support .

with a sense of accomplishment, [raining and other value-added benefits, to deliver great results and, importantly,

A (NIML) claims and the increased average cost Injured at a host workplace. At time of tools. b

there's no denying that it has posed Including subscriptions to Skytrust risk continue to evolve the Local Government
of psychological claims. In July 2022, the writing the LGAWCS has been actively been &

Its share of difficulties and demands The sector remalins attentive to emerging software, ChemAlert, OHS Alert and Vocar work environment centred on prioritising
State Government passed a bill proposed making submissions to the Government

Local Government still grapples with claims risks, primarily conceming the aging o employee safety and ensuring that every
by the Labor Government called the RTW on this latest round of changes to strongly An area that has garnered notable attention

onsiderable hurdles in attracting and workforce of Local Government employees p employee can confidently return home to

from the LGASA Mutual Board has been
and the prevalence of psychological claims their families at the end of each day
hilst the amendments in the Bill are quite Local Government sector the LG Safe project which Is now well

Important risk management programs will
[ [ J ||v'"".&ll l‘l1'4‘/‘”"\"'H'H'U""‘"""VI‘-I"/" X

¢ tely skilled WH! | {Scheme Sustainability) Amendment Bil advocate the best possible outcome for the
retaining appropnalely sKines W > AN FISK

W

professionals, especially in regional areas,

broad, our Initial review of the amendments AN ¢ "
Many members have felt the impact of 0 : The LGAWCS team maintains a strong continue to be supported in FY2024 such
suggests that thelr impact on the LGAWCS'S i " N (

collaboration with the LGASA to support as the Ageing Work Health program and

1or

onsultation, The Board has committed
experienced specialist staff transitioning

hinancial position will likely be relatively slanificant Scheme funds to the successfu

from the Local Government sector to the sector in successfully implementing Mentally Healthy Workplaces pilot program
maodest delivery of the project, which aims to
private industries the Local Government reform and the risk will be extended to other interested

deliver an updated framework, supporting

management framewark that supports the members, The Agelng & Work Health

Item 16.7- Attachment 1 Page 71



COUNCIL MEETING ATTACHMENTS

13 DECEMBER 2023

LGAWCS Highlights

Operational

which is 4.5% more than last
year which was a Scheme

record low of 419

Receipt of an unqualified
opinion from the Financial
Auditors, Price Waterhouse

Coopers PwC

Allocation to the Risk
Incentive Program, to be
paid in 20223/24

r

$304m saved through being

a self-insured employer
LGASA successfully extended the 4

RTWSA Self-Insurance license,

securing a term for the next 4 years

$2t5.|8m

to the sector, as per LGASA
Value of Membership report,

in FY2023 due to FY2022
financlal performance and
strong results in FY2023 has
enabled the Scheme Manager
to recommend another S1m
Special Distribution to be paid
in FY2024 and a further $500k
allocation to the LGAWCS Risk

Incentive Program

Strong performance in FY2023, has
enabled a reduction of Member
average contribution rates in
FY2024 from 2,51% to 2.47%

Member

Strong
Member
Performance

34% of Councils will enjoy
rates below 2.2%, attributed
to exceptional claims
performance and 100%
completion of WHS Action

plans

65%
of councils

achieved >85% completion of
WHS action plans,

100%

SA councils

Members of the LGAWCS.

of complimentary WHS, Risk
and Legal Advice delivered

to the sector

N2
o
¢ N

Delivery of the Ageing & Work
Health Program to 36 participating
Councils with confirmation that
the programs will be extended and

expanded in FY2024

Local Government Association
of South Australia

Healthy Lifestyle Programs

delivers Health checks and

Skin Checks to employees
every year

Expansion of
psychological
support

The Psychological Work
Health program will expand
from 8 pilot Members to
the entire sector in FY2024,
addressing an essential

aspect of well-being,
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LGAWCS Claims Snapshot

The integrated end-to-end management
of workers' compensation claims continues

LGAWCS Claims Summary

to yield positive results for the sector. Fy23
FY22
FY21
FY20
FY19
N$E1"IIN7C{IR1RZ)?LAIM COSTS G $ 16.42m
I DELIVERY OF STABLE CONTRIBUTIONS
A 92% 1500+
CLAIMANTS MADE A CLAT DRCIHONS
' FULL RETURN TO WORK
Full or Partial RTW Rates, at Key Milestones (FY 2023)
RTWSA

%
103 Week Milestone

52 Week Milestone

26 Week Milestone

13 Week Milestone

4 Week Milestone

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Reduction in Types of Claims

Top 5 Average Claim Costs

Circulatory system diseases

Did you know?

Although the number of claims has decreased
since the introduction of the RTW Act in 2015,

Mental disorders

Neoplasms (Cancer)

the cost assoclated with psychological claims

has significantly risen. These psychological

claims now make up 7% of all claims, with an Digestive system diseases

average cost exceeding $27,000, This cost Is
) : | RET) All others
58% higher than average cost of all claims

Overall Average

combined

3%

FRACTURES

6% Types of

OTHER INJURIES Injuries
by Claim
)
12% Numbers

WOUNDS, LACERATIONS,
AMPUTATIONS & INTERNAL
ORGAN DAMAGE

11%

NERVOUS SYSTEM & SENSE ORGANS

2%

HEAT, ELECTRICITY
ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS
0,

10% LGAWCS
SOUND & PRESSURE

Claims by
16% Causation
FALLS, TRIPS AND SLIPS

16%

HIT BY OBJECT

Injury to nerves & spinal cord

41%

MUSCULOSKELETAL & CONNECTIVE TISSUE

17%

TRAUMATIC JOINT / LIGAMENT /
MUSCLE / TENDON INJURY TENDON

7%

MENTAL DISORDERS

1%

DIGESTIVE SYSTEM DISEASES

38%

BODY STRESSING

2%

CHEMICALS & SUBSTANCES

6%

HITTING OBJECTS

3%

VEHICLE INCIDENTS & OTHER

7%

MENTAL STRESS
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LGAWCS Healthy Lifestyle
Program Year in Review

[he Healthy Lifestyle Program (HLP) is an annual initiative developed

by the Local Government Association Workers Compensation Scheme

(LC AW S),

The HLP, now In its 24th year, aims to
enhance health awareness, reduce injury
Incidents, and improve the overall health
outcomes of local government employee:
The program Is a collaborative effort
involving all SA counclls, with close to 100%
participation annually, Thanks to the central

funding by LGAWCS, members can access

the program without any direct cost

he program delivery Is entrusted to
CHG, the dedicated service provider
CHGS comprehensive approach, offering
a diverse range of services, has created a
unique and holistic participant experience.
This integration allows the pragram

1o comprehensively address multiple

dimensions of health and well-being

The program encompasses various
components tallored to meet the specific
needs of the local government sector
Notably, the program has responded to the
fising prevalence of psychelogical-related
claims In recent years by incorporating
mental health and resilience Initiatives
Moreoaver, the program includes employes
kin Cancer Screenings and Health

Ass

ments, of which members have long

term valued
Ir 2 and 2023, the HLP reached new

helghts

v adding an executive tier of

initiatives to the program, The executive tier

15 a step forward in promoting well-being
and strong leadership, By supporting senior
leaders, the program aims to create a future
where healthy leadership fuels successful
organisations, The highlight of the executive
tier is the "Healthy Connections - Senior
Leadership Workshop! It's designed ta boost
team dynamics, hind growth epportunities,

and enhance leadership skills, This workshop

equips leaders with tools to tackle challenges
while promoting overall well-being. In
addition, the long-standing Executive Health
Evaluations cantinue to be offered to local
government executive teams and senlor
management, providing an opportunity to
lead by example. Management comes with
challenges, Understanding the Intricacies

of management, the HLP introduced the
Manager Assist Program In 2023, This service
empowers management and supervisory

staft with coping strategies and Insights for

effective employee management, fostering
a balanced and effective leadership
wproach. The executive tier also features
Maonthly Webinars designed for CEOs, These
webinars cover leadership modules from the
Healthy Connections Workshop. They are a

for CEOs to learn from each other®

Sspace
|

experlences and successe:

The Impact of the HLP has been substantial
By empowering employees to mitigate
health risks, the program has successfully
engaged thousands of local government

employees, resulting in improved health

and well-being. The proactive screening and
health initlatives Introduced Introduced 1999

have unde IHI»II'- | y saved numerou! lives and

contnbuted to the positive health outcomes
of participants
A

We sincerely thank members for participating

d committing to the HLP. Together, we are
shaping a healthier and more vibrant future

for our workforce

“Councils Choice” HLP Launch Seminar

he Healthy Lifes

s 1o the CHG health consultants

Lo advertise the upcoming inltiatives, and to Introduce employ

61 Launches, reaching over 700 participants

Participants learn the signs and symptoms of mental health problems, where and how to get

help and what sort of help has been shown by research to be effective

Employee Health Assessments

The alm of the Health Assessment are to Improve the health literacy and health outcomes

of local government employees and assist In reducing Injury rates and iImprove injury outcomes

655 Health Assessments completed in 2023
58% Indoor workers | 16% Outdoor workers | 26% identified as both indoor and outdoor

Skin Cancer Screenings

The Skin Cancer Screenings offered within the Healthy Lifestyle program are designed for the detection
of skin cancers at any stage, The skin screen can result In referrals so Immediate steps can be taken to

avold the devastating effect skin cancers can cause. Each screen takes about 10 minutes to complete

1,123 Employees had a Skin Cancer Screening

108 non-urgent referrals 6 urgent referral at 10% referral rate
CEO & Executive Programs

ItIs well documented that senior leadership support is critical to bulld and sustain successful workplace
health programs. The LGAWCS and CHG are committed to ensuring each councll CEO has a sound

understanding of the Healthy Lifestyle Program in order to achleve successful outcomes

Executive Health Evaluations: 8 Participants

<

Healthy Connections for Senior leadership: 128 Participants

e Program Launch Is designed to Introduce employees to the upcoming year's program,
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LGA Mutual
Liability Scheme

LGAMLS A Year in Review

In reflection on the 2022/23 membership yvear, the LGA Mutual Liability

Scheme (LGAMLS), the sector has continued to perform well,

a Nifia continued to present the South
Australlan communities, It particular the
Hiverland communities constant action
and concern, The 2022/23 River Murray
flood event occurred between Novermber
2022 and February 2023, The significant

heavy rain and Nood events interstate

flowed Into South Australia, The River
Murray flood event was the largest that has
occurred since 1956, and It was recorded
as the third-highest flood ever recorded in

South Australia

Together, the local government Sector
worked and supported one another
without hesitation, The long hours and
hard work that staff put In and contractors
that put aside differences served thelr
communities exceptionally well, This flood
event showed what true local government
spirt is about—lending a hand to others
for the safety of the community. The

MI 'I‘-'n‘v

GAMI 15 proud to be able to provide

the unique value It holds to this situation

15 a key part of Local Government Risk

15), a mature, flexible and
effective risk management structure for the
ocal government

El Nifo has not been officially declared,

but a dry, hot summer has been predicted,
which brings a different environmental
15ks such as bushfires. This year was

ignificant as it was the 40th Anniversary

of the Ash Wednes Jushfires. The fires

were devastating, lives were lost, homes,
cattle and the livellhood of farmers

Only four years later, in 1987, the local
government in Australia was experiencing

difficulties with public llability, Clalm:

Continued 100% membership builds

were high and escalating, and the policy
premiums were increasing at a rapid rate
Councils were choosing to limit their
ndemnity limit in an attempt to reduce
the cost of claims

he Infamous "Stirling Bushhire® brought

nto sharp focus the tragic and costly
consequences of a Council falling In
ts statutory duty to properly manage
ts own affairs. The District Council of
tirling had falled to properly manage

ts (high-risk) waste depot {(contractually),
a burn-off fire ignited by the contracted
Depot Manager escaped on a high

fire danger day, The result was equal

to $24m in property damage. The
Contractor declared himself bankrupt
the following day, leaving the Council

s the negligent authority responsible
for the subsequent civil liability, At the
time, the Councll held a §2m (limit)
lability policy, The state government

had no alternative but to provide
hinanclal support to rescue the Councll

A condition of this support was that

the LGA, as the peak body for the local
qovernment sector, had to address this
nadequacy to guarantee that the state

mment would never again be

qgov

exposed to a inanclal disaster as posed
by the District Council of Stirling

n 1989, the Local Government
Association took the initiative and

established the LGAMI

S, commencing
operation on 30 June 1989, This event
was a signlficant influence In the

establishment of the LGAMLS

the soli ff”l itform upon which risk

maturity and the ability to respond is established. The ongoing certainty of

100% sector memberst ¢ Wows LG AMI

S to continue to deliver programs

for ouw umnque risks, taflored '|1'|if"”'|.",“ and risk advic e, and premium ¢ faim

management services that ¢

ontinue to deliver financial suce

ess for members
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Mutual Liability Scheme

Local Government Association

of South Australia

Overseen by the LGASA Mutual Board and
In partnership with the LGA, the LGAMLS
continues to dellver and suUpport a diverse
range of risk services and selutions that
address the evolving risk profile of each
member and the sector. These risks are
shaped not only by each local environment
but significantly influenced by State and
Commonwealth |A."]"»|.\'|-.H' nd ¢ licy
directions, the state of the economy, natural

disasters and global events

The LGAMLS claims team continues

1o provide a comprehensive claims
management and advocacy service for civil
llabllity claims made against a member lor
property loss, personal injury and/or financlal
loss. In addition, the claims management
service extends to include reactive risk
management advice and support. From a
simple trip/fall on the footpath to a complex
planning and development matter, where the
spectrum of claims is immense, the provisior
|5-|.ll\‘!'ll[lln",l',l|'u||(lH‘~|4|‘IllyH"HI.HH'IIH'UI
service that can respond on behalf of the
sector Is essential to the ongoing financlal

s of the LGAMLS

succes

This vear, the claims team haove
delivered agaln, resolving highly
fl‘.’.'t')( ited claims and effec .',“,"0')",’
manaaqing statutory immunities
that continue to protect the local
government sector, From our in-depth
knowledge of the sector’s profile,
claims history, and civil liabllity, and
with the services of our dedicated leqal
panel, the LGAMLS Claims team has
bullt a reputation for producing cost
effective and efficient claim results
in the face of the challenging local
government environment in which

our members operate,

In addition, the Legal and Compliance
Officer, Regional Risk Consultants and
Strategic Risk team continued to provide
support to members in maintaining
maturing risk management framework:
bullding thelr risk systems, and mitigating

current and emerging risks

The LGASA Mutual Board recognises and
supports the value of investing in all forms
of risk - identification, profiling, mitigation,

management fundinc 3, Claims and resources

In the past year, this extended 1o high-profile
risk programs and guidance material that
positively influenced local government's
clalm and risk exposure, Continued support
of IResponda (Natural Disaster) Emergency
Management Framework, continued
success of the Aetodrome Risk Management
Program, Behaviour Standards Risk
Management Service tor Elected Members
and the most recent program being the
Waste Management Authority Risk Profiling
Program, and the continued development

of Best Practice guides and resources

The LGASA Mutual Board, the CEQ and the
LGAMLS team are committed and aligned In
their approach to achleveing the objectives
of the LGAMLS, while continuing to navigate
the evolving risk environment that loca

government faces leading into 2023/,

The LGAMLS is a local government self

insured discretionary mutual Indemnity

scheme, established via the Loca
Government Act 1999 - delivering the
broadest civil llability protection and
quality, value added services. In support

ofthe 1

y sector membership, the state
government provides financlal certainty
via the Treasurer's Indemnity, Our
members can be confident that the LGA,
In partnership with the state government,
will continue to provide a financlal model
that underpins this unique Scheme while
still being affordable and financially

prudent

A key aspect of the long-term success
ind stabllity of the LGAMLS Is the delivery
to members of the broadest pratection,
customised to the risk profile of local
government, This is possible through the
anqoing maintenant e of reinsurance that

protects the Scheme and its members

he reinsurance program that the
Scheme secures each year constantly
evolves as emerging risks present

Strong trust has been developed with
the Scheme's reinsurance partners

aver a long period through the local
government's continued focus on risk
management practices and strong sector
collaboration

We take the opportunity to thank all

our members for the local government

sectors 100% ongoing commitment to

membership of the LGAMLS

Member Stories - Impact

River Murray Flood

In the latter part of 2022 and the early months of
2023, the communities along the Murray River faced
a pressing threat; the level of the River Murray was
of great concern thrusting the region into a state of
uncertainty and urgency.

The nver’s swelling levels ralsed alarms, prompting contemplation of worst
case scenarios like how were councils going to prepare If the riverbank levee
system falls and the community being directly impacted?

Riverland councils had an enormous job ahead of them. Safequarding thelr
communities while preventing panic demanded a delicate balance, along
with addressing the levee banks as much as a council was able to within
their powers

In times of crisls, counclls can be limited with thelr powers to respond In an
emergency, the LGAMLS as well as LGRS as a whole were able to assist and
guide counclls when concern for the community and councll employees
was high to avold risk

We would like to acknowledge all River Counclls and their efforts in
protecting their communities along with their road to recovery

“The guidance from the LGAMLS was extremely important

when understanding the powers in which council were able to
act within an emergency, this had an absolute impact when
protecting our community.”

Tim Pfeiffer

Lirector Corporate and Community Services,

Renmark Paringa Council
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LGAMLS Highlights

Treasurers Indemnity

The Treasurers Indemnity provided by the South Australian government in support

-
of a sector-based indemnity scheme, has been in place since the Local Operatlonal

Government Association Mutual Liability Scheme's inception in 1989,

The Indemnity was successfully extended management approach across the whole
In September 2022 until June 2033, The sector behind a common approach, this
continuing intergovernmental agreement way we can be conhdent in our efforts m
is vital, it supports the whole of the local to ensure the safety and security of our
government Sector, which benefts the communiting r%
South Australian community
Clinton Jury M
With the LGAMLS having 100% council LGA CEO / Director &/

participation, it ensures a unified risk Estimated value to the

sector as per LGASA Value Continued provision of broad
Treasurers Indemnity agreement of Membership report civil liability protection, satisfying
extended for 10 years Member obligations under 5142 LG

ACT (Duty to Insure against liability)

Member

100%
SA councils

are committed to maintaining despite volatile llability/
membership, casualty insurance market,

Delivery
of sector
advocacy

on LG statutory immunities ; 2
Elected Member Behavioural

members

development, legacy landhll
sites, vegetation under engaged in the Strategic Risk
power lines program. Strategic & Regional
Delivery of Waste Management Risk Advisors support Members in
Risk Profiling Program applying a risk management lens
across a complex sector,

Item 16.7- Attachment 1 Page 77



COUNCIL MEETING ATTACHMENTS

13 DECEMBER 2023

23/114145

LGAMLS Claims Profile

The LGAMLS continues to provide advocacy
and professional management services
focused on achieving efficient claim results

and outcomes for members.

The LGAMLS claims team provides a comprehensive claims
management and advoacacy service for civil liabllity claims made
against a member for property loss, personal injury and/or financial
loss. In addition, the claims management service extends to include

reactive risk management advice and support

From a simple trip/fall on the footpath to a complex planning and
development matter - where the spectrum of claims In between |
Immense, th ‘ll“,‘HlIIHV'I\Vl"'|' te, mature claims management
service that can respond on behalf of the sector is essential to the

onaoing hinancial success of the LGAMLS

CLAIMS PROFILE

The LGAMLS claims profile reflects a long
term commitment to risk management
with low volatility in claim trend

CLAIMS ADVOCACY
The LGAMLS has developed appropriate

Current Claims Cost By Net Incurred

$250k

10% $100k - $250k
23% $10k - $100k

SO0k - $10k

The latest LGA
Member Survey
confirmed that
Members rate the
claims and risk
advice as 9 out

of 10 in terms of
importance.

89% of respondents
agree that the
broad protection
delivered by the
LGAMLS is good
value for money.

5%

PROFESSIONALS SERVICE

5%

LEISURE

4%

BUILDING / PROPERTY

Aim

The LGAMLS continues to provide advocacy and professional management

services focused on achieving efficient claim results and outcomes for Members.

38%

ENVIRONMENTAL / RESERVE

LGAMLS Claim
Numbers by
Causation

(Last 5 Years)

25%

ROADS

23%

FOOTPATH / NATURE STRIP

{
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Risk Management

. m Councils receive unique, customised services designed
o minimise risk outcomes.

Continued delivery of customised Risk Management

; ; : Py advice, advocacy and strategy development.
Members receive provision of regulatory and risk management services and functions within

a dynamic legislation-driven civil liability environment:

Playground Guidelines

Aim to assist Councils in understanding their legal and
risk management responsibilities in connection

Recognising that identifying and managing risk is fundamental to members, with playground ownership. The guide provides a

the LGAMLS advocates, funds and develops policies for consistent engagement comprehensive and practical overview of playground

and implementation across the sector. equipment standards, including the latest updates.

Risk support to
Waste Management Authorities

(WMA) to effectively navigate the regulatory environment.

e & 06 0 O Assisting Local Government with the implementation of

wwww e LOCAl Government Reform.

rrovision of Risk and Safety Advisors Enhancement of @Viation program, Ky \

g 0.0
and Stl'ateglc RlSk COhSUltantS. ‘ minimising liability risk exposures by demonstrating Ny ' [
. compliance with CASA and best practice standards for certified S
aerodromes and aeroplane landing areas in emergency scenarios. S o

Supporting the LGA and Sector with the transition A

l()MwPl ! ’ D I t . . . . ‘N
ED ‘\ Ay —eVe OpmEY @® © Child Safe Environment Guidelines oo S
"N

& l nfra structure ACt' incorporate the National Principles for Child Safe

) Organisations into the legislative obligations, refreshes key
terminology such as ‘harm and risk of harm) and offers

a range of resources specifically for Local Government.
LGAMLS Member Training Forums,

providing an introduction to civil liability and risk exposure. ‘\Jlj)
his program includes an overview of the LGAMLS, its functions, Ongoing financial support for the delivery of iResponda
claims management, statutory immunities, and risk and * and the Local Government Functional Support Group
%,
'0

Provision of

compliance resources for members. These training sessions (LGFSG), enabling LGAMLS Members to effectively prepare
are designed to evolve and continue to cover emerging risks

and new guidance materials on how to make a positive impact. and respond to a natu ral dlsaStEI‘.
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Corporate
Governance
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Corporate Governance

LGASA Mutual Pty Ltd is committed to maintaining and promoting high standards of corporate
governance. This means the framework of rules, relationships, systems and processes within
and by which authority is exercised and managed within our company, and our structures

for accountability.

A

Overview More Information on LGASA Mutual Pty Role of the LGA

td corporate governance is avallable on

LGASA Mutual Pty Ltd Is committed to A 2

GASA Mutual Pty Lid v ASA

vebsite {lga.sa.qov o The LGA Is the sole shareholder of LGASA

maintaining and promoting high standarcs au/mutual) Mutual Pty Ltd, The LGA s responsible for

of corporat wvernance, This means

¢ The ultimate operations, management

Structure and performance of the schemes

the framework of rules, relationships

systemns and processes within and by

which authority Is exercised and managed GASA Mutual Pty Ltd is a wholly owned o Appointing, dismissing and remunerating
within our company, and our structures for subsidiary of the Local Government Independent directors and the CEO of
accountability Association of South Australia and was LGASA Mutual Pty Ltd

established In 2018, It was set up by the

This statement outlines our principal A na the Sct 1 for th
) < - : A Approving the Scherme Rules for the
| ical Government Assoclation of South P J
govermance arrangements and practices LGAWCS and LGAMLS

Australia (LGA) following the restructure ¥ : HIVR

for effective decision-making and
of the L(

A's self-managed Indemnity

sccountabliity, The LGASA Mutual Pty Ltd Delegating various functions and duties
Board reqularly revi Its qovernanc chemes. LOASA Mutual Pty Ltd combines to LGASA Mutual Pty Ltd
U \ « y WICWS » VE TN e
the management of the LGA Mutual

arrangements and practices to ensure they

Appointing the auditors of LGASA Mutual
y Ltd

jability Scheme and the LGA Workers
are in line with requlatory requirements and Pt

Compensation S5¢cheme into ane entity
developments in industry expectations, and

A J Approving LGASA Mutual Pty Ltd
that they continue to support LGASA Mutual GASA Mutual Pty Ltd operates under a P J 4
(including the schemes) budget, annual

Joard and

Pty Ltd business objectives constitution adopted by the LGA |
member contributions and financial
\ aset of Scheme Rules, also adopted by the
ound governance principles are important statements, on the recommendation of
y f GA Board, after consulting the Minister for !
lor the Board to establish the framework the LGASA Mutual Board
ical Government
far how It oversees the Schemes to achieve
o LGAWCS and LGAML!

operational objectives, fulfil legislative GASA Mutual Pty Ltd has its own skills
requirements, recognise and manage risk based independent Board and employs a ¢ Delegating varlous functions and dutles
and undertake effective declsion making Chiel Executive Officer who Is responsible 1o LGASA Mutual Pty Ltd
for manaqing the Schemes on behalf of the
The Board embraces governance principles o Appolnting the auditors of LGASA Mutual
GA. The Mutual Board reqularly reports to
to ensure that accountability and integrity Py Ltd

and Is accountable to the LGA Board on its
are evident from the manner In which the

operations and performance Approving LGASA Mutual Pty Ltd
chemes performs their functions, The I f

(including the schemes) budget, annual

dopted principles provide a practical Services under the Schemes are provided

member contributions and financial
approach whilst achieving flexibility and by JLT Risk Solutions Pty Ltd trading as Local

staternents, on the recommendatior
efficlency In a challenaing and ever Government Risk Services under a hixed

of the LGASA Mutual Board
changing operating environment to term performance-based master service
protect the interests of the LGA and agreement (MSA)

scheme Members

" f 3] | mC | & [ 14 \ (2] n
W Corporate Governance W

45
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Corporate Governance

Remuneration Scheme Rules budget. It Is also responsible for monitoring The Board Dascia Bennett Joanne Denley

management’s progress in implementine
received by the LGA The LGAWCS and the LGAMLS are both W -'u]..r.-[:.f,” progress i Impementog David Holstor INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

I to th { | Rul Appointed; October 2018 Appointed: January 2022
v A subject I elr rtespective Scheme Rules,
he LGA receives a fixed fee, indexed 1b) e To oo e CHAIR (Concludes: June 2026) (Concludes: June 2024)
The Scheme Rules outlines the ebligation: The Board meets at a minimum quarterly X ) ' \ ' ‘
for Inflation, for its role in owning and ) : view the LGASA Mut Py Ltd Appointed: October 2018
p that Scheme members must comply o review ine LLALA Mutual Fty LK " ) ne Jascla has had an accomplished career loanne Is a professional Independent
managing the Schemes, Mare specifically . I ——— t the ncludes: June 2025)
the LGA fee from the Schemes Incorporates with to enjoy the many benefits that the periormance ana l. 0gress against the ' | ‘ spanning over 25 years in leadership and Director and Business Advisor. With her
vdonted ¢ wayv. The Board 1s respons J JAVIe Olsty y an experienced protessian () A
\ wckriowledain its role | tting )chemes provide as well as outlining how adopted strategy, The Board is responsibl David Holston is an experlenced professiona management across both commercial appolintment In January 2022, showcasing a
ISC OCRNOWISK 3 1IN 5€ . f ste the o ' [0 ) wvith a r VN Wor COA
; . Wiy . : i the Schemes must be managed by the 1< or administering the Scheme for and on with an accomplished career spanning and non-profit sectors. She has held career spanning over 35 years dedicated to
up the schemes, its role In negotiating behalf of the LGA in line with Its delegated wer four decades in the insurance
GASA Mutual ar NTIO (7 \aQers pehalf o 0 ) >\ s deleqater Qy ) ecaaes I surance, pivotal roles. ine a CEO and Se orporate qovermnance and Vi ,
reinsurance, for "H'\Iw‘l‘l'.\'ill' role the LGA \ VRRLIE S {F: SCIVRY b wtr tes | the heme Rules, | neral uperannuation, and Investment Industry s s SRR gmaman CaBnd naveian
' fosdit p for s L of {Local Government Risk Services) AUtNOrties anc 1€ Scheme Kule ngenera sUperannua ves iy Executive positions in diverse arenas such | ' l ’
rovides 1o the hehemes, lor approval o Y . : & \/ari 2 avnertis ey fer expertise extends across various
f P ‘ ¥ p terms, the Board Is responsible for His versatile expertise spans across as superannuation, financlal services, ex| I
budget, inancial statements and Schems Ihe Scheme Rules are required to be various sectors including Life and General ” D Rt ot o Industries, both nationally and
« Providing ( nit { 1eqK qgover nt, an gdustry cons m :
Rules, and for monitonng the performance adopted by the LGA Board, referred Providing and monitoring strateg Insurances, Health, Workers Compensation 4 Internationally, where she’s cultly
of the Schemes, In FY2023 this fee was to the Minister for Local Government direction and Third Party Motor Vehicle Insurances Her proy ertlse encompasses a operational efficiencies and adeptly
S117m (FY2022 S1,14m) and represe for consultation and published in the « Establishing financlal targets and ; b il Ak pectrum of vital functions, ranging from managing Industrial relations, Joanne’
EIVING as the 111 since Octobe! ;
3.0% of member contributions to the government gazette, priofr to coming into monitoring performance \ \ o trateglc Planning, Finance, and Operations legacy as the first fermale to join the Board
g 2 il 2018, he brings a wealth of knowledge : :
Schemes effect | el 5 ;‘ o M to Enterprise Risk Management, displaying of Directors for Bridgestone Australia Group
« Lo cowit wlicable laws i and leadership to his role 1S Current ;
e | | i , l fa ' ; ’ ompliance with applicable laws and | ~' exceptional acumen In navigating complex exemplifies her dedication to change
he LGA also leases level one of LG Houst ne S5cheme Rules were last revised ane P engagements Include acting as the Chair
regulation . operating environments and driving management and transformational project
to the Schemes, at market rates, generating endorsed by the LGA Board In August of the Investment Advisory Committee | | " p
fective manaaeme o risks p organizational excelience ACross diverse sectors like manutactunng,
rental income (including rent expense 2021 (followed by successiul Ministerial « Effective management of risk to the South Australian Public Trustee, a
> retall, financial services, and education
reimbursements) of 512 (FY2022 consultation in September 2021) and » Protection and optimisation of LGAWC! position that underscores his commitment ducationally, Dascia’s foundation is firmly
5351,734) to the LGA became effective from 13 January 2022 5501 to prudent hnancial management established with a Public Policy degree Presently, Joanne’s portfolio features an array
{after being published in the Gazette that Simultaneously, he serves as an Investment from Flinders University. Her pursuit of of influential Board positions, including her
-l"lllf“-nll‘Y 'l""""f:i.:""'." :‘"“l”” . SUrir The services ¢ 14' V¢ rovided | ),
¢ ¥ y day) Ensuring the Vi N ver providec Consultant to the Wyatt Benevolent knowledae has been further enriched by role as the Board Chair of Minda Inc Group
(FY2022 589,255) lor the dire livery of smbe sods
‘ " i i v | ¥ Rul labl ASA ool o Institution as well as a Board member and her attainment of a Riploma of Financial and TAFE SA as well Director of AVM(
umber of services Mutual uding he S5cheme Rules are avallable on LGASA
number of services 1o | including bl « Reqular reports on these items are Chair of the Investment Committee of Services and a Certificate in Superannuation | ; | | lud
Viutual's Pty Lid website e oannes academic achlevements, including
« Financial Management- including provided to the LGA statewide Superannuation Fund before its Fund Management, Additionally, she |s e ;
) '3 an MBA with a specialization In Globa
management of extermal auditor, merger into Host Plus in 202 a Graduate of the Australian Institute of

Role of the Board Cost of OPerating Entrepreneurlal Management as wel

M . Company Directors (GAICD) and completed
David's journey s a testament to his | :‘ .‘, S ! ; ki as a Fellow of the Australian Institute of
e AGSM Executive Proa frey pe
lisaccountable  LGASA Mutual orofound Impscton the Ainarisl ector the AGSM Executive Program from th

A L \ ) 2|8 " v
financial services as well as oversight of to the LGA for its performance and that of and Nis strateqlic acumen as he continues to Australian School of Business (University

management reports, consolidated

reports, payroll, creditor and general The The LGASA Mutual B Company Directors, reflect her commitment

GASA Mutual received at total of $704 854 A p z 0 continuous learning and adaptability In
Audit & Risk Committee and internal audit the Schemes It manages ‘ \ Influence the Industry’s landscape of NSW) reflects her commitment to the ever-evolving business landscape
works plan relating to scheme activities (FY2022 56 2), contributed equally continuous learning and leadership
The Board has set thelr vision *to provide from the LGAWCS and LGAMLS, towards the development
+ Executive support - for preparation of unique cover and risk services that meet our corporate cost of operating during the year David's journey is a testaoment to his
minutes, agendas, correspondence. members' needs” [These corporate costs Include the cost of profound Impact on the financial sector
norts and general support 1« ' CEO the Boar O o n nsultants " 3
reports and general support to the P Basnd fiaw Bfdrieoriranidid the Board and CEO, legal and consultant and his strateqgic acumen as he continues
and reimbursing the LGA for the provisior n L )
+ Office accommodation charge- for doption to the LGA Board of LGAS ual ‘ ) S ‘ to influence the industrys landscape.
¢ of inance, executive support, and office
provision of ICT and office space for the Pty Ltd's strateqgy to achlieve this vision
G accommaodation as outline above
CEO ncluding its three-year business plan and

W Corporate Governance W | f | W Corporate Governance W 1
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Jenny White

State Government GACEQ / Direx

Hepresentative / Director

Jenny White
STATE GOVERNMENT DIRECTOR

Appointed: July 20.2(

Jenny's appointment to the Board of the
LGASA Mutual Pry Ltd. In July 2020, serving
15 the State Government Representative,
marks the culmination of a distinguished
areer spanning over 16 years in the
Insurance Incdustry, encompas .:II‘]M'IM

public and private sectors

Her journey within the South Australian
Government Financing Authority (SAFA) has

seen her ho

various senior positions over

the past 12 years, At SAFA, she has been

Instrumental In safequarding the State's

economic health by mitigating catastrophic
Insurance los x-'.Mn:A||‘.wl|r‘i[|"n'|'lt‘» |-!-".
of the model litigant are upheld In the
management of insurance claims under
the South Australian Government's self

Insurance arrangements

In addition, Jenny elfectively manages a
spectrum of insurance-related activities,
Including the Treasurer's indemnity for
local government, bullding indemnity

Insurance, construction Insurance and the

jovernment’s invelvement in the National
Redress Scheme for survivors of Institutional

hild sexual abuse

The constitution of LGASA Mutual Pty

Ltd provides for the State Government

to appoint an alternative director for its
wppointed director to ensure that the
State Government has a representative at
Il meetings. This is in recognition to the
vital role the State Government provides in
providing the sector with various statutory
Immunities and the Treasurer's Indemnity as
well as the statutory nature of the Schemes,
Jenny's alternative director (appointed by

the Minister) Is Tianna Easther

B Corporate Governance W |

tor Chair

David Holston

Clinton Jury
LGA DIRECTOR

Appointed: October 202

As Chief Executive Officer of the Loca
Government Association of SA, Clinton Jury

Is committed to fostering growth, providing

strong advocacy and working collaboratively

with stakeholders for the beneht of South

Australia’s councils

Clinton Is a passionate and Influential leader
with extensive expernence leading member
hased organisations, having held executive
positions with the Australlan Institute of
Company Directors and Australian Red

LIOSS,

For over 30 years, he has led teams to
achieve innovative member and community
engagement, deliver policy change and
implement commert .||'l|‘>!u-;||-". 1C1Oss the
healthcare, education, and humanitarian

services sectors

Clinton is driven to deliver positive

outcomes for local government which

support communities and enrich the state®
liveabllity, He |

currently a Director of the

A

cal Government Finance Authority, LGASA

Mutual Services, LG Procurement, Cured
Cystic Flbrosis Foundation, Ambassador
for CEO Sleepout and member of the

Commercial Advisory Committee for St

Vincent de Paul SA, and Advisory Committee

of Austrian Association of SA

Board composition

The Board is a skills-based board which is
comprised of members with appropriate
skills, experience and attributes appropriate
f

tor the Schemes and their activities, It

Is the LGA'S policy that a majority of its

directors must be independent, The Board |

Dascia Bennett

ndependent Director

Joanne Denley

Independent Director

comprised of five members with three being
ndependent Including the chair, More

specifically the Board comprlses of

+ Three independent directors including

the chair
o The LGACEO
+ A State Government appointed director

The LGA CEO and the State appointed
director are permitted to nominate an

alternative director to act in thelr absence

Appointment of directors

The LOA Board of Directors are responsible
for the appointment of the three
ndependent directors and for appointing
the chalr in accordance with its Policy on
appointing Directors to its subsidiaries. The
GA Board will have consideration to the
skill set required on the LGASA Mutual Board
when determining sultable candidates for

appointment

Ihe three independent Rirectors (including
Chalr) are appointed on a staggered basls
1o ensure succession planning and a
continuation of skills and knowledge on the
Board, Directors and the Chair are entitled to
week re-nomination at the end of thelr term
n of
the LGA Board. The Chair and Independent

He-appointment is at the sole discretic

Nrectors should only serve a maximum of

”'l"l' consecutive terms three year terms

The relevant Minister having legislative
oversight of the Schemes is responsible
for appointing the State Government

/director on the Board and

representative/
thelr proxy. The term of this appointment,
thelr removal and replacement Is the sole

determination of the relevant Minister

Corporate Governance

The LGA Board Is responsible for the
appoeintment of the Chief Executive Officer
of the LOA who automatically becomes a

Board member of LGASA Mutual

Director independence

The Board and the LGA requires a majority
of Its directors to be independent. LGASA
Mutual Pty Ltd recognises that having a
majority of Independent directors helps
1o ensure that the declsions of the Board
reflect the best Interests of LGASA Mutual
Pty Ltd and its members generally, and that
those declsions are not blased towards the
interests of management, the LGA or any

other qQrouy

In determining whether a director i
Independent, the Board considers whethe

the director is free of interests that could {or

could be perce | to) materially interfere
with the Independent exercise of the
director's jJudgement and the capacity to

act in the best interests of LGASA Mutual

Pty Ltd and Its members generally

Each of LGASA Mutual's non-executive

directors has been assessed as independent

Conflicts of interest

Directors are required to disclose all
Interests that may potentlally conflict
with thelr duties, If there is a possibility of
a conflict of interest with a matter being
consldered or v upon, the director
it for the

Is not permitted to be pres

(

consideration of that matter or vote and will

not be provided with commercially sensitive

information related to the matter

W Corporate Governance W 1

Access to information

and advice

Directors have access to management to
request iInformation

Directors are also entitled, with the approval

of the Chalr, to obtain independent
nal advice at LGASA Mutual Pty Ltd

profess

wpense relating to thelr role as an LGASA

Mutual Pty Ltd director

Attendance at meetings

Details of director attendance at meetings

during the year are set out below

Director Board
Meetings

Workshops/

Briefing

Sessions

Dasla Bennett

loanne Denley 575 11
clinton Jury 575 11
Jenny White 5/5 |
Nathan Petrus 0/0 0/0

0/0 0/0

lane Lawton

Meetings of the Board are not open to the
public due to the commercial in conhdence
nature of the business conducted by

the Board and the personal Information

ontained in the Board papers

Directors Remuneration

The remuneration of directors of LGASA
Mutual Pty Ltd are determined by the LGA
Board, The LGA Board aims to attract and
retain high quality independent directors
1o LGASA Mutual Pty Ltd. As a result, It seeks
1o set the LGASA Mutual Pty Ltd directors
remuneration at a level that acknowledges
the directors'time required to fulfil thelr
responsibilities, s commiserate with the
skills and experience that the Board seeks
1o attract, and seeks to set its remuneration
at levels consistent with ather similar

organisation

The LGA Board has determined that the
level of remuneration payable for directors

of LGASA Mutual Pty Ltd are as follows
¢ |Independent Chair S64,032 (45GL)

¢ Independent Director: §32.000 (4+-5GL)

* State Director Snil
o |LGASA Director Snil
¢ Alternative Directors Snil

During the year, the following payments

were made to directors

Director Remuneration

Clinton Jury S0
David Holston 564,032 (+5GL)
[Dasla Bennett §32,000 (+5GL)
§32.000 (+5GL)

Joanne Denley

enny White 50
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Corporate Governance

In addition to the director’s equlations and codes of conduct approach to evaluating and Improving the The Audit and Risk Committee reports to the Audit and Risk Committee and the LGASA PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC)
remuneration, directors are eligible for floct t of rish el effectiveness of financlal management LGA Board and meets with the Mutual Chair Mutual Board in 2023 appolnted external auditors for a period of
« Ehechive manadgement ol fsKs and Claims
the reimbursement of any travel and risk management, internal controls and at least annually i three years, / sibllities,
GASA Mutual strateqglc risk are reviewed by

accommodation expenditure associated + Regular reports to the LGA and LGASA governance processes : the Board at bi-annually
with attending LGASA Mutual Pty Ltd Mutual Boards LGASA Mutual Risk SRR -

A Mutual Pty Ltd and provides an
The Audit and Risk Committee has been
meetings, events and activities, « Reqular llalson with the CEO constituted to facilitate Management Framework Internal Audit opinion on whether LGASA Mutual Pty

Ltd hnanclal report glves a true and falr

R°|e Ofthe CEO « Oversiaht of relevant activities to facilitate LGASA Mutual Is committed to manaaing The LGA'S Audit and Risk Committee has view of the LGASA Mutual Pty Ltd Group'’

ws the financial reporting of

CEO AdViSOI’y committee achieving the LGAs objectives in an its key strategic and operational risks, In adopted a three-year Internal audit plan financial position and financial performance
he LGA Board of Directors has appointe LCACA Moial 1€ et disedas o I o Gt (Y e order to recognise and effectively manage that includes aspects of LGASA Mutual's ind whether It complies with Australian
(ASTLY ViU Cauitec | (8 14 y CONSUTUTION -l ¥ b y . ‘ v I y W AUSTTAIN
Dr. Andrew Johnson as Chief Executive to have a CEO Advisory Committee, LGASA Including the dellvery of advocacy, and risk there must be a sound system of ri Operations. The results from these Internal Accounting Standards and the Corporations
Officer of LGASA Mutual Pty Ltd, Dr Mutual has chosen to adopt the LGAS CEO non-commerclal (assist) and commercla management and internal controls, LGAS/ audits are repofted to and reviewed by the Regulations 2001 (where applicable)
Johnson's current contract of employment Advisory Group as its ad V Qroup. (advance) services to member: Mutual recognises it Is responsible for GA's Audit and Risk Committee ‘
expires in June 2028 ' instilling a risk control culture throughout PwC's opinion on the 2022-23 hinanclal
Ack, V. B MnAret wareln ¢ e Internal Audit function has full access < tatt f1hic An Yanar
bl The peimary responsibility of the CEO Advisory + Advisory services and oversight a the organisation, so that key risks can be L rnal Aut " unction has full ac report at the back of this Annual Report
he CEQ Is responsible for manac LGA Glred relatlr 3 X to the Audit and Risk Committe also has
e CEQ s respon rmanaging LG Group Is to advise the Board of Directors on required relating 1o the activities of the identified, managed and properly resolved o the Audit and Ri mmittee, It also h ; \ ‘ s
Mutual Pty Ltd in accordance with the Al ) & at unrestricted access 1o all LGASA Mutual Pty are invited to attend each Audit and
? 4 ; y the design and delivery of policy and services LGA' controlled entities in the context in the normal course of operations < 0 " AR Risk Committee meet { meats with
strategy and policies approved by the Board of their ongoing value and returm o M ' o R td records, property and personnel, The WskLommitiee mecting and meets wi
I bl to members, The Board met at least annually ! v L { Management iImplements the Board | ’ the Committee without management
he CEQ IS responsible for monitoring the vettment t s e ntermal Audit function Is Independent of C A \ v QUL Malle
' s 4 I g M with the CEO Advisory Committee as part of its investment to members; approved strateqgy and manages LGASA ; dit lunction Is Indepe 1t

) ¢ ) esent at least once annually.

service contract with Local Government Risk GASA Mutual Pty Ltd external auditor prest /
¢ ¢ nina dav M Py one s withi ™ Y

; annual planning day « Enhancing the credibllity and objectivity Viutual Pty Ltd operations within the

ervices and reporting to the Board on the a J-3ppf
LOar dRPION

d risk appetite, Management PwC has provided confirmation that
External Auditor there have been no

the auditor Independence requirements

s of internal and external inancial auditing

SCIVICES providers, schemes and company’s LGASA Mutual also recognis

ontraventions of

Is respansible for [dentifying, monitoring,

and reporting,

performance and recommending Initlatives to consult and engage a large cross-section

mitigating and reporting on risks

e » " e S . . " § e y lote .t y cprvice " ¢ y| Ut 1 ‘/ ‘f ") AA l A Py

to Improve their performance of stakeholders to determine the services « Effective management of risk and the The constit ;” f LGASA Mutual Pty of the Corporations Act 2001 and no
required t members, As sur protection of the LOA's assets LGASA Mutual adopted th WA risk I requires the LGA to appoint '. X cantraventions of any applicable code of

Role of the utilising the services of the LGA ( framework, and Mutual’s risk appetite and external auditor to Mutual, In 2019

rofessional conduct in relation to Its audit
« Compliance with laws and regulations as i) o ‘ po l

Group, LGASA Mutual will also take advantage

statements were considered by the
Scheme Manager B v S i N well as use of best practice guidelines

he Board of LGASA Mutual Pty Ltd has groups within the sector to obtain input into « The effectiveness of systems of intermal
entered into a fixed term performance the right mix of services to be deliver to our control: and

based contract with JLT Risk Solutions membership to ensure we are continually able )

Pty Ltd trading as Local Government Risk to meet their neec: * T RININON 01 80 SireCtive s of
arided 15k Hha o iiior ot day o has communication between the external

services to our members and act as the Audit and Risk Committee Aucitor, other service provicers s

applicable, management and the Board
Schemes Manager to enable the effective

LGASA Mutual i1s required under its

management of the Schemes operations : The Audit and Risk Committee receives
) A constitution to utilise the LGA's Audit and R i

In general terms, the Scheme Manager i reports from the CEO on relevant matter
Risk Committe

responsible for o ’ affecting the risk, inance and governance
The primary objective of the Audit and Risk of LGASA Mutual, These including business

o Administering the Scheme
Committee |s to protect and create value for plan and budget, risk appetite, strategic ris

+ Preparation of inancial budgets, report the Board and its stakeholders, It provides statements, and actuary reports,

and contributions advice and recommendations to the Board

f contributing to a systematic and disciplined
« Compliance with applicable laws

W Corporate Governance W | W Corporate Governance W
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Financial
Summary

Financial Summary

The Board continued in its endeavours to keep council contributions as low as practically

possible, while maintaining a sustainable scheme, This led to contribution rate remaining

unchanged for the LGAWCS at 2.51% during the year while the LGAMLS contributions

increased by 5%.

Risk Incentive Financial

Program results*

LGAWCS §268k $1.10m

LGAMLS S199k 51.10m

Accumulated Contribution
surplus increases

S18.60m Nil

518.00m 5.09%

" il 1IN ) I | ) thr hit Hisk Ir 1 | "y
I | parite deposit the LG the f ik rantec
The operating result for the LGA Workers Outstanding provisions {(after relnsurance
Compensation Scheme for FY2023 was recelvables) as at 30 June 2023 are projected
ysurplus of $1.13m (FY2022 surplus of ta be $21,10m. This is higher than last year's
S875k). This Is exclusive of payments provisions of $19.49m almost exclusively
to the risk iIncentive program of 5268k due to higher case estimates emeraing late

(FY2022 $345k)

he Scheme declared Inthe 2023 development year
y special distribution in 2023 of $1.00m

(FY2022 NIL) to members, The total \ R
S1B.60m (FY2022 $1845m), This Is more
comprenensiv leficit for the year was

S137k (FY2022 surplus of $530k) after the

band which Is between 1.2 to 1.5 times
special distribution and nsk Incentive fund
the maximum of APRA
payments 1o members
requirements and those implied under

The result for the year represents a RTWSA's minimum Financial Guarantee
favorable variance of $400k from the requirements, and this equates to a target
adopted 2022/23 budget, This was surplus of between $12.80m and $16.00m

primarly due to an Increase In Investment millior

Income resulting from increases in interest i
he operating result for the LGA Mutual
hl‘- St l“."“l

Liability Scheme for FY2023 was a surplus

Ihe main feature of Scheme experience of §1.08m (FY2022 deficit of $713k), This s
has been the sustained drop in clair Inclus f payments to the risk incentive
numbers since 2014, While average costs program of S199k (FY2022 $256k)

per claim have trended upwards, the drop
in ¢claims (currently 60% of their pre-2014 %
varlance of $1.06m from the adopted
evels) 1s large enouqgh to result in broadly

stable agaregate Inflated costs

from InCreases in Interest rates received and

® s} nC B
a I \ B Financial Summary W ' m

he accumulated surplus at year end was

than the Board's approved target surplus

\ minimum capltal

he result for the year represents a favorable

2022723 budqget, This was primarlily due t¢

N Increase In Investment income resulting

iIso due a favorable settlement, compared to

case estimate, on a historic claim

'he Mutual Liability Scheme has been

fully reinsured since 1 July 2003 as a result
net provisions are unaffected by valuation
parameters such as projected claim Inflation
ind case estimate develd pments as qross
provisions are almost entirely offset by
einsurance provisions The presence of
relnsurance also reduces the sensitivity of

liabilities to economic and claims assumptions

Net outstanding provisions as at 30 June 2023
are projected to be $1.16m, much reduced
from last year's provisions of 54,03m due to the
settlement of a long term, non-reinsured claim
frorm 1996, This claim was settled at $ 760k
below projections and resulted in the release
of $2.47m of previously held outstanding

claims provisions

Ihe accumulated surplus at year end was
§17.97m (FY2022 516.88m), This Is at the
lower level of the Board's Policy and the
recommendation of the independent actuary
which (s 1.4 to 1.9 times the APRA Minimum
caplital requirements or between $17.90m and

624.30m

53
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Financial Summary
48%
6% §11,558,428 CLAIM MANAGEMENT
$1,377,434 CORPORATE COSTS m
LGAWCS
10% Sl
$2,432,847 MANAGEMENT Xpenditure
13%
$3,121,495 RE-INSURANCE COSTS 23%
$5,668,161 RISK PROGRAMS
b
-2, 61%
-$333,803 NET CLAIM $8,129,841 RE-INSURANCE COSTS
10% LGAMLS
$1,329,207 CORPORATE COSTS Expenditure
10%
$1,301,843 MANAGEMENT
1,301,84 ( 220/0
$2,284,652 RISK PROGRAMS
. i i { m " I Wy m ™
" ) B Financlal Summary W \ I 2 = I B
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LGAMLS Board
Member’s Report

- Y T Vv
h ‘7‘3 A

LGAMLS Board Members’ Report

Ihe Responsible Body for this set of financial statements is the LGASA Mutual Pty Ltd.

The Responsible Body Board members present the financial report of Local Government
Association Mutual Liability Scheme (“the Scheme”) for the year ended 30 June 2023,

Board Members

The Board members of the Scheme at any

time during or since the end of the financlal

year are

« Mr David Holston - appointed September
018

« Ms Dascia Bennett - appointed
eptember 2018

« Ms Joanne Denley - appointed February
1022

« Mr Clinton Jury (alternative Nathan Petrus)

wppointed October 2021
« Ms Jenny White (alternative Tlanna

asther) - appointed October 2020

Principal Activities

The S5cheme 1s a mutual risk product which
offers discretionary indermnity and claims
management service to its members in
respect of their potential and actual civl
liabilities. These services are provided to local
government in South Australia and include
the provision of risk management services

to minimise the occurrence of clvil liabilities
and the provision of claims management

ErvICesS

Review and Results
of Operation

The LGAMLS recorded an operating surplus
for FY2023 of §1,082,136 (FY2022 deficit

of $712.979), This

15 exclusive of payments
to the risk incentive program of 199,042

(FY2022 $256,035)

State of Affairs

n the opinion of the board members, there

were no signincant changes in the state of

aftairs of the Scheme during the hnancial

Vear unaer review,

Environmental Regulation

The Scheme's operations are not subject to
any significant environmental requlations
under either Commonwealth or State
eqislation, However, the Board belleves that
the Scheme has adequate systems in place
for the management of its environment
requirements and Is not aware of any breact
of those environmental requirements as

they apply to the Scheme

Events Subsequent
to Reporting Date

n the Interval between the end of the
financial year and the date of this report no
tem, transaction or event of a material and
unusual nature has arlsen, In the opinion of
the board members of the Scheme, likely

to affect significantly the operations of the
Scheme, the results of those perations, or
the state of alfairs of the Scheme in future

financlal years,

Likely Developments

Infarmation about likely development:

In the operations of the Scheme and the
expected results of those operations In
future financial years has not been Included

In this report

Indemnification &
insurance of Directors
& Officers

Under S5cheme Rule (Gazetted January

13, 2022) 24.2 LGASA Mutual Pty Ltd is a
member of the LGA Mutual Liability Scheme
and thus it and its Directors are entitled to
Indemnity from the S¢cheme for an honest
act or omission In the performance or
purported performance of powers, functions

or duties of the Board

Sianed In accordance with a resolution of
the Board members made on 13 September

2023

R

David Holston Dr Andrew Johnson
Chalr CEO

12] (2] "

il n

57

Item 16.7- Attachment 1

Page 86



COUNCIL MEETING ATTACHMENTS 13 DECEMBER 2023

Operating Disclosures

Local Government Association Mutual Liability Scheme Annual abridged

LGAMLS Abridged
Financial Reports

Relationship of the Basis of the Preparation of v/l financial report The abridged hnancla
Abridged Financial Report  Abridged Financial Report | ™" ',“,:;: .‘,‘.”;,1[:",,,',"',',lf! ot ,','.‘"'1,.,!:fl:‘:\;”fﬁl"‘
to the Full Financial Report 11 sbidqed financlal report covers Loca ipon request free of charge

bk Y
Government Association Mutual Liability
he abrdged financial report 15 an extract ’ X n the directors' opinion, the abridged
wcheme (the Scheme) as an Individual entity

from the full financlal report for the N financial report is consistent with the
‘ T and has been prepared from information
vear ended 30 June 2023, The financlal ; , prep ' audited full financlal report of the Schemy
extracted from the 30 June 2023 Local

staterments and specihc disclosures included for the year ended 30 June 2023 and
In the abridaed financial report have been LOVemnIme ociation Mutual Liability presents fairly the Scheme's financlal
cheme non-statutory general purpose
derived from the full financial report cheme nor itutory general purpost position as at 30 June 2023 and its
financial report, The Scheme iinancial fatrmarice for the f jod
perfiormance 1or the NANCIAN year ended on
he abndged financial report cannot be repert was prepared In accordance with the 4
' v f that date, There are reasonable grounds to
expected to provide as full an understanding recognition and measurement principle: i ' | be ablet
pelleve that the S5cheme w e abie Lo pay
of the financial performance, inancial of Australlan Accounting Standards and g I
: ts debts as and when they become due
position and financing and Investing other mandatory professional reporting | by
tiv ( ' t dNd Paydole
ictivities of the Local Governme requirements (n Australia, The 30 June 2023
Assoclation Mutual Liability Scheme as Local Government Mutual Liability Scheme This statement 1s made In accordance
the full financial report. Further financia non-statutory general purpose financla with a resolution of the Board
Information can be obtained from the full renort was orepared te et the Schemi
eport was prepared to meet the Schem: Jated at Adelaide this 13th day of
financial report ules

September 2023
he full inancial report and auditor's report

will be sent to members on request, free of Board Members'

charge, Please call 08 8235 6444 and a copy Dedaration

will be forwarded to you, Alternatively, you < \Y?g.lQDQ ”
n access the full financial report on the The abridged hnanclal report has been

secure section of the LGA website at www derived from the audited tull inancial report

RS AL Gl of Local Government Assoclation Mutual David Holston Dr Andrew Johnson
Liability Scheme for the year ended 30 Lhair CEO
June 2023 In accorgance with accounting
policies described in Note 1 to the audited
5] 12} n @ ® m m
[~ el Lo i Il L] u
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 30 June 2023

Member contributions

Catastrophe Insurance

Net member contribution revenue

Claims expens
einsurance and other recoveries revenue

Net claims expense

cheme manager expense

Scheme result

teinsurance proht share

nterest income

Net falr value gains on financial assets at fair value through proit and los

Other administration expenses

Operating surplus

pecial Distribution

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Risk incentive distributions to members

Total comprehensive surplus/(deficit) for the year

The above statement of comprehensive Income should be re

Notes 2022

12,211,571
(7,748,284)

4,463,287

1(b) (6,154,474)
1(b) 5,285,275
(869,199)

(1,270,091)
2,323,997

751,169

161,063

(22,138)

1{a) (3,927,070)
(3,036,976)

(712,979)
0

(712,979)
(256,035)
(969,014)

2023

$
12,903,891
(8,129,841)

4,774,050

(1,462,009)
1,795,812
333,803

(1,301,843)
3,806,010

191,824
699,486
7,217
(3,622,874)
(3,622,874)

1,082,136
0

1,082,136
(199,042)
883,094

id In conjunction with the accompanying notes

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables

Prepayment

Relnsurance and other recoveries recelvable

Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Reinsurance and other recoveries recelvable
Financlal assets at fair value through profit or loss

Total Non-Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Pavables

OQutstanding claims llability

Unearned member contribution llability

lotal Current Liabilitie

Non-Current Liabilities
Qutstanding claims liability

lotal Nan-Current Liabllitles

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Equity

Other reserves

Retalned earmings

Capltal and reserves attributable to owners of

Local Government Association Mutual Liability Scheme

Total Equity

Statement of Financial Position

For the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes 2022 2023
$ $
18,821,895 17,482,084
4,262,262 4,938,980
9,150 205,391
6,243,218 5,568,733
29,756,325 205,391
12,402,393 10,180,520
0 0
12,402,393 10,180,520
42,158,718 38,375,708
604,887 713,951
3,616,385 3,705,549
3975.219 4,125,208
8,196,491 8,544,708
16,153,098 11,138,777
16,153,098 11,138,777
24,349,589 19,683,485
17,809,129 18,692,223
924,752 725,710
16,884,377 17,966,513
17,809,129 18,692,223
17,808,129 18,692,223

The above statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Statement of Changes in
Total Accumulated Funds

For the year ended 30 June 2023

Risk Incentive Retained Total Notes 2022 2023
Notes Reserve Earnings 3 $

Balance at 1 July 2021

1,180,787

141,321 18,522,108

Cash flows from operating activities

Member contributions received (Inclusive of GST) 13,644,236 14,480,141
Outwi ird reinsurance premium pald (8,181,260) (8,560,014)
surplus - (712,979) (712,979) Claims payments (6,376,570) (6,625,453)
Total comprehensive (deficit)for the year) (712,979) (712,979) Payment to suppliers (inclusive of G! (5,945,743) (6,040,901)
Interest received 185,753 522,422
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners: Relnsurance and other recoverias recelved 4520976 4,883,994
Transfer (to) / from reserves (256, 035) 256,035 . Net cash (outflow) from operating activities (2,152,608) (1,339,811)
Balance at 30 June 2022 924,752 16,884,377 17,809,129
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds on disposal of investments 6,000,000
Balance at 1 July 2022 924,752 17,341,321 18,522,108 NSCORT It Trom Smseing Somvikes S g
s A ) 6 154 {08213 Net cash (outflow) from financing activities 0 0
Risk Incentive transfer to members (199,042) (199,042)
(199,042) 1,082,136 883094 Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 3847392 (1,339.811)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financlal year 14,974 503 18,821,895
Balance at 30 June 2023 728710 T ORABT 18,692,233 Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 8,821,895 17,482,084

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Notes to the Financial Statements Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2023 For

Note 1 - Operating surplus Note 1 - Operating surplus

(a) Breakdown of expenses by nature b) Net claims expense

Direct business

Current period claims relate to risk borne in the current inanclal year, Prior period amounts relate to a reassessment of the risks borne in all

Operating surplus has been arrived at after charging the following items previous financial year:
2022 Current year Prior years Total
Actuarial fees 43,240 44,573 3 3
Audit fees 39,940 46,036 Gross claims expense
Jank fees 73.789 ,
! 173,789 129,787 Gross claims and related expenses - undiscounted 3,917,969 4,381,376 8,299,345
GA Management fe 524 14! 7
\ Managen 4,148 536,229 Gross claifms and related expenses - discounted (342,795) (1,802,076) (2,144,871)
Mutual Management fes 342,831 352,427 Gross claims and related expenses - discounted 3,575,174 2,579,300 6,154,474
eqal fees 24836 0
Other expenses 34,631 56,358
166:910 Reinsurance and other recoverles revenue
Rent 111,074 91
’ ad Relnsurance and other recoveries revenue - undlscounted (2,878,443) (4,437,592) (7,316,035)
{isk ¢ aement 2,051,365 , A
A MANSgEm s et ATRS281 Reinsurance and other recoveries revenue ~ discount 302,665 1,728,095 2,030,760
ponsorship & awards 86875 63,485 Reinsurance and other recoveries - discounted (2,575,778) (2,709,497) (5,285,275)
tisk Incentive Program 256,035 0
evelopment fund 131,585 #3000 Claims Incurred net of recoveries 999,396 (130,197) 869,199
Audit risk (Alrport 106,721 89,361
3,927,070 ,622, ;
— el 2023 Current year Prior years Total
Gross claims expense
Claims and related expenses - undiscounted 4,240,532 (2,659,567 1,580,965
Claims and related expenses - discounted (479,249) 360,203 (118,956)
Gross claims and related expenses - discounted 3,761,238 (2,299,274) 1462009
Reinsurance and other recoveries revenue
Reinsurance and other recoveries revenue - undiscounted (3696,117) 1,782.89 (1,913,226)
Reinsurance and other recovernies revenue - discount 479481 (362,067 117414
Reinsurance and other recoveries - discounted (3,216,636) 1,420,824 (1,795,812)
Net claims incurred 544647 878,450) (333,803)
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Note 2 - Cash and Cash Equivalents

2022 2023

Cash at bank and In hand 841870 732,094
Term Investments less than 3 months to maturity 17,980,025 16,749,990
18,821 895 17,482,083

Note 3 - Outstanding claims liability

2022 2023

Contral estimate (A)

scount to present value
{sk margin (B)
Gross outstanding claims liability

Gross claims Incurred = undiscounted (A + B)

Non ~ current

Risk margin

Process used to determine the risk margin

he risk marain Is an additional allowance for uncertainty In the ultimate ¢

margin adopted after considering the
uncertainty in the portfolio, industry trends

ind the Scheme's risk appreciatior

o determine the margin adopted the

wctuary concluded that a risk margin of 25%
(2022: 25%) of net outstanding ¢laims would
be reasonable and consider this appropriate
jiven the relatively higher volatility of older

iccident years and the greater proportiona

66

uncertainty that arlses from a highly

relnsured portfolio

Ihe risk margin Is added to the central
estimate of net outstanding clalms llability
reduced by the appropriate reinsurance

recoveries provided

21,313833 16,759,393
(2,010868) (2,129,824)
19.302.965 14,629,569

466,518 214,575
19,302,965 14,844,326

21,780,351 16,974,150

3,616,385 3,705,549
16,153,008 11,138,777
19,769,483 14,844,326

st of claims, The Ov

w Committee determines the overal

LGAMLS
Auditor’s Report
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Independent auditor's report on the abridged financial statements

To the members of Local Government Association Mutual Liability Scheme

Qur opinion

The abridged financial statements are derived from the audited financial report of the Local
Government Association Mutual Liability Scheme for the year ended 30 June 2023,

In our opinion, the abridged financlal statements are consistent, In al materal respects, with the
audited financial report, in accordance with the basis of preparation described in Note 4 to the
abridged financial stalements.

What we have audited

The abridged financial statements are derived from the audited financial report of Local Government
Association Mutual Liabllity Scheme for the year ended 30 June 2023, The abridged financial
statements comprise:

. The abridged statement of financial position as at 30 June 2023

. the abridged statement of comprehensive Incame for the year then ended

. the abridged statement of changes in total accumulated funds for the year then ended

. the abridged statement of cash flows for the year then ended

. the related notes to the audited financial report of Local Government Association Mutual Liability
Scheme for the year then ended

- the statement by the Board,

Abridged financial statemants

The abridged financial statements do not contain all the disclosures required by Australian Accounting
Standards applied in preparation of the audited financial report of Local Government Assoclation
Mutual Liability Scheme, Reading the abridged financial statements and the auditor's report thereon,
therefare, is not a substitute for reading the audited financial report of Local Government Association
Mutual Liability Scheme and the auditor's report thereon, The summary financial statements and the
audited financial report do not reflect the effects of events that occurred subsequent to the date of our
report on the audited financial report.

The audited financial report and our report thereon

\We expressed an unmodified audit opinion on the financial report in our report dated 13 September
2023

Members of the Bnmrl?r;;npgn:ﬂhilrlrly for the nh'rmgAmﬂ1E;n(105|_étm_nmu—mﬁ

The Members of the Board of the Scheme are responsible for the preparation of the abridged audited
financial statements in accordance with the basis of preparation described in Note 4,

PrieewntorhowseCoapoers, ABN 52 780 433 757
Level 11, 70 Franklin Street, ADELAIDE SA 5000, GPO Box 418, ADELAIDE SA 5001
T: +61 8 8218 7000, F: +61 8 8218 7000, www,prwe.com,mu

Lise( ity IImeed By A schoma apprevad under Profossional Standands Lagisiaion
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Auditor's responsibility

Qur responsiblity is to express an opinion whether the abridged financial statements are consistent, in
all material respects, with the audited financial report based on our procedures, which were conducted
In accordance with Auditing Standard ASA 810 Engagemernts to Report on Abridged Financlal
Statements.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

by

M, T. Lojszeayk Adelaide
Partner 13 September 2023
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LGAWCS Board
Members’ Report

[
]
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LGAWCS Board Members’ Report

I'he Responsible Body for this set of financial statements is the LGASA Mutual Pty
Ltd. The Responsible Body Board members present the financial report of Local
Government Association Workers' Compensation Scheme (“the Scheme”) for the

year ended 30 June 2023,

Board Members

Ihe Board members of the Scheme at any

time during or since the end of the financlal

vear are

« Mr David Holston - appointed September
2018
Ms Dascia Bennett - appointed

eptember 2018

Ms Jloanne Denley - appointed February
1022

« MrClinton Jury (alternative Nathan Petrus)

wpointed October 2021
« Ms Jenny White (alternative Tlanna

asther) - appointed October 2020

Principal Activities

The Scheme (s a Mutual risk product which
offers discretionary indemnity and Injury
management service to its members in

respect of their potential and actual liabilities
that arise under the provisions contained

n the Return to Work Act 2014 (RTW

Act). These services are provided to loca
government in South Australia, and Include
the provision of claims management
return to work and work health and satety
management services, 1o minimise the
occurrence of worker compensation

Review and Results
of Operation

The oy

Compensation Scheme for FY2023 was a

rating result for the LGA Warkers

surplus of 51,137,770 (FY2022 surplus of

5874,730). This is inclusive of payments

10 the risk Incentive program of $268,011

(FY2022 5344 940), The Scheme declared
speclal distribution In 2023 of $1,000,000

(FY2022 NIL) to members, The total

comprehensive denicit for the vear was

136,620 (FY2022 surplus of $529,790)

State of Affairs

n the opinion of the board members, there
were no signihcant changes in the state
affairs of the Scheme during the financial

Vear unaer review,

Environmental Regulation

[The Scheme's operations are not subject to
any significant environmental requlations
under either Commonwealth or Stat

eqislation. However, the Board believes that

the Scheme has adequate § s in place
for the management of its environment
requirements and Is not aware of any breact
of thase envirenmental requirements as

they apply to the Scheme

Events Subsequent
to Reporting Date

n the interval between the end of the
financial year and the date of this report no
tem, transaction or event of a matenal and
mnusual nature has arlsen, in the opinion of
the board members of the Scheme, llkely

to affect signihicantly the operations of the

Scheme, the results of those operations, or
the state of affairs of the Scheme in future

fnanclal years

Likely Developments

Information about likely developments

In the operations of the Scheme and the
expected results of those operations In
future hinanclal years has not been Included

Inthis report

Indemnification &
Insurance of Directors
& Officers

Under Scheme Rule (Gazetted January

13, 2022) 2A.2 L( Mutual Pty Ltd Is a

member of the LGA Mutual Liabllity Scheme
and thus it and its Directors are entitled to
Indemnity from the S5¢cheme for an honest

act or omission In the performance o
purported performance of powers, function

of duties of the Board

Slgned in accordance with a resolution of

the Board members made on 13 September

/5
Rllee- C@\
David Holston Dr Andrew Johnson
Chalr CEQ
12] (2] "
il n

71
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Operating Disclosures

Local Government Association Workers Compensation Scheme Annual

Abridged Financial Report 30 June 2023.

Relationship of the
Abridged Financial Report
to the Full Financial Report

he abridged hnancial report 15 an extract
from the full iinanclal report tor the

vear ended 30 June 2023, The iinanclal
statements and specific disclosures included
In the abrdged financlal report have beer

lenved from the full hnancial report

The abridged financial report cannot be
expected to provide as full an understanding
of the hinancial performance, hnancial
position and financing and Investing

ictivities of the Local Government

Clation Workers Compensation
Scheme as the full inancial report, Further
Information can be obtained from the full

financial report

The full inanclal report and auditor's report
will be sent to members on request, free of
charge, Please call (08) B235 6460 and a copy
will be forwarded to you, Alternatively, you
an access the full inancial report on the
secure section of the LGA website at

www.lga sa.gov.au/mutual

72

Basis of the Preparation of
Abridged Financial Report

This abridged financlal report covers
Local Government Association Workers
Compensation Scheme (the S5¢cheme) as
an Individual entity and has been prepared
from information extracted from the 30
June 2023 Local Government Association
Workers Compensation Scheme non
statutory general purpose financial

report. The Scheme financlal report

was prepared In accordance with the
recognition and measurement principles
of Australian Accounting Standards and
other mandatory professional reporting
requirements in Australia, The 30 June 2023
Local Government Workers Compensation
)cheme non-statutory general purpose
financial report was prepared to meet the

Board Members’
Declaration

The abridged hnanclal report has been

derived from the audited full inancial report

of Local Government Assoclation Workers

Compensation Scheme for the year ended

30 June 2023 in accordance with accounting

W Board Members’ Report B Fin [}

policles described In Note 1 to the audited
full inancial report, The abridged financia
report should be read in conjunction with
the audited full hinancial report, avallable

ipon request free of charge

n the directors' apinion, the abridged
financial report is consistent with the
audited full imancial report of the Scheme
for the year ended 30 June 2023 and
presents fairly the Scheme’s hinancial
position as at 30 June 2023 and it
performance for the financlal year ended

on that date

There are reasonable grounds to belleve that
the Scheme will be able 1o pay its debts as

and when they become due and payable

This statement is made In accordance with

a resolution of the Board

Jated in Adelaide this 13th day of

eptember 2023

QR (O\

David Holston Dr Andrew Johnson
Chalr CFO
w [ i) m
u

LGAWCS Abridged
Financial Report
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes 2022 2023

Member contributions
Insurance

Net member contribution revenue

Net claims expense
Scheme manager expense

Scheme result

Investment and ather income
Other administration expense:

Total perating (deficit) for the year)

Other comprehensive income
ypeclal Distribution

Distribution of risk incentive fund to member:

Total comprehensive surplus/(deficit) for the year

The above statement of comprehensive

=]
B Financlal Repo

1(h)

$

22936827 23,894,870
{1477 360) (1,544,699)
21456467 22,350,)71
(9,336,832) (11,558,428)
(2,373,469) (2,432,847)
(9,749,166) 8,358,896
230,300 1,401,266
{9,104,745) (8,628,771)
874.730 1,131,391

0 (1,000,000)

(268,011) (268,011
529,700 (136,620)

ncome should be read in conjunction with the accompanying note

Statement of Financial Position

For the year ended 30 June

2023

Notes 2022 2023

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables

Financlal assets at fair value thr

Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Financlal assets at fair value thr

Total Non-Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Payvables

Outstanding claims liability
Unearned member contributle

Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Catastrophe margi

Cutstanding claims llability
Total Non-Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities
Net Assets
Equity

| :”Il" 1eserves

Retained eaming

ough proft or loss

ough profit or loss

in lability

Capital and reserves attributable to owners of

Local Government Assoclation Workers' Compensation Scheme

Total Equity

The above statement of financ

al position should be read |

onjunction with the ac

CoOmpanyir

12,254,969

8,795,443

28,970,029
50,193,310

50,020,441

1,867,323
9,825,331
1,867,323

19,221,003

85,000

10,715,098
10,800,098

29,854,612

20,165,829

1,584,382

18,581,447

20,165,829
20,165,829
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Statement of Changes in

Total Accumulated Funds

For the year ended 30 June 2023

Balance at 1 July 2021

Total comprehensive (deficit)for the year)

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:

Risk incentive transfer to members

Transfer to Risk Incentive Reserve

Balance at 30 June 2022

Balance at 1 July 2022

Surplusfidehcit) for the vear
Hisk incentive transfer to mermbers

Special Disburserment

BTotal comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 30 June 2023

Risk Incentive

Reserve

1.167.092

(344,540)
966,341

654401

1,852,393

(268011)

(268,011)

1,584,382

Retained
Earnings

874,730

144,840

654,401}

18,450,056

18,450 056

1,131,391

131,391

18,581,447

Total

19,427,719

874,730
874,730

20,302,449

20,302 449

1,131,391
(268,011)
{1,000,000)
(136,620)

20,165,829

Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes 2022 2023

Cash flows from operating activities

Member contributions received {inclusive of GST)
Cutward reinsurance premium paid

Claims payments

Payrnent 1O Supf llers (nclusive of G

Interest received

Net cash (outflow) from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Praceeds on disposal of investments

Met cash inflow from investing activities

Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities

MNet (decreasel/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Thie above statement of cash Aows should Be read in conjunction with the accompanying no

&

25,351,275
(1,610,778)
(10,666,269)
(13, 248.647)
434,601

260,182

260,182
21,726,539

21,986,721

26,457,550
(1,684,164)
(10,857,663)
(13,733,082)
1,268,343
(1,450,984)

(11,182,736)
(11,182,736)

(9,731,752)
21,986,721
12,254,969
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2023
Note 1 - Operating surplus

() Breakcicwn of sxpenses by nature Note 2 - Cash and Cash Equivalents
Operating surplus has been arrived at after charging the following items 5 5 E E
Actuarial fees 19,584 41,200 Cash at bank and in hand 160,593 926,462
Audit fess 319,940 46,035 Term Investments less than 3 months to maturity 21626128 11,328,507
lank and guarantee fees 356,280 66,751 21,986,721 12,254,969
lealth & wellbelng 557,112 618,510
eqal fees 4,349 11,462 Note 3 - Outstanding claims liability
General expénses 1 6509 53
2022 2023
tent 240,660 230,602 ; ,
leqional risk management fees 117 GEG ) )
Jicnal inagement 3,617 68 3,708,130 Central estimata (A) 17.522.773 18,843,063
ponsorsnip & promotion 73037 83,094 Discount to present value (1.282,038) (1,726,034)
=rminar g2 0 16,240,735 17,117,029
Subscriptions 1] 0 16,240,735 17,117,029
OHS core system development 397 082 344,935
levelopment fund 915,742 906,596
Workcaver levy 1,530,870 1,576,796 Risk Margin (B) 4] 3,423,402
GA Management Fes 620,361 635,871 19486882 20,540,432
GASA Mutual Managerment fee 143 831 352,427
‘ublications 15459 6,309 Gross clalms incurred - undiscontinued (4 + B) 3,248,147 22,266,465
sk Incentive Tund 144 G40 1]
0,104,745 628,771
) 8,628, Current G067.842 9,825,331
() Net Mon = current 10:421,040 10,715,098
1] i HITIS BXpEn s
19488 882 20,540,429
Direct business
Current period claims relate to risk borne in the current financial year. Prior period
imounts relate 1o a reassessment of the risks borne in all previows hnanclal years
STRIE A Prior :'E;E i RISk margln adopted after considering the uncertainty would be reasonable, If the Scheme was to
= Process used to determine the risk margin n the portfolio, industry trends and the have approximately 75% probability of its
. The risk m ' o S A s Scheme’s risk appreciation claim provisions praving reliable
Gross claims expense e risk margin 1s an additional allowanc
far uncertainty In the ultimate cost of claims To determine the mangin adopted the The risk margin is added to the central
Gross claims and related expenses - undiscounted 10,838,978 1,163,446 12,002,424 Thie Board determines the overall marain actuary cancluded that a risk margin of 209 estirmate of net outstanding claims lability.
Gross claims and related expenses - discount (458,092) 14,096 (443,996))
Grass claims and related EXpEnses discaunted 10,380,!—86 ],1??,542 11;558’,423
Net claims incurred 10,380,886 1,177,542 11,558,428
Current year 2022 Total
Gross claims expense el ol
Gross clalms and related expenses - undiscounted 10,458,896 (F6414) 10,382,482
Gross claims and related expenses - undiscounted (355,211) (G90.439) (1,045, 650)
Gross claims and related expenses - undiscounted 10,103,685 (7 6335832
Met claims incurred 10,103 685 (766,853) 0,336,832
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Independent auditor's report on the abridged financial statements

Tothe Board Members of Local Government Association Workers' Compensation Scheme

Qur opinion

The abridged financial statements, are derived from the audited financtal report of the Local
Government Association Workers' Compensation Scheme for the year ended 30 June 2023

In our opinion, the abrdged financial statements are consistent, in all material respects, with the
audited financial report, in accordance with the basis of preparation described in Note 4 to the
abridged financial statements

What we have audited

The abridged financial statements are derived from the audited financial report of Local
Government Assoclation Workers' Compensation Scheme for the year ended 30 June 2023, The
abridged financial statements comprises

. the abridged statement of financial position as at 30 June 2023

B the abridged statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended

- the abridged statement of changes In total accumulated funds for the year then ended
. the abridged statement of cash flows for the year then ended

. the related notes to the andited financial report of Local Government Association Workers'
Campensation Scheme for the year then ended

- the Statement by the Board.

Abridged financial statements

The abridged financial statements do not contain all the disclosures required by Australian
Accounting Standards applied in preparation of the audited financial report of Local Government
Association Workers' Compensation Scheme. Reading the abridged financal statements and the
auditor's report thereon, therefore, Is not a substitute for reading the audited financial report of

Local Government Association Workers' Compensation Scheme and the auditor's report thereon,
The summary financial statements and the audited financial report do not reflect the effects of events
that occurred subseqguent to the date of our report on the audited financial report,

The dudllnﬁda!ilirih;nrrxnilirn[;)rlin nd our mb;'mktrh;r(;(’m
We expressed an unmodified audit opinion on the financial report in our report dated 13 September
2023,

Members of the Board's responsibility for the abridged financial statements

The Members of the Board of the Scheme are responsible for the preparation of the abridged audited
financial statements in accordance with the basis of preparation described in Note 4,

PricownterhowseCoopoes, ABN 52 780 433 757
Lovel 11, 70 Franklin Street, ADELAIDE 8A 5000, GPO Hox 418, ADELAIDE 8A 5001
T, +61 8 8218 7000, F: +61 8 8218 7999, www.pwe.comuau

Liskility limead by a schamo approved under Profassnnal Standards Legisiation
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Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion whether the abridged financial statements are consistent, in
all material respects, with the audited financial report based on our procedures, which were conducted
In accordance with Auditing Standard ASA 810 Engagements to Report on Abridged Financlal
Statements,

LA

PricewaterhouseCoopers

by

M; T, Lojszcayk Adelaide
Partner 13 September 2023
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Scheme Members

66

Retaining 100% scheme membership ensures a unified risk management

Berr
rmera

COUNCIL

and mitigation approach across the Local Government sector. By having
the whole sector behind a common approach, we can be confident in
our efforts to ensure the safety and security of our communities.

Tony Gray

Scheme Manager, LGAWC!
»
L CLEVE
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Mutual Services < . ,

= e Prowd/ng unique cover (l"d services

Local Government Association
®p of South Australia

LGASA Mutual Pty Ltd

148 Frome St

Adelaide SA 5000

GO Box 2693

Adelaide SA 5001

T (08) 8224 2000

E mutual@lga.sa.gov.au

www.lga.sa.gov.au/mutual
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Section 73(10) of the Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016

Point Turton & Port Victoria Urban
Growth Code Amendment

Yorke Peninsula Council

THE AMENDMENT

Adopted by:

Hon Nick €hampion MP

Minister for Planning

921 3
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Point Turton & Port Victoria Urban Growth
Code Amendment

Preamble

The amendment instructions below reflect the propesed changes to the Planning and Design Code as
outlined in the Draft Code Amendment released for public consultation. No changes were made to the Draft
Amendment by the Designated Entity as a result of public engagement (outlined in the Engagement Repart
furnished to the Minister for Planning by the Designated Entity under section 73(7) of the Planning,
Development and Infrastructure Act 2016 [the Act]).

Amendment Instructions

The following amendment instructions (at the time of drafting) relate to the Planning and Design Code,
version 2023.13 published on 31 August 2023. Where amendments to the Planning and Design Code have
been published after this date, consequential changes to the following amendment instructions will be made
as necessary lo give effect to this Code Amendment. The Minister specifies under section 73(12)(c) of the
Act that this Code Amendment will take effect on the day that it is deployed into both the electrenic Planning
and Design Code and the South Australian Property and Planning Atlas.

Instructions
Amend the Code as follows:
Point Turton

1. Spatially apply the Rural Settlement Zone (in place of the Deferred Urban Zone) to the ‘area affected’
bounded by the blue line in Map A contained in Attachment A.

2. Spatially apply the following Technical and Mumeric Variation (TNV) to the "area affected’ bounded by
the blue line in Map B contained in Attachment B:

«  Minimum site area TNV — Minimum site area is 450 square metres

3. InPart 12 = Concept Plans, under the section relating to Yorke Peninsula, insert immediately after
'‘Concept Plan 73 Port Vincent' new ‘Concept Plan 136 Point Turton’ contained in Attachment C.

4. Spatially apply ‘Concept Plan 136 Point Turton” to the ‘Concept Plan Boundary' bounded by the blue line
contained in Attachment D within the Concept Plan — Technical & Mumeric Variations Layer of the SA
Property and Planning Atlas.

Port Victoria

5. Spatially apply the Neighbourhood Zone (in place of the Deferred Urban Zone) to the ‘area affected’
bounded by the blue line in Map E contained in Attachment E.

6. Spatially apply the following Technical and Numeric Variation (TNV) to the ‘area affected’ bounded by
the blue line in Map F contained in Attachment F:

«  Minimum site area TNY — Minimum site area is 450 square metres

7. Spatially apply the following Technical and Mumeric Variation (TNV) to the ‘area affected’ bounded by
the blue line in Map G contained in Attachment G:
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+ Finished Ground and Finished Floor Level TNV's - Minimum finished ground level is 3.1 metres
AHD; Minimum finished floor level is 3.35 metres AHD

8. Spatially apply the following Technical and Numeric Variation (TNV) to the ‘area affected’ bounded by
the blue line in Map H contained in Attachment H:

. Maximum Building Height (Metres) - Maximum building height is 8 metres

9. Spatially apply the following Technical and Numeric Variation (TNV) to the ‘area affected’ bounded by
the blue line in Map | contained in Attachment |

«  Minimum frontage TNV — Minimum frontage is 15 metres

10. Spatially apply the following Overlay to the "area affected’ bounded by the blue line in Map J contained in
Attachment J:

« Affordable Housing Overlay.

10 In Part 12 — Concept Plans, under the section relating to Yorke Peninsula, insert immediately after
‘Concept Plan 73 Port Vincent' new 'Concept Plan 137 Port Victoria® contained in Attachment K.

11. Spatially apply ‘Concept Plan 137 Port Victoria’ to the ‘Concept Plan Boundary' bounded by the blue
line contained in Attachment L within the Concept Plan — Technical & Numeric Variations Layer of the
SA Property and Planning Atlas.

12. In Part 13 — Table of Amendments, update the publication date, Code version number, amendment type
and summary of amendments within the 'Table of Planning and Design Code Amendments’ to reflect
the publication of this Code Amendment.
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ATTACHMENT A
Map A - Proposed Zoning

Proposed Rural settiement zone Point Turton

- :_Is N T Sovernmest of South Australia

£ Asecmsives 6 w0 220 3%m A (?J e
T —

Note: The above map is a printed representation of amendments that are proposed to the spatial layers of SA planning

database if the Point Turton & Port Victoria Growth Code A d is adopted by the Minister under section 73(10) of the
Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016 (the Act).
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ATTACHMENT B
Map B- Minimum site area TNV

Proposed Minimum site area is 450 sqm Point Turton
technical numerical variation
Parcel Boundanes N oo Government of South Australia
Minemum ste area s 450 sqm S Dbt o bem
[ Asecmdives 0 1MW 220 30m A QY cxinares
T —

Note: The above map is a printed rep: ion of amer that are proposed to the spatial layers of SA planning
database if the Point Turton & Port Victoria Growth Code A di is adopted by the Minister under section 73(10) of the
Planning, Develop and Inft Act 2016 (the Act).

5
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ATTACHMENT C
Map C — Concept Plan 136

— Concept Plan Boundary N
=== Proposed roads and fture access A
G— Access/ egress points

ESSS  Sormwater Detention | CWMS ] 100 200 300 400 500 metres

Concept Plan 136
POINT TURTON

Note: The above map is a printed representation of amendments that are proposed to the spatial layers of SA planning
database if the Point Turton & Port Victoria Growth Code Amendment is adopted by the Minister under section 73(10) of the
Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016 (the Act).
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ATTACHMENT D
Map D - Concept Plan TNV

Proposed Concept Plan 136 Point Turton Point Turton
technical numerical variation
Parcel Boundanes N 7 Bovernmest of south Austraka
mm 5 Youbw " han
) A Avms 0 1MW 220 30m A QY cxinares
T —

Note: The above map is a printed rep: ion of amer that are proposed to the spatial layers of SA planning
database if the Point Turton & Port Victoria Growth Code A di is adopted by the Minister under section 73(10) of the
Planning, Develop and Inft Act 2016 (the Act).

7
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ATTACHMENT E
Map E - Proposed Zoning

Proposed Neighbourhood zone Port Victoria
- P-d_—; N @ Governmenat of Scuth Australia
[ Nesghbourhood Iebwt o helm
] Atecmdirns 0 @ ® 120m QY cxinares
Note: The above map is a printed rep: ion of amend that are proposed to the spatial layers of SA planning
database if the Point Turton & Port Victoria Growth Code A di is adopted by the Mini: under section 73(10) of the
Planning, Develop and Infr Act 2016 (the Act).
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ATTACHMENT F
Map F — Minimum site area TNV

Proposed Minimum site area is 450 sqm Port Victoria
technical numerical variation
Parcel Boundanes N % Bovernment of South Australia
Minemum st area s 450 sqm Dbt o el
3 Atecmdivea 0 © ® 120m A QY cxinares
Note: The above map is a printed rep: ion of amend that are proposed to the spatial layers of SA planning

database if the Point Turton & Port Victoria Growth Code A d is adopted by the Minister under ion 73(10) of the
Planning, Devel and Infrastructure Act 2016 (the Act).
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ATTACHMENT G
Map G - Finished Ground and Finished Floor Level TNV

Minimum finished ground level Port Victoria

(muitiple criteria) technical numerical
variation

Parcel Boundanes N TN\ Sovernment of South Australia

Minimum Simultple criena) et o bem
3 Atecmd e 0 © ® 120m QY cxinares

Note: The above map is a printed rep: ion of amend that are proposed to the spatial layers of SA planning
database if the Point Turton & Port Victoria Growth Code A di is adopted by the Mini: under ion 73(10) of the
Planning, Develop and Infr Act 2016 (the Act).
10
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ATTACHMENT H
Map H — Maximum Building Height (Metres) TNV

Proposed Maximum building height is 8m Port Victoria
technical numerical variation
P-‘--— . N I Governmeat of scuth Australia
Mamum buiding heght s 8m et o bem
3 Atecedires 0 @ ® 120m A QY cxinares
Note: The above map is a printed rep: ion of amend that are proposed to the spatial layers of SA planning
database if the Point Turton & Port Victoria Growth Code A di is adopted by the Mini: under section 73(10) of the
Planning, Develop and Infr Act 2016 (the Act).

1
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ATTACHMENT |
Map | - Minimum Frontage TNV
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Proposed Minimum frontage is 15m technical Port Victoria
numerical variation

P.u“—. N T Sovernment of South Australia

Minemum Sontage & 15m Dbt o el
=3 Ascndires 0 @ ® 120m A QY cxinares

Note: The above map is a printed rep: ion of amend that are proposed to the spatial layers of SA planning
database if the Point Turton & Port Victoria Growth Code A di is adopted by the Mini: under section 73(10) of the
Planning, Develop and Inft Act 2016 (the Act).
12
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ATTACHMENT J
Map J — Affordable Housing Overlay

Proposed Affordable housing overlay Port Victoria
P-d_— N @_._ Government of South Australia
] Atecwdivea 0 4« ® 120m A WY o
Note: The above map is a printed rep: ion of amend that are proposed to the spatial layers of SA planning
database if the Point Turton & Port Victoria Growth Code A di is adopted by the Mini: under section 73(10) of the
Planning, Develop and Inft Act 2016 (the Act).
13
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ATTACHMENT K
Map K - Concept Plan 137
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Concept Plan 137
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Note: The above map is a printed representation of amendments that are proposed to the spatial layers of SA planning
database if the Point Turton & Port Victoria Growth Code Amendment is adopted by the Minister under section 73(10) of the
Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016 (the Act).
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ATTACHMENT L
Map L - Concept Plan TNV

Proposed Concept Plan 137, Port Victoria Port Victoria
technical numerical variation
- Parcel Boundanes N T Sovernment of South Australia
|| Concept Plan Iesabowt o bem
] Atected A 0 © ® 120m QY cxinares
Note: The above map is a printed rep: ion of amend that are proposed to the spatial layers of SA planning
database if the Point Turton & Port Victoria Growth Code A di is adopted by the Mini: under section 73(10) of the
Planning, Develop and Inft Act 2016 (the Act).
15
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SERVICES

Softfall

Remedial Works

Defect Works

Graffiti

PLAYGROUND
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Impact attenuation Report
Playground Clearance Report
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Price Community Rescrve Playground Form
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DISCLAIMER

Whilst care has been taken to ensure the accuracy of the information provided in this report,
Open Space Services and its employees, take no responsibility for any errors, omissions or
changes to information that may occur and disclaim all responsibility and liability to any
person in respect to anything done or omitted to be done in reliance upon information within
this publication.

PREAMBLE

Relevant Australian Standards listed below.

Australian Standard AS 4685

Playground Equipment and Surfacing

Australian Standard AS 4685.1:2021 (EN 1177 for HIC impact testing)
Playground surfacing

Specifications, requirements and test methods

Marking

While all equipment that is installed will require a manufactures plate with |D and date made,
each individual piece of equipment will be given a serial number that is used for identification
purposes, these numbers only exist in the report and are not affixed to the equipment.

Free Height of Fall

The free height of fall must not exceed 1800mm for Supervised Early Childhood Settings and
3000mm for All Age Settings.

Fall zone

A minimal fall zone of 1500mm is required around equipment that have a height 600mm (with
fall heights of more than 600mm above ground level) and between individual items of
equipment. An increase in the falling spacefimpact area for equipment with platforms
measuring more than 1500mm above ground level.

Falling spaces for specific equipment items with forced movement such as slides, swings
and carousels. The falling space/impact area for equipment with forced movement cannot
overlap with other falling spacesfimpact areas.

Suifacing

Surfacing to Australian Standards 4685.0:2017, 4685.1:2021 be provided across the falling
spacel/impact area where play equipment provisions are more than 600mm above ground
level.

Finish of Equipment

Equipment shall have no protruding nails, bolt threads, projecting wire rope terminations,
pointed or sharp ended components. Surfaces are finished smooth with no splintering. All
playground equipment should be structurally stable, in good condition and fit for children’s
play.

Protection Against Falling

Guardrails/barriers should be a minimum of 600mm above ground level of intended use.
Continuous handrails on each side on access ways and bridges. Grip diameter needs to be
between 16mm-45mm.

ko

Viarement af Wark for Dirtworks Pry Lid « Novesrbpr $3, 2025
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Head and Neck Entrapment

Head and neck entrapment are openings at a height of more than 600mm above ground
level that would allow the body to pass through but not their head. Probes are used to
determine the openings and entrapment points.

Toggle Entrapment

Toggle entrapment can refer to clothing, hair and pull cords which may become trapped in
gap areas of forced play where the child could hang and not have purchase to relieve the
body weight.

Finger Entrapment

Finger entrapment is any opening that would allow a child's fingers or thumbs to be trapped
while in movement. Openings of 8-25mm at 1000mm or more above playing surface level
must be filled.

Malural Playspaces

Natural play inspections will use all of the guides for a conventional playground, however
when inspection is undertaken, the area needs to be looked at in a risk assessment view,
where taking into account the safety of the area and the purpose of being a more perceived
risk in the way of interactive play to develop awareness skills.

Documentation

The playground managers should have the following documents to refer to at any time.
* Policies and procedures

+ Reports e.g. accident/injury

* Inventory/Equipment register

* Inspection checklists

+ Works orders

* Maintenance actions

+ Certification records e.g. equipment, surfacing

» Manufacturer's warranty details

« Manufacturer's installation, inspection and maintenance instructions
» Operating Instructions (if applicable)

Flease Note: The standards are not law and are intended as a guide to safety within playgrounds,
however they can be used as a benchmark if an accident becomes a legal pursuit.

Niarement .'_J_F W sk Jar Drirtorks P!"r T = Nevenbpr 15, 2023 i
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CERTIFICATE OF AUDIT
.ort-:u SPACE
SERVICES

Consulting Services to Dirtworks Pty Ltd

Date Services Performed By: Services Performed For:
November 15, 2023 Open Space Services Dirtworks Pty Ltd
36 Murray Road Price Community Reserve
Willaston SA 5118 Playground

This Certificate of Playground Auditing Summary is issued pursuant to the Australian
Standards between Dirtworks Pty Ltd (“Client”) and Open Space Services (“Contractor”),
effective November 15, 2023

Note: If there is no serial number, the date plate will be used as the serial number with a sequence number attached if more
than one date plate. If no serial number exists, one will be allocated to it.

PCP-001 PCP-002 PCP-003 PCP-004
Date and time of audit

The Services commenced on November 15, 2023, and shall continue through November 15,
2024. Until complete

Certification of Clearance

Certifying Auditor: Barry Rolton — Open Space Services
Certified safe to use

Certifying Auditor sign off: , : Date: November 15, 2023

Stasenment of Wark for Dirtworks Pty Lid « November 15, 2023 4
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RISK MATRIX

CONSEQUINCE

o T T T TSR N [ A —— ST Ta]] e PR TS ey |

Low is the risk related to all other areas of the inspection, this does not
require any works. Low is given rather than “No Risk" as there may be a
risk that is unknown such as when the equipment gets hot, it could burn a
toddlers skin.

A medium risk is most likely to apply to top ups of loose fill top ups where
the level has dropped as far as 200mm. This risk has the three month
completion date and starts from the time of inspection.

assessment of low. This will usually take no longer than one month from
the date of receiving the report.

Any items or works under this risk assesment needs to be carried out as
soon as possible or the item needs to be bunted off if iminant injury is
possible.

I I A risk assessment of high does have to be rectified or reach a risk

Priority Rating

There are 4 priority rating

Low No or minor problems that are of low risk

Medium Indicates attention required within 3-6 months

High Indicates immediate attention required

Urgent Make safe, bunt off asap

Statenrent of Wark for Dirtworks Pty Lid = November 15, 2023 6
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GENERAL INSPECTION OF SITE & PLAY EQUIPMENT

On arrival, a general inspection is required for both safety and to identify the area and how it
has been installed.

block.

VISUAL INSPECTION

Debris in the playground that may be
hazardous, has the installers and
contractors left rubbish or anything that
could be a safety risk or an aesthetic

The playground is clean with
no areas of debris. Final
cleanup will be undertaken
when complete

[iow ]

Is the unitary softfall in good condition
and has been installed correctly?

The rubber softfall has been
installed to the correct height
on the indicators,

Is the loose fill softfall to the minimum
correct depth of 300mm being 200mm
impact depth and 100mm overfill for
breakdown?

The loose chips are all at the
recommended depth.

Graffiti.

playground.

Dead or damaged overhanging branches
that may potentially fall onto the

Mo graffiti was found on this
playground equipment

Mo branches are seen as a
hazard.

Siatement of 1F i )rbr- Dhirtworks .l-’!fr Tt = Nevenbpr 15, 2023
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PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT

PCP - 001
PCP - 002
PCP - 003
PCP — 004

Vratemrent of Work for Dirtwordks Pey Lod = Noveaber 15, 2023
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‘The net swing has been installed correctly with all the correct heights to be in line with the
current standards, the height of the net basket is greater than the minimum of 450mm and
is at the height where kids don't swing under it, all ropeworkis new with no install cuts or

abrasions, the failsafe’s are in place and the softfall is at the correct depth.

PCP - 001

‘The rocks and logs used around the softfall perimeter are all concreted in with decorative
exposed gravel embedded into the concrete. All sharp edges have been rounded over to
prevent abrasive cuts.

Statement of Weork jor Dirtworks Pty Lid * November 15, 2023 9
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Price Community Reserve Playground Form

Statement of Weork jor Dirtworks Pty Lid * November 15, 2023
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Price Community Reserve Playground Form

PCE~ 002

Statement of Werk for Dirtworks Pty Litd = November 15, 2023 1
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Price Community Reserve Playground Form

Statensent of Weork for Dirtworks Pty Lid = November 15, 2023 12
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Price Community Reserve Playground Form

in are all smoothed and the gaps have

Statement of Weork jor Dirtworks Pty Lid * November 15, 2023
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Price Community Reserve Playground Form

Statensent of Weork for Dirtworks Pty Lid = November 15, 2023 14
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Price Community Rescrve Playground Form
The clearance audit undertaken by Open Space Services provide the following summary in
regards to condition of the Play Equipment and summary of outstanding defects.
Condition
Description of Years
L works needed Hem type Rating Remaining
PCP - 001 No work required Swings 1 17 Years
PCP - 002 No work required Sand Pit 1 17 Years
PCP - 003 No work required Trampoline 1 17 Years
PCP — 001 No work required Ship Hammock 1 17 Years
Condition | Description of condition
Rating
1 Very Good: free -I:af defects, only planned and/or routine maintenance
required
2 Good: I'TIII'.IDI' defects, increasing maintenance required plus planned
maintenance
3 Eair: defects requiring regular and/or significant maintenance to
' reinstate service
4 Poor: significant defects, higher order cost intervention likely
5 Very Poor: phjfsncally gnsound and/or beyond rehabilitation, immediate
action required
Niasement .'_J_F W sk Jor Drirtorks P!"r T = Nevenbpr 15, 2023 15
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Price Community Reserve Playground Form

IMPACT ATTENUATION TESTING (simplified)

The methodology for impact testing is from the Australian Standards AS 4422(Int) :2022
Playground Surfacing — Specifications, Requirements and Test Methods.

For field testing on unitary (rubber) softfall the minimum amounts of drops per test site is four
with 200mm inbetween drop heights, starting at the foot hold. The four drops at different
heights cover the head heights of different children.

Testing points that fail to meet the required impact-attenuating criteria

When tested at the if the Head Impact Criteria is less than or equal to 1 000, the g is less
than or equal to 200 g, and the Head Impact Criteria duration is greater than or equal to 3
milliseconds, the result is declared satisfactory.

If, when tested at the hy, the HIC exceeds 1 000, the giyax exceeds 200 or the HIC duration
is less than 3 milliseconds, the result is not satisfactory.

TESTING RESULTS

Playground Name Price Community Reserve

Playground Address RM Williams Drive, Walkley Heights
Date: 15" November 2023

Time: 2:45pm

Temperature: 26.6°c

Humidity: 42%

Standard: AS 4422(Int) :2022 (en11772018-method2)
Type of surface: Prefabricated Surface (Unitary)

The surface is a new install and the playground equipment is is also a new install

Viarement af Wark for Dirtworks Pry Lid « Novesrbpr $3, 2025 14
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Price Community Reserve Playground Form

VISUAL AND TACTILE INSPECTION

This site has rubber softfall only next to the inground trampoline, the test walk of the softfall
was consistent in its rebound and compaction was uniform.

s Aty

Drops 4

Statement of Werk for Dirtworks Pty Lid = November 15, 2023
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Price Community Rescrve Playground Form
IMPACT TEST RESULTS
Satisfactory is highlighted in Green
Non-Satisfactory is highlighted in Orange
Drop HIC Gmax Milliseconds Height Outcome
Number
Main Play Structure
Drops 1 339 87 4 810
534 122 4 1003
656 126 4 1197
630 139 5 1456
Drops 2 405 98 4 815
460 114 4 1005
591 130 5 1206
680 124 4 1500
Drops 3 339 96 4 805
486 115 4 1002
696 126 5 1200
712 152 5 1396
Drops 4 394 105 3 806
531 121 4 996
665 130 5 1201
734 145 6 1392
Seateacent of Wark for Dirwerks Fry Lid « Novemter 15, 2023 1£
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Price Community Reserve Playground Form

CERTIFICATE OF IMPACT TESTS
.om-:u SPACE
SERVICES

Consulting Services to Dirtworks Pty Ltd

Date Services Performed By: Services Performed For:
November 15, 2023 Open Space Services Dirtworks Pty Ltd
36 Murray Road Price Community Reserve
Willaston SA 5118 Playground

Date and time of Test

The Services commenced on November 15, 2023, at R M Williams Drive Playground
at12:45pm

Certification

Certifying Auditor: Barry Rolton — Open Space Services

Certified that the Softfall at Price Community Playground Reserve Has Passed on all impact
test. §

Certifying Auditor sign off: /7 Date: November 1, 2023

Statement of Wark for Dirtworks Pty Lid = November 15, 2023 19
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Price Community Rescrve Playground Form

TESTING PROCEDURE (standard)

Australian Standards Excerpt

Equipment type Minimum number of test points

Swing—Types 1 and 2 1 front and back of each seat

Swing—Type 3 4 around the single point seal

Swing—Type 4 1 at back of each seat and 1 in the centre

Slide—Open 1 at starting section + 1 at run-out section + 1 each side

Slide—Tunnel 1 at entrance + 1 al exit

Cableway 1 per 5 linear matres along cable + 1 at terminus

Carousel—All types 4 equally spaced around the unit

Seesaw—Type 1 1 adjacent each end

Seesaw—Types 2 and 3 2 equally spaced around the unit

|Rocking equipment—Type 4 1 adjacent each end

Seesaw—Type S 4 equally spaced around the unit

Seesaw—Type 6 1 per seat

|Overhead items 1 per linear metre

Spatial networks 1 per anchor point (located equidistant between each anchor point) + 1
adjacent Lo each support pole

|Bouncing facilities 4 equally spaced around the unit

Other items 1 at the base of the exit

INOTE For equipment types see relevant Parts of AS 4685

Tests carried out on-site
The on-site verification report shall contain at minimum the following
information:

(a) A statement on the cover of the report advising that—
(i) the tests were performed on-site;

prevailing on the day of the test; and

(b) The number and date of this document, i.e., AS 4422,

(d) The test location, i.e., playground address.

(e) The date that the testing was conducted.

(f) A description of the product tested.

{g) The condition of the impact-attenuating surface at the time of the test,

including its temperature and any other factor(s) that may affect the
results.

Siatement of 1F i )rbr- Dhirtworks .l-’!fr Tt = Nevenbpr 15, 2023

(i} description of the weather conditions (dry-bulb temperature and precipitation)

(iii) the results shall not be considered comparable to those of a laboratory test.

(c) Verification that the on-site testing was conducted in accordance with this document.

(h) A staternent declaring the results of the testing to be satisfactory or not satisfactory.

20
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Price Community Reserve Playground Form

The results of each test specify the location and the following values:
(i) hf hmy or he for the points tested (1 decimal place in m).

(ii) HIC (0 decimal places).

(iii) 9max (O decimal places in m/s2).

(I)Name, signature and qualification of the testing person or entity.
The on-site verification report may also contain the following:

(i) The identification and localization of each point tested, using descriptions,
drawings or photographs.

(i) HIC Duration (i.e., tp- t1 decimal place in milliseconds).

Drop four hy,
Drop three hy,

Drop two hyy,

Drop onc hy

Minimum: 250mm

NDmp HIC Gmax Milliseconds Height Outcome
umber
1h¢ 593 124 4 1206mm
2 hm 881 148 4 1226mm
3 hm 996 165 5 1608mm
4 hm 1253 172 6 1807mm
Statenment of Wark for Dirtworks Pty Lid = November 15, 2023 21
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Price Community Rescrve Playground Form

GLOSSARY

hm
Measured fall height
height from Which a single drop is conducted (being the hf with a minimum additional 10 %

allowance) to determine the HIC, gm» and HIC duration of the surface under test at a
particular location. At the measured fall height, the HIC and the g5 Will be less than or

equal to 1000 HIC, or less than or equal 200 gmpgx, and greater than 3 milliseconds
respectively, for a satisfactory result.

*Three criteria need to be achieved: less than 1000 HIC, less than 200gmax and
greater than 3 milliseconds time interval. This needs to be achieved for a pass.

hf
Free height of fall

the greatest vertical distance from the clearly intended body support to the impact area
below.

*This refers to the area where the foothold or seated position is measured, in relation
to the impact area.

he
critical fall height

The calculated drop height produces a HIC value corresponding to the limits defined by the
conformity/non-conformity criteria applicable to the surface concerned

MNote 1 to entry: In the absence of defined limits for playground surfaces, it should be
assumed that the critical drop height corresponds to a HIC of 1 000, 200 gmay and 23
milliseconds

9max

Multiple of the acceleration (g) into gravity at the earth’s surface at sea level represents the
maximum acceleration experienced during impact.
*This is the measure of the speed of the head measuring unit as it hits the impact
area.

Drop height
distance between the test position on the surfacing and the lowest point of the free-falling
missile prior to release.

*This is the height of the bottom of the head measuring unit in relation to the target
impact area.

drop test
Minimum series of four impact measurements carried out from increasing fall heights, such
that at least two measurements exceed an acceptable critical fall height (hg)

*A singular drop test requires 4 drops of the head measure at 200mm increments in
the same place, if the certified maximum height is known, 2 drop tests are required
that exceed the critical fall height, however, if there is no certified height known, then
the three criteria of measured fall height apply which are: less than 1000 HIC, less
than 200gmax and greater than 3 milliseconds time interval.

Niasement .'_J_F W sk Jor Drirtorks P!"r T = Nevenbpr 15, 2023 22
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Price Community Rescrve Playground Form

HIC

Head injury criteria

measure of impact severity that considers the duration over Which the most critical section of
the deceleration pulse persists as well as the peak level of that deceleration

*This is the area where figures for the fall cannot exceed 1000, greater than this will
give a greater chance of head injury

HIC duration
The time interval over Which the HIC is calculated, i.e. (t4.12)

Note | to entry: The t4-t are two intermediate values of time between tgiat and topg to attain
the maximum HIC value.

*This is the time of measure in milliseconds when the head measure unit makes
contact with the surface and the area being tested to the time it bottoms out and then
rebounds and is level with the surface.

impact-attenuating surfacing

surface, whereby the kinetic energy of an impact is dissipated by localized elastic hysteresis,
deformation or displacement such that the maximum acceleration and HIC is reduced and
the HIC duration is increased

*The actual media placed within the play equipment to reduce head injury when
someone falls.

Impact attenuation

property whereby the kinetic energy of an impact is dissipated by localized elastic hysteresis,
deformation or displacement
*The stage of the impact which is absorbed by the media.

Niasement .'_J_F W sk Jor Drirtorks P!"r T = Nevenbpr 15, 2023 23
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PROJECT NAME: ANZAC Memaorial Port Clinton
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cled residents Personalised Letter Manager Economic Development and Business Sustainability ANM20Z3 31102023 c 13 responses

re community Website Communty Development and Engagement Officer 302023 26M1/2023 c 31 views

re community Public Motica Communty Development and Engagemeant Officer 3110/2023 31M10/2023 o 13 responses

e community Social Media Communty Development and Engagement Officer 2023 3M02023 c 384 post reach

re community Social Media Communty Development and Engagemeant Officer 13M11/2023 13M11/2023 C 420 post reach
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ORKE PENINSULA COUNCIL

e ——SE e

,,,,, BE—— PRINCIPAL OFFICE:
8 Elizabeth Street, Maitland
ALL CORRESPONDENCE TO;
PO Box 57, MAITLAND, SA 5573
Telephone (08) 8832 0000
Email: admin@yorke.sa.gov.au
Website: www.yorke.sa.gov.au A Ll ray it Matraly Nud

27 October 2023

Record No: 23/103288

Good afternoon
Proposed Anzac Memorial - Port Clinton

You are receiving this letter as you are considered by the Yorke Peninsula Council (Council) to be
an affected property owner in relation to a proposed ANZAC Memorial at the corner of Yoolamardy
Terrace and Yelta Street, Port Clinton, as shown on the map provided as Attachment 1.

A Port Clinton community member first contacted the Council in around August 2021 to enquire
as to the process required to gain Council approval (by way of landowner consent) to install the
proposed ANZAC Memorial. Council received an email from the Port Clinton Progress Association
(Progress) on 30 March 2022, advising that they supported the approval being sought for the
proposed ANZAC memorial and requesting that Council “initiate their process on the proposed
memorial .

In accordance with Council's PO057 Community Engagement Policy (Policy), the installation of a
structure like the ANZAC Memorial in a particular location is treated as a ‘Level 2' Consult, which
includes the requirement for a letter or survey to be provided to the affected property owners.

A consultation process has been carried out by members of the Port Clinton community, including
a town meeting and voting process. Council provided advice to inform this process, relating to the
requirements of the Policy, and assisted the Progress in counting the votes (understood to be the
votes resulting from the Port Clinton community consultation voting process undertaken by
community members).

The Council considered the community engagement process undertaken by members of the Port
Clinton community (relating to the proposed ANZAC Memorial) at its meeting held on 11 October
2023. A copy of the Agenda Report, “22.2 Consultation — Proposed ANZAC Memorial Port
Clinton”, is available via Council's website www.yorke.sa.gov.au. The Council's resolution was:

That Council:

1. Having considered the community engagement undertaken by members of the Port Clinton
community relating to the proposed ANZAC Memorial at the corner of Yoolamardy Terrace
and Yelta Street, Port Clinton (ANZAC Memorial Consultation), are satisfied that the
ANZAC Memorial Consultation does not meet the requirements of Council's Community
Engagement Policy (PO057), Level 2 Consult community engagement requirements;

2. Determines to undertake its own community engagement process to meet the
requirements of Council's Community Engagement Policy (PO057), Level 2 Consult, in
relation to the proposed ANZAC Memorial at the corner of Yoolamardy Terrace and Yelta
Street, Port Clinton.

BRANCH OFFIC
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Council is now seeking feedback about the proposed ANZAC Memorial, in particular the proposed
location and periods of installation, as suggested by members of the community, in consideration
of Attachment 2. For ease of reference, photos of the proposed structure are provided in
Attachment 3.

Consultation is open until close of business (5pm) on Thursday, 26 November 2023 and all
feedback must be returned by this time.

Please email feedback to admin@yorke.sa.gov.au or mail to Yorke Peninsula Council, PO Box
57, Maitland SA 5573.

Any submissions received will be provided to the Council to inform decision-making relating to-the
proposed ANZAC Memorial. Please note that the identity of any persons submitting feedback will
'be redacted and kept confidential.

Please indicate in your feedback submission if you wish to appear in person before Council in
relation to the proposed ANZAC Memorial.

For further information, please contact Nick Perry, Manager Economic Development and Business
Sustainability on 8832 0000.

Director Corporate and Community Services (on behalf of Nick Perry — Manager Economic
Development and Business Sustainability)
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ATTACHMENT 1
Yorke Peninsula Council
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ATTACHMENT 2

PORT CLINTON ANZAC MEMORIAL VOTING ?Apzjzn
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ATTACHMENT 3
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Submission one
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From: ]
To: ] mail I

Subject: Re: Public Consultation - Port Clinton ANZAC Memorial
Date: Monday, 30 October 2023 7:01:18 PM

Caution: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. When
in doubt, please contact the Council's IT Team.

Re proposed port clinton anzac memorial. We feel that the memorial painting on the
community hall is sufficient. We are not against a temporary flagpole on the foreshore for
the Anzac Day service. rgds

On Mon, 30 Oct 2023, 3:32 pm Corporate Email Address, <admini@vorke.sa.gov.au=
wrote:

Good afternoon,

You are receiving this email as you are considered by the Yorke Peninsula Council to be
an affected property owner in relation to a proposed ANZAC Memorial at the corner of
Yoolamardy Terrace and Yelta Street, Port Clinton,

Council is now seeking leedback about the proposed ANZAC Memorial, in particular
the proposed location and periods of installation, as suggested by members of the
community.

Please see attached correspondence from Director Corporate and Community Services
Ben Thompson (on behalf of Nick Perry — Manager Economic Development and
Business Sustainability).

Yorke Peminsula Council I Maitland Office
Ph: (08) 8832 0000 1

E: admin@yorkesa.govau | W: www.yorkesa.govan
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Submission two
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To: Corporate Email Address
Subject: Public Consultation - Port Clinton ANZAC Memorial
Date: Thursday, 2 November 2023 5:36:08 PM

Attachments: Letter - Public Consultation - Port Clinton ANZAC Memorial .pdf

Caution: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. When in doubt, please
contact the Council's IT Team.

Hi
Please find attached my selection for option A.
I do not wish to appear before council in relation to the proposal.

Kind Regards
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ATTACHMENT 2

PORT CLINTON ANZAC MEMORIAL VOTING PAPER

Please place a tick in the box next to the option you are choosing.

If you have an alternative option, please write it in the section provided.

OPTION A

Memorial to be placed on the cliff top, corner of Yelta Street and Yoolamardy Terrace as shown on Appendix 1 {and as stated in
the original proposal to council)

[ opTiON B

A temporary memaorial in the same location as Option A, but will be installed for only 7 days prior and 7 days after all celebrated
days of remembrance.

OPTION C

No Anzac memorial to be placed at the cliff top corner of Yelta Street and Yoolamardy Terrace.
Memorial to be placed at the Community Hall, Cumberland Road.

[ ] opTiON D

Suggestions for another location:
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Submission
three
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From: I
To: Corparate Email Address

Subject: Feedback re proposed AMZAC memaorial - Port Clinton
Date: Friday, 3 November 2023 9:08:56 AM

Caution: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. When
in doubt, please contact the Council's IT Team.

Our vote is for Option D, as follows:

We are happy to have a temporary memorial for ANZAC day celebrations but not a permanent
memaorial.

Our preference for the permanent memorial is to be placed at the Community Hall, Cumberland
Rd, Pt Clinton.

Pt Clinton

PS —the Progress Committee did not keep us informed at all about the progress of the initial
Consultation,
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Submission four
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From: -
To: Lorporate Email Address

Subject: RE: Public Consultation - Port Clinton ANZAC Memarial
Date: Sunday, 5 Movember 2023 11:56:35 AM

Caution: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. When
in doubt, please contact the Council's IT Team.

Good Morning,

| have read your correspondence and have been invalved in the Public meetings regarding the
proposed ANZAC memaorial. | am aware that some landowners are opposed to the erection of a
permanent memaorial whilst the majority of voters are in favour of the proposed memaorial.
Therefore, | see that the only resolution toward harmony in the town is the proposed option B.
This will allow the recognition of our returned veterans on ANZAC Day but hopefully soothe
those opposed. | am also aware that there is already a permanent Memaorial at the Community
Hall and suggest that the small figures be displayed there throughout the remaining year.

My humble suggestion is intended to honour our Veterans whilst ensuring harmony within the
Community.

Regards,

.

]

Port Clinton SA 5570

Sent from Mail for Windows

From: Corporate Email Address
Sent: Monday, 30 October 2023 3:32 PM
To: 'admin@yorkepeninsula.com.au’

Subject: Fublic Consultation - Port Clinton ANZAC Memorial

Good afternoon,

You are receiving this email as you are considered by the Yorke Peninsula Council to be an
affected property owner in relation to a proposed ANZAC Memorial at the corner of Yoolamardy
Terrace and Yelta Street, Port Clinton.

Council is now seeking feedback about the proposed ANZAC Memaorial, in particular the
proposed location and periods of installation, as suggested by members of the community.

Please see attached correspondence from Director Corporate and Community Services Ben
Thompson (on behalf of Mick Perry — Manager Econamic Development and Business
Sustainability).

Yorke Peninsula Council | Maitland Office

Ph: (08) 8832 0000 |

E: admin@yorke.sa.gov.au | W: www.yorke.sa.gov.au
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Submission five
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Submission Six
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ATTACHMENT 2

PORT CLINTON ANZAC MEMORIAL VOTING PAPER

Please place a tick in the box next to the option you are choosing.

If you have an alternative option, please write it in the section provided.

[ JopTiON A

Memorial to be placed on the cliff top, corner of Yelta Street and Yoolamardy Terrace as shown on Appendix 1 {and as stated in
the original proposal to council)

[ lopTiON B

A temporary memorial in the same lacation as Option A, but will be installed for anly 7 days prior and 7 days after all celebrated

days of remembirance.

B/OPTION C

No Anzac memorial to be placed at the cliff top corner of Yelta Street and Yoolamardy Terrace.
Memorial to be placed at the Community Hall, Cumberland Road,

[ lopTiON D

suggestions for another location:

A THE Certbyonety  MHopooo
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From: —
To: Corporate Email Address

Cc:

Subject: Proposed Anzac Memonial - Port Chinton

Date: Tuesday, 14 November 2023 12:31:03 PM
Attachments: Proposed Anzac Memorial.docx

Caution: This email originated from outside of the orgamization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the confent is safe. When
in doubt, please contact the Council's IT Team.

To whom it may concern.

Please find attached my response to the proposed permanent memorial on Yoolamardy
Tce. Port Clinton.

I understand that my personal information will be redacted and kept confidential.

With Regards

Port Clinton SA 5570
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Proposed Anzac Memorial — Port Clinton
14/11/2023
Yorke Peninsula Council
PO Box 57, Maitland
SA 5573.
To whom it may concern,

| appreciate the opportunity to share my thoughts on the proposed ANZAC Memorial
on the corner of Yoolamardy Tce and Yelta Street. My concerns and observations
during the consultation period and town meeting are as follows:

1. Consultation period:

During the consultation period, | engaged in two conversations with Sue Beech
expressing my disappointment at the perceived bullying nature of the memorial
proposers toward friends and acquaintances, Some individuals refrained from voting
due to concerns about transparency of the voting system and our emailed vote was
given by the Port Clinton Progress Association to the proposers for collection, a
process that seemed amateurish. While not directly related to the Yorke Peninsula
Council’'s question, these concerns highlight the potential impact on future decisions
and the significant division created among residents.

2. Permanent Installation of Memaorial:

My main concerns regarding the permanent installation of the memaorial on the
corner of Yoolamardy Tce and Yelta Street include, OH&S and permanent memorial
requirements that the council may need to address. These concerns encompass the
potential need for safety barriers at the clifftop edge, marked car parking, shaded
seating areas, pedestrian crossings, additional kerbing, impact of increased local
traffic, and concerns for our and others children and grandchildren in the area. None
of which, | would look forward to.

| am concerned about the visual impact the memorial or ancillary requirements will
have on the landscape, will it detract from the natural beauty of Yoolamardy Tce? |
am also concerned about the potential impact on my property value as a permanent
memorial may influence the desirability of my property.

3. Temporary Installation of a Memorial:

The current ANZAC day dawn service involves the temporary installation of a
flagpole, podium and seating. However, the lack of adherence to protocols and
proper clean-up in the past has diminished the solemnity of the occasion. Although |
would support a continued celebration of a dawn service in its current location, it is
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crucial to determine responsibility for its placement, oversight of the proceedings and
adherence to protocols. | suggest a limited time frame for the memorial to be in
place, specifically two days before and after ANZAC day, with exceptions for
weekends during that period. No other days of remembrance celebrated at the site.

4. No Memorial Erected on the Corner of Yoolamardy Tce and Yelta Street

| strong support the proposal of not erecting a memorial at this location. There is
already an ANZAC memorial at the Town Community Hall. Adding the memorial
plague and metal soldiers would complement the existing memorial. There is already
adequate parking at this location. In my observations of ANZAC memorials across
Australia, they are predominantly situated in main streets near town halls and RSL
buildings surrounded by flower gardens or parklands, and well maintained as a focal
point for honouring the sacrifices made by proud individuals. Residential areas are
rarely chosen for such memorials.

5: Alternative Sites for the Memorial.

| have no other suggestions for appropriate sites for the propose memorials other
than the community hall.

In summary, | am against the installation of a permanent memorial due to the direct
impacts on my family and me. Despite the group of property owners who live on the
front, being publicly ridiculed at the town meeting. It is essential to consider the
premium we paid for the view, which is also reflected in our annual rates. This seems
easy for others to dismiss as it has no impact on them at all.

| appreciate the opportunity to express my concerns and hope that the decision
makers carefully consider the differing perspectives within the community.

Sincerely,

For and behalf of my wife,

Port Clinton SA 5570

Item 23.4- Attachment 2 Page 164



COUNCIL MEETING ATTACHMENTS 13 DECEMBER 2023

Submission
eight

Item 23.4- Attachment 2 Page 165



COUNCIL MEETING ATTACHMENTS 13 DECEMBER 2023

From: I
To: Mary Herrmann

Ce: Sue Beech; Mavor Braund;

Subject: Part Clinton ANZAC memarial submission
Date: Monday, 20 Movember 2023 1:14:21 PM

Caution: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. When
in doubt, please contact the Council's IT Team.

Good afternoon, Mary,
Please find below my final submission on the proposed ANZAC
memorial at Port Clinton Road Reserve.

May | point out from the outset that [ and | were friends until this proposal
started. My intent was not to cause anybody any distress or disharmony to anybody.
From the outset,¥ has opposed this initiative and convinced those closest to him
to do the same. l/we have simply represented the majority of the town because a
majority of Australian towns have some form of an ANZAC memorial and we are no
different. We don't think the mural on the local town hall is as affective as what we
propose with the new memorial.

I'm not too sure if you will receive too many responses to the decision by council to
conduct final consultation with a small group of affected landowners who oppose our
proposal, the overwhelming majority of the town residents feedback is that they/we have
done everything in our power to have this initiative approved and enough is enough.
You will find thatﬁ two adjacent neighbours are Alice Springs residents, and
those houses are at this stage used as holiday houses. Another one of the residents
—} who is against this initiative lives approx. six houses away and cannot
see the proposed site space. All these residents are long term friends of [ and
as loyal friends they would oppose anything [} is acainst.

Another resident who secretly filmed our town consultation in Apr 23, lives in the middle
of town and has no line of sight with the proposed site space, not sure why she is so
against this initiative.

It appears that the small number of affected residents against this proposal are against
it as they deem this memorial will become a tourist attraction and that it will attract
heavy traffic and potentially pose a threat to their grandchildren's road safety. The only
memorial tourist attraction | know of is at ANZAC cove, this argument has no credit to it.
If these residents were concerned about road safety, why haven't they put fences up at
the front of their houses, they are all wide open. | cannot see visitors/tourists pulling into
town for the sole purpose of look at the proposed memorial.

There are also 2 permanent benches/seats adjacent to the proposed site, were
residents consulted with the installation of these?. Did these affected residents complain
that these benches/seats block their views more than the proposed memorial? The
proposed memorial is 90cm/120cm and the benches are 80/203cm, they are larger than
our proposed memorial. One bench is directly in the line of sight of

neighbours, haven't heard any complaints about that. | would suggest that these two
benches attract more tourist type visitors as they drive past and decide to use them to
sit on while they have a cuppa and enjoy the wonderful view.

From the outset l/we have attempted to honour and acknowledge our forefathers and
families by having a suitable memorial placed on what we consider to be a magnificent
site, with panoramic views. Majority of town residents feel this is our way of paying our
respects to those who served and continue to serve. While we respect we have a mural
on the side of our hall, we truly believe this proposed memaorial is more poignant and a
better way to preserve and continue the ANZAC traditions.
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My opinion and the opinion of other town residents, is that people who oppose this, lack
respect and it is un-Australian behaviour to oppose such a memaorial.

This whole drawn out process has attracted attention from people far and wide and
people, it will continue to do so, they are bewildered as to why such a small group of
residents can stonewall, and oppose such an initiative. We are a democratic society,
I/we have followed and carried out all advice/directions provided by council. The vote
held in May was overwhelming, in a normal democratic society that result should have
been enough for council to go ahead with this proposal. The residents you are about to
engage are being loyal to their neighbour and others do not want to be seen to have an
opinion. We can only hope that commonsense prevails and that the elected council
members see fit to approve what our town has voted on.

Regards
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From:
Subject: Re: Anzac Memaorial
Date: Saturday, 25 November 2023 9:44:48 AM

Attachments: Imiagelil.png

Caution: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. When
in doubt, please contact the Council's IT Team.

Hi Nick
Thank you for taking my call yesterday, 1 do really appreciate it.

I choose option B. However in saying that there will need to be some very clear guidelines
outlined to Progress to ensure the installation of all Anzac items are mstalled properly and
more import dismantled at the correct time. They don’t do it now and ends up being the
job of the people who live at the front and of course their friends.

Hope all goes well with your report on Monday and look forward to the outcome and
ending this unfortunate saga that has taken its toll on many peoples lives.
Kind regards

On Fri, 24 Nov 2023 at 10:55 am, Nick Perry <Nick Perrviavorke sa.gov.au= wrote:

Good morning -, and thank you for your email outlining the background to the Port
Clinton ANZAC Memorial consultation which is presently underway (closing Sunday,
26 February).

I note your views although [ would like to ask that you please consider also responding
direetly to the voting options Council has presented to ensure your preference is counted.

The voting paper can be found here: Formal-Voting-Paper.pdf (vorke sa.gov.au)

Alternatively, for your convenience, the options are:
A. Memorial to be placed on the cliff top
. A temporary memorial on the cliff top

B
C. No memorial on the cliff top; memorial at the Community Hall instead
D. Suggestion for another location (please indicate where)

Thanks again,

Nick F'erry | Manager Economic Development and Business Sustainability

Yorke Peninsula Council | Principal Office - Maitland

Ph: 08 — 8832 0000 | E: pick perry@yorke sa gov.au | W: www yorke sa gov.au
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To whom it may concern YP council,

| would like to make a submission regarding the proposed ANZAC memorial on the cliff top on

Yoolamardy Terrace Port Clinton.

| have been around the town since my childhood, some 56 years this year, with a property on i
, first built by my father and now owned by me, and

have watched the town change over the years as people move on and others move in. In this time

there have been issues in town, but none that have seemed to divide and cause as much

animosity.

Dare | say some people who may have no real interest in the proposal one way or the other, voted
in favor to spite some of those most affected.

That said | would firstly like to take issue with the vote process conducted by the progress
association in by not having an independent return officer. Instead returning the ballot to those who
made the proposal. Names were required to be able to vote so those proposing knew who wasn't
in favor. | know there were people who didn't cast a vote as they didn’t want to be intimidated or
singled out, and newer people in town that didn't want to get involved in the small town politics.
There was no flyer or note drop of any sort or attempt to contact all the townsfolk, | only found out
by chance to vote so it could hardly be considered a community vote.

However onto the proposal that | have seen, and as noble and well intentioned it may be. A
memorial should be in a solemn place, as a mark of respect for those it represents. The area
proposed is inappropriate as a permanent memorial site, as it also the site where people gather to
celebrate New Year's Eve and other occasions, children play, ride bikes and kick balls hardly a
place for solemn observance and a memorial, unless the council would be looking to curtail these
activities. This location for every day other than the ANZAC dawn service has no historical
significance for the town what so ever.

However a case could be made for a temporary memorial for the Anzac Day dawn service
ceremony. The proposed sheet steel memorial could be made demountable from a permanent
stand at the community hall where the current memorial garden and cross of remembrance and
mural is located. Which according to the book on Port Clinton’s history was built with considerable
grants from the council and government. It was where the Remembrance Day observance 2023
was held. It could be then be demounted onto a mobile frame for the ANZAC day dawn service and
perhaps for a few days either side just as the flagpoles are erected for a few days each year. The
community hall is the towns gathering place were the local community and visitors meet for all
other occasions and | feel it appropriate to place a permanent memorial.

| feel the voices of those residents most affected, (visually in front of) should be listened to, none of
whom | know to be in favor. And as | wouldn't want it front of me, | wouldn’t expect others to have it
front of them permanently.

So | am not in favour of a permanent ANZAC Memorial on Yoolamardy Terrace.

Thank you for the opportunity for making a submission. | do not wish to appear in person to make a
submission before the council but | am prepared to be contacted if any clarification is required.
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20 November 2023

Yorke Peninsula Council
PO Box 57
Maitland SA 5573

Attention: Ben Thompson (on behalf of Nick Perry)
Re: Proposed ANZAC Memorial — Port Clinton

Thank you for providing us with an opportunity to provide our personal feedback regarding
the permanent structure of a memorial. Please know we are still strongly against having a
permanent structure, however all this time we have tried our best to share that we are
happy to have the memorial at the cliff top for ANZAC Day only.

Approximately nine years ago we shared with the Port Clinton Progress Association that
they should hold the ANZAC dawn service at the corner of Yoolamardy Tce and Yelta St.
Every year since being held at this location it has been well received by the community and
visitors to our town. We are avid supporters of ANZAC Day and have been involved for many
years.

It’s unfortunate that since the commencement of the proposed ANZAC memorial we have
been victimised and personally attacked because we don’t want it located in this spot
permanently. If only the community including the initiators gave us the opportunity to
speak or at least listen to our concerns as to why we are against the permanent structure.
| have attached one of the first letters that wrote and emailed to.

. (See attached letter from As you can see from this letter
it's defamatory towards me. When | requested an apology through the Chairperson of the
Port Clinton Progress Association, , he said it's between you and him.
Unfortunately, we have had no support from Progress.

has made it quite clear that he only wants the memorial located there
permanently and will not compromise as to any other option. He has stated this numerous
times not only at the town hall meeting with the community but many times at the local
Port Clinton Community Sports Club. We have the video of him stating that he only wants it
permanent when asked by a community member would you consider a temporary structure
or another location. His answer was no. When asked what the process will be moving
forward, he said it will be up to council and landowners to compromise.

We feel the community has been misinformed or led to believe ill truths and feel they think
we are totally against anything ANZAC. This was evident at the town meeting whereby.

was asked by a member of the public “How many landowners are opposed to the
memorial?”. He replied “(4) four that he knows of” then was asked “and on what
grounds?”. He replied, “blocks their view and they shouldn’t have to look at that every day
they wake up”. My question to you is how would he know this when he has never ever
asked or spoken to us about it?
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The two initiators —] have caused this community to divide, which is
unfortunate. Some locals have shared their views of being intimidated and feel that they
cannot view their concerns due to the fact they too will also become victimised. This was
obvious at the town hall presentation given b\,r-. We have been a member of this
community for over 25 years, and this is the first time we have come across this type of
behaviour.

It was quite clear to members of the Port Clinton community that the two initiators and
their families did not attend the 2023 ANZAC Day dawn service. To be blunt,

stated at a meeting that he will not attend the dawn service here until the matter is
resolved. To be honest if you are that passionate about ANZAC, wouldn't you attend no
matter what!

This year, as in previous years, the Remembrance Day ceremony was held outside the Port
Clinton Town Hall where the permanent ANZAC memorial is located. (see attached photo).
This memorial has been in place for many years to which the council donated money
towards and progress worked hard to gain the grants.

| have attached three (3) previous emails that support our position. (see attached emails)
Since the meeting held by council on the 11" of Dc:tol::-er,_ have
taken it upon themselves to update the community by placing letters and copies of emails at
the local shop. The content of the first letter is awful and very upsetting. | have attached a
phaoto of these letters/emails for your reference. (see attached six (6) photos)

We are more than happy to discuss this further with you if you believe this will assist with

your consultation.

Kind regards,

Port Clinton SA 5570
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From: (—

To: Corporate Email Address

Subject: Proposed Anzac Memorial- Port Clinton

Date: Thursday, 23 November 2023 12:26:23 PM

Attachments: Image280323143810 pdf
1mage280323143856 pdf

Caution: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. When
in doubt, please contact the Council's IT Team.

YORKE PENINSULA COUNCIL.

Thanks for letting us comment on the proposed Anzac memorial, As an affected property owner

stvate

Let us start by stating that we have no problems with having this memorial located at the
proposed site at the corner of Yoolamardy Terrace and Yelta Street as it is a Great Place For the
dawn service.

However as a Temporary Structure For ANZAC Day Only. To be erected a
couple of days before and a couple of days after to assist with removing after ANZAC DAY.

We believe that Anzac Day is for respecting and remembering all of our soldiers who served our
country. To us, this is not a happy day as it is a day to respect and remember.

To wake up every day and look out our window and see this memorial only meters away is not
mentally healthy, It Would also bring back memories on a daily basis.

We purchased the property here at this location because of the great undisturbed views of the
coastline and so our children plus grandkids can play over in the small park and not be in danger
of the increased road traffic.

This memorial however would bring if allowed to be permanently located in this location an
increase in traffic.

To place a permanent structure would only also bring arguments and problems for the following
reasons.

Being a permanent site many people will undoubtedly come to see/pay respects and the location
does not have parking which would result in parking illegally or on other residence properties.

We don’t believe this is the ideal site for this memorial, Pt Clinton already has ANZAC Memorials
at the Town Hall and that’s where most people go after the Dawn Service.

Have attached a copy of our original submission dated 28/3/2023 regarding this matter. And the

eter fom N

Regards

inton.
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Ta - The Port Clinton Progress Association & Yorke Peninsula Council, 28/03/2023

Re : Proposed War Meamarial at Yoolamardy Tce.

To whom it may concern,

My name is || | NG vy wife T myself own [ s oroperty is

situated opposite the proposed site for the Memorial,

I was reminded of this when | received a very naive & poorly written letter/email from

I am lead ta belleue_ I have attached a copy of this letter.

Is this the type of rhetoric we must put up with. | also believe, we should all be able to voice our
opinion without being judged.

| wish to oppose the proposed War Memorial to be placed opposite our home,
Reasons for this decision are listed below -

& Increased traffic all year round.

e Safety of our grandchildren will be compromised when playing out the front.
* Lack of parking

« Onlyanarrow road

« Will obstruct and block our views.

* Lack of consultation -NIL

# MNoise, ina now peaceful environment.

s | feel this will create concerns to our safety in this street.

Finally thankyou for allowing us to put forward our points of view towards the proposed War
Memorial at Yoolamardy Tee. However | feel this to be the wrong location for this as | have listed
above and would look forward to hearing of alternate sites.

I would like to be kept informed via this Email of any future developments on this matter.

Port Clintan, SA
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From:

To: Corparate Email Address

Subject: Mo vote for port Clinten war memorial
Date: Thursday, 23 November 2023 3:13:12 PM

Attachments: memorial menument,pdf

Caution: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. When
in doubt, please contact the Council's IT Team.

Attention Yorke Peninsula Council

Re: Port Clinton ANZAC Memorial Consultation
Attention Council,

Please find attached my letter opposing the proposed Anzac memaorial to be place at the reserve
on the corner of Yelta street and Yoolamardy Terrace and the reasons why.

We wrote this letter back in March and cur sentiment has not changed, if anything it is a firmer
‘MO’ due to the unprofessional behaviour of the arganisers and Port Clinton Progress
Association.

We oppose the war memorial as a permanent structure. We wish the use of the reserve for
Anzac dawn service to remain the same as now i.e. The flag and structure (should they so desire)
erected for the day only and removed by end of day.

Kind regards

I o ' con
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FORM B2 [Version 4)

CUIDANGE NOTES AVAILABLE LANDS TITLES REGISTRATION OFFICE
SOUTH AUSTRALIA

APPLICATION TO NOTE LAND

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT
{Pursuant to s 193(12) of the Planning,
Development and Infrastructure Act 2016 (SA))

FORM AFFROVED BY THE REGISTRAR-GENERAL

PRIORITY NOTICE ID

STAMP DUTY DOCUMENT ID

SERIES NO PFREFIX

AGENT CODE

LODGED BY:

PETER SCRAGG & ASSOCIATES PARS
CORRECTION TO:

PETER SCRAGG & ASSOCIATES PARS

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION LODGED WITH INSTRUMENT
(COPIES ONLY)

CORRECTION PASSED

REGISTERED

REGISTRAR-GENERAL

york0001_230236 004 dacx
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TYPE OF DOCUMENT APPLICATION TO NOTE LAND MANAGEMENT
AGREEMENT

(Pursuant to s 193(12) of the Planning, Development and
Infrastructure Act 2016 (SA))

PRIVACY COLLECTION STATEMENT: The information in this form is collected under statutory authority and is used for maintaining
publicly searchable registers and indexes. It may also be used for authorised purposes in accordance with Government legislation and
policy requirements.

To the Registrar-General:

1. Yorke Peninsula Council of 8 Elizabeth Street Maitland SA 5573 has entered into the attached Land
Management Agreement dated (Agreement) with Graham Martin Cook of 4 Blue Crab
Court Ardrossan SA 5571 and Peter Austin Rhodes Scragg of 185 Port Road Hindmarsh SA 5007 pursuant to
s 193(1) of the Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016 (SA) (Act).

The Agreement relates to part of the land comprised in Cerlificate of Title Volume 5480 Folio 180 (Land).
The Council applies pursuant to s 193(12) of the Act to note the Agreement against the Land.

The Council is a designated authority with the power to enter Land Management Agreements pursuant to s 193(19)
of the Act.

CERTIFICATION “Delete the inapplicable

“The Certifier has taken reascnable steps to verify the identity of the applicant or his, her or its administrator or attorney.

“The Certifier holds a properly completed Client Authorisation for the Conveyancing Transaction including this Registry
Instrument or Document.

“The Certifier has retained the evidence to support this Registry Instrument or Document.

“The Certifier has taken reasonable steps to ensure that the Registry Instrument or Document is correct and compliant with
relevant legislation and any Prescribed Requirement.

Signed By:

Name:
Capacity:

for:

0On behalf of the Applicant

york0001_230236 004 dacx
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Land Management Agreement

Between
Yorke Peninsula Council
Graham Martin Cook

Peter Austin Rhodes Scragg

york0001_230236_004 dacx
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DATE day of November 2023

PARTIES
Yorke Peninsula Council of 8 Elizabeth Street Maitland SA 5573 (Council)
Graham Martin Cook of 4 Blue Crab Court, Ardrossan SA 5571(0Owner)

Peter Austin Rhodes Scragg of 185 Port Road Hindmarsh SA 5007 (Developer)

BACKGROUND
A, The Owner is the registered proprietor of the estate in fee simple in the Land.

B. The Developer has, through his agent State Surveys, sought Development Approval
for the subdivision from the Land of the Allotment to achieve a dwelling excision (the
Application).

C. The Land is within the Rural Zone of the Planning and Design Code established under
the Act. Itis also subject to a number of Overlays including, relevantly, the Limited
Dwelling Overlay and the Dwelling Excision Overlay.

D. A wvacant dwelling building is located on the Land (the House).

E. On 19 June 2023 the Yorke Peninsula Council Assessment Manager refused to give
Development Approval to the Application (the Refusal) as it was considered that the
House was not a dwelling as defined in the Code and referred to in the Dwelling
Excision Overlay because it was not presently fit for human habitation.

F. On 23 June 2023 the Developer lodged the Appeal against the Refusal

G. The Developer has partly renovated the House and intends to continue to renovate the
House to bring it up to a condition where it is fit for human habitation.

H. The Assessment Manager and the Developer have conferred in relation to the matter
and have reached an agreement to resolve the Appeal on this basis of this agreement
being entered into by the Owner, the Developer and the Council.

I In considering whether to enter into this agreement, Council has had regard to the
relevant mandatory considerations under Section 193(4) of the Act.

J Pursuant to section 193(1) of the Act the Owner and the Developer have agreed with
Council to enter into this agreement relating to the development, and management of
the Allotment.

K.  Council is a designated authority with the power to enter into Land Management
Agreements pursuant to section 193(19) of the Act.

AGREED TERMS

york0001_230236 004 dacx
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1. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION
1.1 Definitions
In this agreement:
Act means the Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016 (SA).

Allotment means that portion of the Land comprising Lot 702 in the attached
plan to this agreement being Attachment A

Appeal means the originating appeal lodged by the Developer in the
Environmental Resources and Development Court Action Number ERD-23-
000069 in relation to the Council's refusal of the Application.

Application means DA 23011347 being the application to subdivide
Attachment A from the Land and issue a new title in respect of the same.

Council includes any agent or employee of the Yorke Peninsula Council who is
authorised by Council.

Developer means Peter Austin Rhodes Scragg and his permitted assigns.

Proposed Development means the development contemplated by the
Application.

Development Approval means Planning Consent, Land Division Consent and
Development Approval of the Application under the Act.

House means the existing residential structure which is on the Allotment, the
plans elevations and drawings of which form Annexure "B” to this agreement.

Land means the whole of the land comprised in Certificate of Title Volume
5480 Folio 180 commonly known as Section 141 Hundred of Cunningham in the
area of Dowlingville and 75 Dowlingville Slant Road, Dowlingville and includes
any part or parts of it.

Registration of this Agreement means the registration of this Agreement
upon the title to the Land and the title to the Allotment in accordance with the
provisions of Section 193(12) of the Act and Clause 6 of this Agreement.

Regulations means the Planning, Development and Infrastructure (General)
Regulations 2017 (SA).

Section 138 Certificate means a certificate issued under Section 138 of the
Act.

1.2 Interpretation
In this agreement, unless the context otherwise requires:
1.21  headings do not affect interpretation;
1.2.2  singular includes plural and plural includes singular;

1.2.3  words of one gender include any gender;
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1.2.4  areference to a party includes its executors, administrators,
successors and permitted assigns;

1.25 areference to the Owner includes each person registered or entitled to
be registered as a proprietor of an estate in fee simple of the Land;

1.26 areference to a person includes a partnership, corporation,
association, government body and any other entity;

1.2.7  an agreement, representation, warranty or indemnity by two or more
parties (including where two or more persons are included in the same
defined term) binds them jointly and severally;

1.2.8  an agreement, representation, warranty or indemnity in favour of two
or more parties (including where two or mare persons are included in
the same defined term) is for the benefit of them jointly and severally;

1.2.9 areference to legislation includes any amendment to it, any legislation
substituted for it, and any subordinate legislation made under it;

1.2.10 a provision is not construed against a party only because that party
drafted it;

1.211  an unenforceable provision or part of a provision may be severed, and
the remainder of this agreement continues in force, unless this would
materially change the intended effect of this agreement;

1.2.12 the meaning of general words is not limited by specific examples
introduced by ‘including’, ‘for example’ or similar expressions;

1.2.13 an expression defined in the Act or the Regulations has the meaning
given by the Act or Regulations at the date of this agreement;

1.2.14 expressions defined in the Background have those meanings.
1.3  Background

The Background forms part of this agreement and is correct at the date of this
agreement.

1.4 Legislation

The requirements of this agreement are to be construed as additional to the
requirements of the Act and any other legislation affecting the Land.

2. BACKGROUND MATTERS ARE CORRECT

The parties acknowledge that the matters set out in the Background are correct.
3. OWNER'S AND DEVELOPER’'S OBLIGATIONS

3.1 Compliance with this Agreement

The Owner and the Developer must not commence or proceed with, or permit
any other person to commence or proceed with:

3.11  the Proposed Development; or
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3.1.2  any application or request for a Section 138 Certificate in respect of
the Proposed Development

in each case unless at all times the Developer is complying with the
Developer's obligations under this Agreement.

4. THE DEVELOPER'S OBILGATIONS

4.1 The Developer hereby undertakes that upon the registration of this
Agreement to:

(a) at his own cost and expense to do all things necessary to
renovate the House to bring it into a condition where it is fit for
human habitation; and

(b} notto demolish the House or any part thereof without the prior
approval in writing of the Council which approval the Developer
acknowledges the Council in its absolute discretion may refuse
to give; and

(c) notto construct another dwelling on the Allotment.

5. RESTRICTION ON BUILDING ANY OTHER DEWELLING UPON THE ALLOTMENT

Excluding the acquisition by a statutory authority of any statutory easement or other
interest in the Land, the Owner and the Developer must not grant any lease licence
easement or other right which may give any person the right to possession or control
of or entry on to the Land which right would enable such person to breach any of the
obligations imposed on the Owner and the Developer by this agreement unless such
grant:

5.1 is expressed in writing; and

5.2  contains as an essential term a covenant by the grantee not to do or omit to do
(or suffer or permit any other person to do or omit to do) any act matter or thing
which would constitute a breach by the Owner and the Developer of their
obligations under this agreement.

6. COUNCIL'S POWERS OF ENTRY
6.1 The Council may at any reasonable time enter the Land for the purpose of:
6.1.1 inspecting the Land and any building or structure on the Land;

6.1.2 exercising any other powers of the Council under this agreement or
pursuant to law.

6.2 If either the Owner or the Developer is in breach of any provision of this
agreement, the Council may, by notice served on the Owner or the Developer
(as the case may be), specify the nature of the breach and require the party in
breach to remedy the breach within such time as may be nominated by the
Council in the notice (being at least 28 days from the date of service of the
notice unless the circumstances otherwise require). If the Owner or the
Developer (as the case may be) fails so to remedy the breach, the Council or
its servants or agents may carry out the requirements of the notice and in doing
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so may enter and perform any necessary works upon the Land and recover any
costs thereby incurred from the party in breach.

6.3  If in a notice referred to in clause 6.2 the Council requires the removal of the
building or structure from the Land, the Council and its servants or agents are
authorised and empowered by the Owner and the Developer to enter and
remove the building or structure from the Land and to dispose of it in any
manner determined by the Council provided that if the building or structure has
any monetary value then the Council must use its best endeavours to realise
that monetary value and must after the disposal account to the Owner or the
Developer (as the case may be) and pay to them the realised value less all
expenses incurred.

6.4 The Council may delegate any of its powers under this agreement to any
person.

6.5 The Owner and the Developer agree that a breach of this agreement may
cause loss or injury for which compensation is not an adequate remedy. If the
Owner and/or the Developer (as the case may be) is in breach, or is
threatening a breach of any provision of this agreement, by word or actions, the
Council may obtain an injunction restraining the Owner or the Developer or
both from committing the breach without proving any actual damage has or will
be occasioned by the breach.

6.6  Clause 6.5 does not limit the Council’s ability to obtain any other remedy
against the Owner and the Developer under this agreement or the Act.

7.  NOTATION OF THIS AGREEMENT

Each party must do and execute all acts documents and things necessary to ensure
that as soon as possible after the execution of this agreement by all necessary parties
this agreement is noted by the Registrar-General on the Certificate of Title for the Land
pursuant to section 193(12) of the Act.

8. COUNCIL'S CONSENT
The Council agrees that upon the registration of this agreement, it will grant final
development approval and, subject to all conditions of Land Division Consent being
fulfilled, will inform the State Planning Commission that it may grant the Section 138
Clearance for the Application.

9. RESOLUTION OF THE COURT PROCEEDINGS
Subject to the execution of this agreement by all parties and the registration of a copy

of this agreement on the Land the and the Allotment (if then created) the Developer
agrees to discontinue the Appeal with each party bearing their own costs.

10. RESCISSION OF THIS AGREEMENT
101 If:

10.1.1 Development Approval under the Act has been granted in respect of
the Proposed Development on the Land; and

10.1.2 Council, acting reasonably, is satisfied the Owner has complied with
his obligations under this agreement in respect of the Allotment;
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10.2

10.1.3 This agreement has been registered upon the title to the Allotment as
well as the Certificate of Title for the balance of the Land; and

10.1.4 the Owner has requested Council in writing to rescind this agreement,

Council must rescind this agreement but only in relation to the Owner and the
balance of the Land and not the Allotment.

Where this agreement is rescinded in relation to the Land or any part of it not
including the land comprised in the Allotment:

10.2.1 Council and the Owner will do all things required for a note of the
rescission of this agreement to be entered on the relevant
Certificate(s) of Title; and

10.2.2 the Developer must pay Council's reasonable costs of an incidental to
the rescission of this agreement and the noting of the rescission by the
Registrar-General.

11. MISCELLANEOUS

11.1

11.4

Consideration

In consideration of the Owner's and the Developer's obligations under this
agreement, the Council must pay to the Owner the sum of one dollar if
demanded.

Alteration

This agreement may be altered by an agreement in writing signed by the
parties.

Approvals and consents

Unless otherwise provided, a party may in its discretion give {conditionally or
unconditionally) or withhold any approval or consent under this agreement.

Entire agreement
This Agreement:

11.4.1 constitutes the entire agreement between the parties about its subject
matter;

11.4.2 supersedes any prior understanding, agreement, condition, warranty,
indemnity or representation about its subject matter.

Operation and rescission of agreement

11.5.1 This agreement will not operate unless and until the Council has
granted Development Approval for the Development Application.

11.5.2 If Development Approval for the Development Application lapses or is
cancelled or set aside without having been implemented, the Council
agrees if requested by the Owner or the Developer to rescind this
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agreement and to apply to the Registrar-General for notation of its
rescission, with all relevant costs to be borne by the Developer.

11.6 Waiver

A waiver of a provision of or right under this agreement:

11.6.1  must be in writing signed by the party giving the waiver;

11.6.2 s effective only to the extent set out in the written waiver.

11.7 Exercise of power

11.7.1  The failure, delay, relaxation or indulgence by a party in exercising a
power or right under this agreement is not a waiver of that power or
right.

11.7.2 An exercise of a power or right under this agreement does not
preclude a further exercise of it or the exercise of another right or
power.

11.8  Survival

Each indemnity, obligation of confidence and other term capable of taking

effect after the expiration or termination of this agreement, remains in force

after the expiration or termination of this agreement.

11.9 Consents

The Owner warrant that no person other than himself has a legal interest in the
Land.

11.10 Counterparts

This agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts. All executed
counterparts constitute one document.

11.11 Governing law
11.11.1 This agreement is governed by the law in South Australia.

11.11.2 The parties irrevocably submit to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the
courts in South Australia.

12. NOTICES

12.1 A notice, demand, consent, approval or communication under this agreement
(Notice) must be:

12.1.1  in writing, in English and signed by a person autherised by the sender;
and

12.1.2 hand delivered or sent by pre paid post or electronic mail to an
address of the recipient specified below, as varied by any Notice given
by the recipient to the sender, or affixed in a prominent position on the
Land.
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12.2 At the date of this agreement, the postal and electronic mail addresses for
Notices to the Owner are:

Graham Martin Cook

Address: 4 Blue Crab Court Ardrossan SA 5571
Email: Pj.ml.cook@outlook.com
Attention: Peter Cook

12.3 As at the date of this agreement the postal and electronic mail address for
Notices to the Developer are:-

Peter Scragg
Address: 185 Port Road Hindmarsh SA 5007
Email:  peter@peterscragg.com.au

12.4 A Notice is deemed to be received:

if hand delivered or affixed in a prominent position on the Land, on delivery or
affixing;

12.4.1 if sent by pre paid priority post two Business Days after posting (or
seven Business Days after posting if posting to or from a place outside
Australia);

12.4.2 if sent by pre paid standard post:

(@) four Business Days after posting

(b) seven Business Days after posting if posting from a city outside
the city of the recipient;

(c} 12 Business Days after posting if posting to or from a place
outside Australia;

12.4.3 if sent by electronic mail, at the time and on the day shown in the
sender's electronic mail delivery report, if it shows that the Notice was
sent to the recipient's electronic mail address last Notified by the
recipient to the sender.

However if the Notice is deemed to be received on a day that is not a Business
Day or after 5:00pm, the Notice is deemed to be received at 9:00am on the
next Business Day.
12.5 Each party authorises its solicitor to sign Notices on its behalf.
13. COSTS
The Owner must pay to the Council within 30 days of it making a demand the Council's

reasonable costs and expenses (including legal costs and expenses) of preparing,
negotiating and noting this agreement.
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EXECUTED as an agreement

Signed for Yorke Peninsula Council by
its authorised delegate pursuant to
Section 44 of the Local Government Act
1999 (SA) in the presence of:

Signature of witness

Name of witness (print) o

Signed by Graham Martin Cook in the

presence of:

Signature of witness

MName of witness (print)

Signed by Peter Austin Rhodes Scragg
in the presence of:

Signature of witness

MName of witness (print)
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Position of authorised delegate

Graham Martin Cook

Peter Austin Rhodes Scragg

Item 25.5- Attachment 1

Page 191



COUNCIL MEETING ATTACHMENTS 13 DECEMBER 2023

Annexure A Plan of the Allotment that is the subject of the Application.

10
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Annexure B Plans Elevations and Drawing of the House being the Existing
Dwelling Structure on the Allotment
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The Owner certifies pursuant to section 193(11) of the Act that no other person has a legal
interest in the Land.

Signed by Graham Martin Cook in the
presence of:

Signature of witness Graham Martin Cook

Name of witness (print)
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VALUATION REPORT

Portion of Johns Road as described herein

Hundred of Tiparra in the area named Nalyappa

Date of Valuation:
21 September 2023

Under Instruction From:
Sue Beech, Property Tenure Officer

Yorke Peninsula Council

M.A. EASTHER NOMINEES PTY LTD

matt.easther@eldersrealestate.com

Item 25.7- Attachment 3

Page 197



COUNCIL MEETING ATTACHMENTS 13 DECEMBER 2023

Instructing Party: Sue Beech, Property Tenure Officer, Yorke Peninsula Council
to assist with disposal considerations with the adjoining owner.

Interest Valued: Market Value of the portion of Johns Road outlined within this
report on an assumed unencumbered freehold title basis.

Date of Inspection: 21 September 2023

Date of Valuation: 21 September 2023

Land Area: Combined land area of 63,617 square metres (6.36Ha or
15.72A). (Valuers calculations only and subject to formal
survey)

Zoning: Rural

Market Value Definition

“The estimated amount for which an asset or liability should exchange on the valuation date
between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arms length transaction, after proper
marketing and where the parties had each acted knowledgably, prudently and without
compulsion”

Brief Description & Location Particulars

The subject property comprises a portion of Johns Road which is a formed gravel road and
a portion of unmade road reserve in the hundred of Tiparra, in the area named Nalyappa
approximately 18km north west of the Arthurton township and 13km north of Balgowan. The
subject property is located approximately 4km east of the coastline.

The general area is utilised for mixed farming predominately broadacre cropping. The
sections of land directly adjoining the subject property are understood to be owned by a single
owner and the intention of acquiring the subject property would likely be to increase arable
area under ownership and enable a minor increase in farming efficiencies.

The subject property comprises that portion of Johns Road which extends north west from its
intersection with Nalyappa and Gap Road and the entire lengths of the southern boundary of
Sec 463 and western boundary of Sec 464, hundred of Tipara. The approximate location is
demonstrated on the aerial in yellow on the following page.

Portion of Johns Road, Hundred of Tiparra, in the area named Nalyappa |Page 1 of 16
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Aerial courtesy of SAPPA.

Based on survey plans provided, the width of subject property is 20.1 metres and is 3,165
metres (3.165km) long calculating to a total area of 63,617 square metres or 6.36Ha. 3.49Ha
is regarded as arable and potentially arable for cropping, equating to 55% of the total area.

That section of the subject property south east of the homestead and shedding on Section
BE is a formed gravel road of approximately 1.335km in length and 2.69Ha in area. This
essentially turns into a “no through road” as the northern aspect of the subject property is an
unmade track and a wheat crop. The width of the gravel road within the corridor is
approximately 5m, therefore the balance 15.1 metres consists of verge either side of the road
which consists of established vegetation. The road corridor is fenced either side. Clearing of
the vegetation would not be permitted without approval from the Native Vegetation
Council. On this basis this section of the subject property is considered to have no higher
purpose other than providing continued access to the improvements on Section BE.

North of the improvements on Section BE the subject property extends 1.83km presenting
an area of 3.68Ha. This part of the subject property can be classified into three separate
sections.

« 0.38km of this section is used as an access track with earthen verges and fence lines
either side, encompassing a total area of 0.76Ha. This section is regarded as
potentially arable as it would be suitable for cropping with some input.

o 1.28km extending north of the access track, encompassing an area of 2.72Ha is
currently under crop and therefore classed as arable land. Only the south western
fence line is in place.

e Approximately 0.17km (170m) of the northern most part appears to be non arable
based on available SAPPA aerials, totalling an area of 0.19Ha (1,900sqm).
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With regard to the comments outlined above, the subject property is summarised into the
following components:

sgm Ha A

South Section - Gravel Road - Non Arable 6,675 067 1.65 10%
South Section - Vegetated Verge — Non Arable 20,159 202 4098 32%
North Section - Non Arable 1,900 0.19 047 3%

North Section - Potentially Arable 7638 076 1.89 12%

North Section - Arable 27,245 272 6.73 43%

Total 63,617 6.36 15.72 100%

South Section of Subject Property

Section of subject property south of the improvements on Section BE. Gravel road with
vegetated verge.

-

‘x; \ :»._~.:v e -
Johns Road from Nalyappa Road Johns Road at improvements on Section
intersection looking north west BE looking south east toward intersection

Portion of Johns Road, Hundred of Tiparra, in the area named Nalyappa |Page 3 of 16
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Northern Section of Subject Property

—

7

Section of subject property north of improvements on Section BE. Arable and potentially
arable.

Access track with earthen verge — Access track looking north east into
Potentially arable cropped section of subject property

Portion of Johns Road, Hundred of Tiparra, in the area named Nalyappa |Page 4 of 16
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Zoning & Overlay Assumptions

The adjoining properties afford a Rural zoning designation and it is our view that if the subject
property was no longer required for a road reserve / public purpose the most probable zoning
would be Rural and its Highest and Best Use is for broadacre cropping.

On this basis our valuation has been undertaken on the assumption that the entire subject
property affords a Rural zoning designation.

The adjoining properties afford a Native Vegetation overlay and we therefore assume that
such would apply to the subject property.

In undertaking our assessment, given the highest and best use assumption we made enquiry
with the planning department of the Yorke Peninsula Council who referred us to Native
Vegetation Council regarding the clearing of the vegetated verges within the road corridor for
cropping expansion. The response we received from the Native Vegetation Council is as
follows:

“The road reserve of 93 Johns Road, Nalyappa appears to support native vegetation. Should
the Yorke Peninsula Council close the road and sell to the adjacent landowner. If the
Landowner wishes lo clear the vegetation lo expand cropping land an application to, and
approval from the Native Vegetation Council will be required.”

Important Notice: It is beyond the scope of this assessment and our expertise as valuers to
forecast / factor in the likelihood of future successful approvals for land clearing with the
Native Vegetation Council. As such, this assessment has been undertaken on the
assumption that clearing of vegetation is not permitted. Should an approval be granted than
the opportunity to increase the arable area of the subject property would be available which
would positively impact its value. We would encourage a relying party to seek qualified
advice if thought necessary and refer this report back to the valuer if such advice
found an approval for clearing vegetation would be successful as our opinion of value
would change.

Title Details

Qur assessment has been undertaken on the basis that the subject property is an
unencumbered freehold title.

Sales Evidence

In undertaking this assessment we have had consideration to rural land transactions in the
district.

The sales outlined con the following pages have been considered in undertaking our
assessment.
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Sale 1

Lot 250 Bull Ant Road, Weetulta

Sale Price
Sale Date
R.P.D
Land Area
Zoning

Comments

Analysis

$2,388,500

19 September 2023 - SETTLEMENT DATE ADVISED JAN 24

CT5483/621

103Ha (254.5 Acres)

Rural

Freehold arable area advised to be approximately 92Ha (227 Acres) gently
undulating brown / red / brown sandy loam soils. Average rainfall reported 342
— 368mm. Boundary fencing and mains water available.

A road reserve area under a 5 year licence to council expiring 30 June 2028
offers a further area of 8Ha cropping and 11ha grazing for $979pa this is
understood to be transferable with ownership of the freehold.

Property sold at Auction.

$23,189 / Ha ($9,385/Acre) - Overall Freehold Area

$25,962 / Ha ($10,522/Acre) - Arable Freehold Area

$23,885 / Ha ($9,666/ Acre) — Combined Arable Freehold & Arable Road
Licence Area
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Sale 2

Lot 1 Honner Road, Arthurton

Sale Price
Settlement
R.P.D
Land Area
Zoning

Comments

Analysis

$6,000,000

28 April 2023

CT6236366

179.4Ha (443.3 Acres)

Rural

Freehold arable area advised to be approximately 176.4Ha (436 Acres) gently
undulating red / brown sandy loam soils. Average rainfall reported 342 —
368mm. Mains water available.

Property sold at auction April 2023.

$33,445 / Ha ($13,534/Acre) - Overall Area

$34,014 / Ha ($13,762/Acre) - Arable Area
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Sale 3

Lot 377 Honner Road, Arthurton

Sale Price
Settlement
R.P.D
Land Area
Zoning

Comments

Analysis

$3,900,000

28 April 2023

CT5792/769

128.7Ha (318 Acres)

Rural

Freehold arable area advised to be approximately 126.6Ha (313 Acres) gently
undulating red / brown sandy loam soils. Average rainfall reported 342 —
368mm. Mains water available.

Property sold at auction April 2023.

$33,445 / Ha ($13,535/Acre) - Overall Area

$30,806 / Ha ($12,460/Acre) - Arable Area
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Sale 4

Lot 2 Weetulta Road, Weetulta

Sale Price
Settlement
R.P.D
Land Area
Zoning

Comments

Analysis

$5,027,000

20 February 2023

CT6099/866

174Ha (431 Acres)

Rural

Located approximately Skm due west of the Arthurton township.

Slightly irregular shaped block with inverted house parcel not included.
Advised to be 163.7Ha (405acres) of good arable land with red / brown sandy
loam soil. Balance land 10.7ha sand with section of scrub and structurally
improved areas including a machinery shed 21m x 12m and store she of 21m
X 9m, cattle yards and 2 stand shearing shed.

Property sold at auction October 2022.

$28,891/ Ha ($11,663/Acre) — Freehold Area inc improvements
$30,708/Ha ($12,412/Acre) — Good Arable Area inc improvements
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Sale 5

Lot 1237 Moonta — Wallaroo Road, North Moonta

Sale Price
Settlement
R.P.D
Land Area
Zoning

Comments

Analysis

$880,000

20 January 2023

CT5455/137, CT5492/629, CT5814/458, CT5789/363
66.93Ha (165acres)

Rural

Located to northern edge of Moonta township and approximately 3km east of
the coast.

100% arable area comprising 4 titles held and assessed in one line. Divided
into 2 broad acre paddocks with fencing and water.

Advised a mix of sand and brown mallee soil types.
Average annual rainfall reported 304 — 345mm.
Property sold at auction October 2022.

$13,148 / Ha ($5,333/Acre)
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Sale 6

Various addresses, entire aggregation set off Spencer Highway, North Moonta
Sale Price $3,650,000

Settlement 20 January 2023

R.P.D CT5727/672, CT5823/312, CT6233/161 & CR619/26

Land Area 271.2Ha (670 Acres)

Zoning Rural

Comments Located to northern edge of Moonta township and approximately 3km east of
the coast.

Total freehold area of 271.2Ha with 39.46 under licence to crown. Advised a
mix of sand and brown mallee soil types with sandy ridges through the gently
undulating landscape.

Average annual rainfall reported 304 — 345mm.

Divided into 6 main broad acre paddocks which have been cropped with
several smaller holding paddocks offering as potentially arable areas. Basic
shedding and uninhabitable dwelling. Approx 265Ha of freehold is arable with
another 5Ha potentially arable.

Property sold at auction October 2022.

Analysis $13,458/ Ha ($5,447/Acre) — Freehold Area inc value of nominal improvements
and benefit of crown licence.
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Valuation Methodology & Rationale

Having regard to the highest and best use of the subject property our method of assessment
has been undertaken using the Direct Comparison Approach. This approach compares the
subject property directly with recent sales of other rural properties in the district having regard
to the identified sales evidence and the various attributes and qualities of each respective
property on a rate per arable hectare basis.

Direct Comparison Approach

Sale 1, is the most recent available transaction in the district having sold at auction in Sep 23
with the sale price reflecting a rate per arable hectare of freehold land of $25,962. This sale
is located 12km further inland from the subject property with superior soil composition and
would achieve a higher rainfall. The subject property is considered inferior on a rate per
hectare basis.

Sales 2 and 3 are separate transactions of adjoining parcels in Arthurton which were
auctioned in April 23 with the sales showing rates per hectare of arable area of $34,014 and
$30,806 respectively. These sales are located 25km further inland in far superior cropping
area with superior soil and higher rainfall. The subject property is considered far inferior
on a rate per hectare basis.

Sale 4 is located within reasonable proximity to the subject property being only 6km further
inland having sold at auction in October 2022. Although there were some structural
improvements these are considered fairly nominal in the scope of the overall transaction. The
sale demonstrated a rate per arable hectare of $30,708. The subject property is
considered inferior on a rate per hectare basis.

Sales 5 & 6 are located further north in the Moonta area though afford a similar proximity to
the coastline to the subject property and therefore are considered quite relevant. These sales
demonstrated rates per arable hectare of $13,148 and $13,458 respectively. This land is
considered marginally superior to the subject property however market conditions have
strengthened since the date of sale. A rate per hectare higher than that demonstrated by
the sale is considered appropriate.

Having regard to the above, the commentary suggests an applicable rate per arable hectare
for the subject property would lie broadly between $13,458 and $25,962. Given the location
we consider a rate per arable hectare toward the lower end of that denoted range would be
appropriate.

In undertaking this assessment we have had consideration to the subject property as three
different components.

+ Arable Land Area
« Potentially Arable Land Area
« Non Arable Land Area

With due regard to location and topographical aspects as afforded to the subject property we
consider an arable rate per hectare of $16,500 is supported by the sales evidence
($6,677/Acre) and have applied this to the arable land area component.

Having consideration to the subject property on an as is basis, there would be a level of input
required in order to transition that potentially arable area into arable area. As such we are of
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the opinion a rate per hectare of $12,500 is appropriate ($5,059/Acre) for the potentially
arable land area component.

With regard to the southern aspect of the subject property. Given the outlined constraints with
the vegetation, we assume there is no higher order use for this section other than as a private
driveway and it is very difficult to quantify any monetary value with consideration to the
purpose of this assessment. By including this driveway and vegetated area with the arable
components of the subject property, Council would be alleviated from any maintenance
requirements of the road and conversely the buyer would be taking on the maintenance
responsibility so although non monetary, this exchange of responsibility we consider would
be a benefit to Council. We have attributed no value to those identified non arable land areas.

With due regard to the comments above, our valuation calculations are summarised as

follows:

Ha $/ha Total
South Section - Gravel Road — Non Arable 067 @ $ - § -
South Section - Vegetated Verge — Non Arable 2.02 @ $ - $ -
North Section - Non Arable 019 @ $ - $ -

North Section - Potentially Arable 076 @ $12,500 $ 9,547.50

North Section - Arable 272 @ $16,500 $ 44,954.25

Total 6.36 $ 54,501.75

For practical reporting purposes we have rounded and adopted a valuation assessment of
$54,500 excluding GST.
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Valuation Certification

Acting under instructions from Sue Beech, Property Tenure Officer, Yorke Peninsula Council
M.A. Easther Nominees Pty Lid has undertaken a valuation of Portion of Johns Road,
hundred of Tiparra, in the area named Nalyappa as described herein. We confirm we have
inspected the subject property and have prepared this report.

We certify that in our opinion, the Market Value of the unencumbered freehold interest (Estate
in Fee Simple) in the property, based on available market evidence and subject to the
qualifications and assumptions stated within this report, as at 21 September 2023, to assist
with disposal considerations is:

$54,500 (Excluding GST)
Fifty Four Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (Excluding GST)

The valuer has no pecuniary interest in the said properly, past, present or prospective, and
the opinion expressed is free of any bias in this regard.

This report has been prepared for the party to whom it has been addressed and for no other
purpose. No responsibility is accepted to any third party who may use or rely upon the whole
or part of the contents of this report.

Matt Easther AAPI

Certified Practising Valuer
matt.easther@eldersrealestate.com.au
M.A. EASTHER NOMINEES PTY LTD

Liability limited by a scheme approved under professional standards legisfation.

Appendices

« Qualifications
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Qualifications

Our inspection of the subject property was limited due to the northern section being under
crop. We have utilised aerial mapping and imagery available on SAPPA to calculate the areas
of the various components of the subject property outlined within this report as well as
provided survey plans. We hereby reserve the right to review and amend this report should
a formal survey identify a material difference in the calculations.

This report is not to be relied upon for mortgage security purposes. This valuation is for the
use only of the party to whom it is addressed and for no other purpose. No liability or
responsibility is accepted to any third party who may use or rely on the whole or any part of
the contents of this valuation.

All figures and calculations have been undertaken on an Exclusive of GST basis unless
otherwise indicated.

The market is being impacted by the uncertainty caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. As at
the date of valuation we consider that there is market uncertainty resulting in significant
valuation uncertainty. This valuation is therefore reported on the basis of ‘significant valuation
uncertainty’. As a result, less certainty exists than normal and a higher degree of caution
should be attached to our valuation than normally would be the case. Given the unknown
future impact of that COVID-19 might have on markets, we recommend that the user(s) of
this report review this valuation periodically.

This Valuation is current as at the date of the valuation only. The value assessed herein may
change significantly unexpectedly over a relatively short period (including as a result of
general market movements or factors specific to the particular property). We do not accept
liability for losses arising from such subsequent changes in value. Without limiting the
generality of the above comment, we do not assume any responsibility or accept and liability
where this valuation is relied upon after the expiration of 3 months from the date of the
valuation, or such earlier date if you become aware of any factors that have any effect on the
valuation.

Our valuation is made on the basis that the property is free from mortgages, charges and
other financial liens and is conditional on there being no encumbrances or interests which
materially affect the value. Should any encumbrances, encroachments, restrictions, leases
or covenants which are not noted on the Title in this be discovered further comment should
be sought from our office as our opinion of value may change.

From our inspection the comparison with the Title Plan, the improvements appear to be
constructed within the title boundaries, however we are not qualified surveyors. Our valuation
is conditional on there being no encroachments and in the event there is such, further
comment should be sought from our office as our opinion of value may change.

We strongly emphasise that we are not building or construction experts and we have not
tested any of the services at the property. Our valuation is conditional on the structural
improvements and services being free from any defects. Should further investigation prove
otherwise this report should be referred back to the valuer as our opinion may change.

We are not experts in the field of ashestos identification and assessment. No asbestos reports
have been made available for our perusal. We have not inspected the building beyond the
surface of the internal and external building fabric and are unable to assess whether there
are any latent signs of asbestos or other indicators beyond the investigations referred to
above. The assessed value could well decrease if asbestos which is material to the valuation
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is present. This valuation is conditional on the site being free of asbestos and any party relying
on this valuation does so on the basis that the valuer accepts no liability for any loss relating
to asbestos.
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Alexander Symonds | Surveying Consultants
T(08)8130 1666 + 11 King William Street, Kent Town SA 5067 + PO Box 1000, Kent Town SA 5071

+Measuring Excellence
=3 Adelaide + Horsham + Mount Gambier + Mildura + Roxby Downs + Whyalla
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From: Sue Beech <Sue.Beech@yorke.sa.gov.au>
Sent: Monday, July 17, 2023 3:45 PM

To: Jason Arnold <jarnold@alexander.com.au>
Subject: Quote - Road Closure

Hi Jason,

We have received an expression of interest from a landowner to purchase a portion of road reserve
that runs through his properties located at Sections, BE, 463 and 464 Hundred of Tiparra.

Would you kindly provide a quote to carry out the work & a suggested configuration. My thoughts it
perhaps to merge 464 & 463?

Let me know if you require any additional information. Kind regards, Sue
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Sue Beech Property Tenure Officer

Yorke Peninsula Council | Maitland Branch Office
Ph: 08-8832 0000

E: sue.beech@yorke.sa.gov.au | W: www.yorke.sa.gov.au
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From: Jason Arnold <jarnold@alexander.com.au>
Sent: Friday, 21 July 2023 1:22 PM

To: Sue Beech

Subject: RE: Quote - Road Closure (Our Ref: 23A1769)
Attachments: Uncertified Roads quote.pdf

Caution: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. When in doubt,
please contact the Council's IT Team.

Hi Sue,
Please find attached our road closure quote.
We can close the road in two sections:
A. to be merged with Section 464 (Trevor Charles Johns)
B. to be merged with Sections 463 and BE to form one allotment (Trevor Charles Johns)
This can be done without a survey.
If you have any questions please give me a call.

Regards,

Jason Arnold
Survey Searcher | Planner | Roads Officer
T 81301647 M 0416719920 E jarnold@alexander.com.au
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21 July 2023

Alexander
Symonds

Surveying
Consultants

Our Reference: 2281769

Yorke Peninsula Council
PO Box 5T
Maitland 5A 5573

ATTENTION: Sue Beech

Dear Sue
Re: Road Closure - Johns Road, Nalyappa

Thank you for the opportunity to provide a fee proposal for the Road Closure of the above
address. Below is an outline of the process to be undertaken on your behalf by Alexander

Symonds, including estimated timeframes and proposed costs.

STAGE 1; OBTAINING APPROVAL AND LODGING THE PRELIMINARY PLAN
Review of Council requirements, Certificate of Title and Lands Titles Office (LTO) plans

search to provide base data.
Preliminary Plan prepared and lodged with Land Services.

Liaison with Council to achieve approval.

STAGE 2: PUBLIC NOTIFICATION, LIAISION WITH AUTHORITIES

Advertising proposed road closure in Gazette, notification of adjoining owners and
service authorities.

Liaison with service authorities and adjoining owners with respect to objections.

STAGE 3: LODGING THE UN-CERTIFIED SURVEY WITH THE LANDS TITLES OFFICE

Preparing final road closure plan, agreement and application documents for Council
SIgning.

Road plan and documents lodged with Land Services.

Confirmation of Road Closure advertised in Gazette.

Certificates of Title issued by Land Services.

ESTIMATED TIMEFRAMES: APFROX. 18 WEEKS.
Lodgement of Preliminary Plan to Council approval: Approx. 4 weels.
Advertising and Notification: 28 days.
Objections: Time taken is dependent on objections.
Final Plan and Road Closure Documents preparation: Approx. 2 weeks.
Lodgement of Road Plan, Confirmation of Closure in Gazette: Approx. 8 weeks.

l\-\,-"] casurinag Alexander and Symonds Pty Ltd ABN 93 007 753 988
Exc E I_LE N CE 1st Floor + 11 King William Street Kent Town South Australia 5067
+ PO Box 1000 Kent Town SA 5071 + T (08)8130 1666 « E adelaide@alexander.com.au + W alexander.com.au
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COSTS

1. Preliminary Road Plan preparation and lodgement.  Alexander Symonds §300.00  Plus GST

2. Preliminary Plan lodgement fees. Lands Titles Office 5300.00  GST exempt
$30.00  GST

SUB-TOTAL: § 630,00  incl GST

Stage 2

1. Advertising in Gazette, Notification to adjoining Alexander Symonds 5300.00 Plus GST
owners and Service Authorities.

2. Liaison with Service suthorities and adjoining Alexander Symonds 5300.00  Plus GST
owners with respect to objections.

SUB-TOTAL: $660.00 incl GST

Stage 3

1. Preparing road closure agreement and application Alexander Symonds 515000  Plus GST
documents for Council signing.

2. Prepare final data road plan and documents lodged  Alexander Symonds 5500.00  Plus GST
with Land Services.

3. Road Closure and documentation lodgement fee. Lands Titles Office 51,256.00 GST exempt
4. Stamp Duty - TBA RevenueSA 50.00 GST exempt
SUB-TOTAL: §2,411.00  incl GST

FLE

The fees listed above are the standard ones expected for this division, All government and statutory
fees increase at the end of each financial year,

Thank you again for the opportunity to provide a fee proposal. Please contact me on (08) 8130 1647 if
you have any queries or would like any further information, otherwise we look forward to working with

you.

Kind regards,

Jason Arnold
Roads Officer, Alexander Symonds
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SAPPA Report s
July 21, 2023
The SA Property and Planning Atlas is available on the Plan SA website: https://sappa.plan.sa.gov.au
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YORKE PENINSULA COUNCIL ol
COMMUNITY LAND MANAGEMENT PLAN

CATEGORY 1 - RESERVES

PROPERTY DETAILS

« Community Land Register — Item 1-7

OWNERSHIP DETAILS

+ Community Land Register — Item 8

PURPOSE FOR WHICH LAND IS HELD

Conservation reserves primarily used to protect flora and fauna. Coastal reserves primarily used to
minimise harm to coastal areas. Water or Stone reserves primarily established to provide water and
stone resources for use now or in the future. Reserves to allow trails and access compatible with
conservation use but excluding any commercial or sports activities.

REASON WHY MANAGEMENT PLAN IS REQUIRED

+ Land specifically modified for the benefit and enjoyment of the public

OBJECTIVES FOR THE MANAGEMENT OF THE LAND

* To retain land for use as a conservation reserve in order to protect flora and fauna.

* To retain land as a Coastal reserve to minimise harm to coastal areas and provide a buffer
zone between the dunes and sea.

+ To provide access to a bore for rural and remote locations for stock and fire fighting purposes.

+ To stockpile rubble for future road resurfacing.

* To allow trails and access compatible with conservation use.

+  Allow improvements cansistent with the objectives established for this type of land use.

*  Strictly exclude any commercial, recreational or sports activities.

* Where appropriate, grant leases and grant or accept easements, and or rights of way over the
land.

Pagelof4
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YORKE PENINSULA COUNCIL ol
COMMUNITY LAND MANAGEMENT PLAN

POLICIES AND PROPOSALS FOR MANAGEMENT OF THE LAND

Ensure consistency with the objectives set out in the Yorke Peninsula Council’s corporate documents
and any other council by-law, plan or policy or government legislation where applicable. Including
but not limited to the following Hetaehag:

- Strategic Management Plan
- Indigenous Land Use Agreement (Yorke Peninsula and adjoining coastal waters) HUA

Agreement
- Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016DeveloprmentRlan

- Planning and Design Code
- Animal Management Plan
- Pl Coepleme et s e s Dl g st Ml
- By Law No. 2 Local Government Land
- By Law No. 5 Dogs and Cats
- By law No. 6 Cats
- 2 | i liei licabl

*  Or future Acts, or council by law, plan or policy where the above has been updated or
superseded.

DEPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENT, WATER AND NATURAL RESOURCES

* Dedicated land may only be used for purposes consistent with that for which it was dedicated,
and no other purpose. A change of land use will require the resumption of the land and re-
dedication for a purpose consistent with the new use,

* The granting of a lease/licence over dedicated land requires approval from the Minister if
native title has not been extinguished and the lease will cause any development (within the
meaning of the Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016). That the Council is
satisfied that the lease would not detract from any existing public use and enjoyment of the
land, would not prevent the land being used for the purpose for which it was dedicated and
would not otherwise be improper or undesirable.

+ The Doctrine of Fixtures applies to dedicated land. Any buildings or other improvements
erected on the land determined to be fixtures will be the property of the Crown unless the
Minister has expressly stated in writing that the improvements shall be deemed to be severed
from the land.

+ Easements required over dedicated land may only be granted by the Minister pursuant to the
Crown Land Management Act 2009Crowntands-Act—1929,

* The clearance of native vegetation (including grasslands) must not occur without the prior
approval of the relevant Minister and the Native Vegetation Council.

Page 2 0of 4
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YORKE PENINSULA COUNCIL
COMMUNITY LAND MANAGEMENT PLAN

PERFORMANCE TARGETS

See Schedule

PERFORMANCE MEASURES

See Schedule

ADOPTED BY COUNCIL: Date — per Council Resolution 209/2018{8/08/2018)

MAYOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Page 3 of 4
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YORKE PENINSULA COUNCIL
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COMMUNITY LAND MANAGEMENT PLAN

PERFORMANCE TARGETS AND MEASURE

Schedule

Management Issues

Landscape Character for
Conservation Area

Objectives, Policies and
Proposals

Reflect the character of
adjoining conservation
areas.

Performance Targets

Maintain and manage
according to biodiversity
principles and
expectations.

Performance Measures |

Clear of illegal dumping
including building
material, garden waste
and general household
waste.

Fenced.

Pest plant species
cantrolled within
budgetary constraints.

Management of access
points including
prevention of
unauthorised access
points, within budgetary
constraints.

Fire Prevention and Fuel
Reduction

Such measures as may
be identified and
specified by Council’s
Fire Prevention Officer
from time to time.

Implement identified
measures as needed.

Regular inspections for
fire prevention and fuel
reduction and
rectification of any
issues identified.

Bike/Walking Trails
{where applicable)

To maintain accessibility
and safety of reserves
whilst minimising
degradation of
biodiversity.

Increase the emphasis
on design for improved
physical access, safety
and biodiversity
protection.

Carry out periodic
audits.
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YORKE PENINSULA COUNCIL ol
COMMUNITY LAND MANAGEMENT PLAN

CATEGORY 2 — RECREATIONAL AND SPORTING

PROPERTY DETAILS

« See Schedule - Item 1-7

OWNERSHIP DETAILS

+ See Schedule — ltem 8

PURPOSE FOR WHICH LAND IS HELD

Recreation, Sports Grounds and Community Facilities help to unite and strengthen communities by
providing safe and functional facilities.

Many of the facilities are for organised sports managed by clubs and organisations under lease or
licence. Venues are also popular for informal recreation, many have playgrounds and provide a
variety of experiences for people of all ages.

Facilities should be protected and improved where appropriate, for current and future generations.

REASON WHY MANAGEMENT PLAN IS REQUIRED

* Land specifically modified for the benefit and enjoyment of the public
* Lease/Licence
» Act of Parliament or Trust

OBJECTIVES FOR THE MANAGEMENT OF THE LAND

* Promote recreational pursuits with organised formal and informal sporting and non-sporting
activities.

« To assist in meeting the sporting needs of the community and visitors.

+ Foster and develop proactive participation by the local community.
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+ Identify potential hazards in a timely manner to minimise Council exposure to complaints,
compensation claims and litigation.

* Where appropriate, grant leases and grant or accept easements, and or rights of way over the
land.

POLICIES AND PROPOSALS FOR MANAGEMENT OF THE LAND

Ensure consistency with the objectives set out in the Yorke Peninsula Council’s corporate documents
and any other council by-law, plan or policy or government legislation where applicable. Including
but not limited to the following: rekeding:

- Strategic Management Plan
——Indigenous Land Use Agreement (Yorke Peninsula and adjoining coastal waters) HUA

Agreement

- Development-Pan-Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016
- Planning and Design Code
- Animal Management Plan
B e T R e SR SRR S )
- By Law No. 2 Local Government Land
- __Bylaw No. 5 Dogs and-Cats
- Bylaw No. 6 Cats
*  Or future Acts, or council by-law, plan or policy where the above has been updated or
superseded.

DEPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENT AND WATER ~WATER-AND-NATURAL-RESOURCES

+ Dedicated land may only be used for purposes consistent with that for which it was dedicated,
and no other purpose. A change of land use will require the resumption of the land and re-
dedication for a purpose consistent with the new use.

+ The granting of a lease/licence over dedicated land requires approval from the Minister if
native title has not been extinguished and the lease will cause any development (within the
meaning of the Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016). That the Council is
satisfied that the lease would not detract from any existing public use and enjoyment of the
land, would not prevent the land being used for the purpose for which it was dedicated and
would not otherwise be improper or undesirable.

* The Doctrine of Fixtures applies to dedicated land. Any buildings or other improvements
erected on the land determined to be fixtures will be the property of the Crown unless the
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Minister has expressly stated in writing that the improvements shall be deemed to be severed
from the land.

* Easements required over dedicated land may only be granted by the Minister pursuant to the
Crown Land Management Act 2009Crewn-tandsAct—39209,

* The clearance of native vegetation (including grasslands) must not occur without the prior
approval of the relevant Minister and the Native Vegetation Council.

PERFORMANCE TARGETS

+ See Schedule

PERFORMANCE MEASURES

+ See Schedule

ADOPTED BY COUNCIL: Date — per Council Resolution 209/2018(8/08/2018)

MAYOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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PERFORMANCE TARGETS AND MEASURE

Schedule
Management Issues Objectives, Performance Performance
Policies and Targets Measures
Proposals

Clubrooms/Community To provide To ensure all Ensure terms of
Buildings/Storage/Kiosk/Ovals/Courts/Golf | buildings and facilities have leases/licences are
Course/Swimming Pool/Sporting facilities for current adhered to
Infrastructure/Fencing/Lighting/Bowling sporting and agreements in through
Greens/Car park/Drive-ways/Footpaths community place and that conducting regular

Fauna Park

organisation use.
The buildings and
facilities are to be
leased/licensed to
an appropriate
incorporated body
and must be
available for use
by patrons and
visitors of the
club, as deemed
appropriate by the
lessee/licensee.

Leases/Licences
will be
determined in
accordance with
Council policy.
To provide a fauna
park for
educational
purposes and the
enjoyment of the
public.

responsibilities
and use thereof is
clearly
incorporated
within individual
licence
agreements.

To ensure all
tenants meet the
terms and
conditions of the
agreement,

To ensure
animals are
adequately
housed and the
park is
maintained to an

inspections and/or
assessments in
accordance with
Council policy and
maintenance
plans/schedules.

Periodical reviews
of agreements to
ensure terms and
conditions are met.

Regular inspections
with animal health
assessed and
maintenance
issues rectified.
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acceptable
standard.

Permits, Licences and Leasing of Recreational and Sporting Facilities

The granting of a lease, licence or permit formalises the use of council facilities by groups such as
sporting clubs, community groups, commercial organisations or individuals who are providing
facilities or services for public use that is consistent with the intent and purpose of the land.

The terms and conditions of a lease, licence or permit will ensure that property management of the
area is undertaken such that it is maintained in a safe and functional condition, and that the interest
of Council and the public are protected.

There are a number of leases, licences and permits issued to various parties over land included in this
Management Plan — details of these agreements are displayed in the Schedule, Item 12-13.

A lease, licence or permit enables Council to negotiate agreements with organisations and individuals
who occupy or manage Community Land. These agreements allow clear legal definition of the rights
and obligations that an organisation or individual has in regard to the land whilst ensuring public
access is maintained. From time to time leases, licences and permits will expire, require renewal
and/or renegotiation, and new leasing proposals considered.

Where the agreement is for a period exceeding five years, Council is required by the Local
Government Act, 1999 to consult with the community. However, exemptions of certain
leasesflicences over community land from consultation requirements when it is a term of the
lease/licence that there is to be no substantial change in the use of the land. Local Government
(General) Regulations 2013, Section 22, (1) (b).

Council will only grant a lease, licence or permit for use of Community Land under this Management
Plan if it is:

+ Consistent with the current use and purpose of the land
+  For activities appropriate to the current and future needs of the community
+ Acknowledged that all suitable insurances have been sighted by Council.
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CATEGORY 2 — RECREATIONAL AND SPORTING

PROPERTY DETAILS

« See Schedule - Item 1-7

OWNERSHIP DETAILS

+ See Schedule — ltem 8

PURPOSE FOR WHICH LAND IS HELD

Recreation, Sports Grounds and Community Facilities help to unite and strengthen communities by
providing safe and functional facilities.

Many of the facilities are for organised sports managed by clubs and organisations under lease or
licence. Venues are also popular for informal recreation, many have playgrounds and provide a
variety of experiences for people of all ages.

Facilities should be protected and improved where appropriate, for current and future generations.

REASON WHY MANAGEMENT PLAN IS REQUIRED

* Land specifically modified for the benefit and enjoyment of the public
* Lease/Licence
» Act of Parliament or Trust

OBJECTIVES FOR THE MANAGEMENT OF THE LAND

* Promote recreational pursuits with organised formal and informal sporting and non-sporting
activities.

« To assist in meeting the sporting needs of the community and visitors.

+ Foster and develop proactive participation by the local community.
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+ Identify potential hazards in a timely manner to minimise Council exposure to complaints,
compensation claims and litigation.

* Where appropriate, grant leases and grant or accept easements, and or rights of way over the
land.

POLICIES AND PROPOSALS FOR MANAGEMENT OF THE LAND

Ensure consistency with the objectives set out in the Yorke Peninsula Council’s corporate documents
and any other council by-law, plan or policy or government legislation where applicable. Including
but not limited to the following: rekeding:

- Strategic Management Plan
——Indigenous Land Use Agreement (Yorke Peninsula and adjoining coastal waters) HUA

Agreement

- Development-Pan-Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016
- Planning and Design Code
- Animal Management Plan
B e T R e SR SRR S )
- By Law No. 2 Local Government Land
- __Bylaw No. 5 Dogs and-Cats
- Bylaw No. 6 Cats
*  Or future Acts, or council by-law, plan or policy where the above has been updated or
superseded.

DEPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENT AND WATER ~WATER-AND-NATURAL-RESOURCES

+ Dedicated land may only be used for purposes consistent with that for which it was dedicated,
and no other purpose. A change of land use will require the resumption of the land and re-
dedication for a purpose consistent with the new use.

+ The granting of a lease/licence over dedicated land requires approval from the Minister if
native title has not been extinguished and the lease will cause any development (within the
meaning of the Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016). That the Council is
satisfied that the lease would not detract from any existing public use and enjoyment of the
land, would not prevent the land being used for the purpose for which it was dedicated and
would not otherwise be improper or undesirable.

* The Doctrine of Fixtures applies to dedicated land. Any buildings or other improvements
erected on the land determined to be fixtures will be the property of the Crown unless the
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Minister has expressly stated in writing that the improvements shall be deemed to be severed
from the land.

* Easements required over dedicated land may only be granted by the Minister pursuant to the
Crown Land Management Act 2009Crewn-tandsAct—39209,

* The clearance of native vegetation (including grasslands) must not occur without the prior
approval of the relevant Minister and the Native Vegetation Council.

PERFORMANCE TARGETS

+ See Schedule

PERFORMANCE MEASURES

+ See Schedule

ADOPTED BY COUNCIL: Date — per Council Resolution 209/2018(8/08/2018)

MAYOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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PERFORMANCE TARGETS AND MEASURE

Schedule
Management Issues Objectives, Performance Performance
Policies and Targets Measures
Proposals

Clubrooms/Community To provide To ensure all Ensure terms of
Buildings/Storage/Kiosk/Ovals/Courts/Golf | buildings and facilities have leases/licences are
Course/Swimming Pool/Sporting facilities for current adhered to
Infrastructure/Fencing/Lighting/Bowling sporting and agreements in through
Greens/Car park/Drive-ways/Footpaths community place and that conducting regular

Fauna Park

organisation use.
The buildings and
facilities are to be
leased/licensed to
an appropriate
incorporated body
and must be
available for use
by patrons and
visitors of the
club, as deemed
appropriate by the
lessee/licensee.

Leases/Licences
will be
determined in
accordance with
Council policy.
To provide a fauna
park for
educational
purposes and the
enjoyment of the
public.

responsibilities
and use thereof is
clearly
incorporated
within individual
licence
agreements.

To ensure all
tenants meet the
terms and
conditions of the
agreement,

To ensure
animals are
adequately
housed and the
park is
maintained to an

inspections and/or
assessments in
accordance with
Council policy and
maintenance
plans/schedules.

Periodical reviews
of agreements to
ensure terms and
conditions are met.

Regular inspections
with animal health
assessed and
maintenance
issues rectified.
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acceptable
standard.

Permits, Licences and Leasing of Recreational and Sporting Facilities

The granting of a lease, licence or permit formalises the use of council facilities by groups such as
sporting clubs, community groups, commercial organisations or individuals who are providing
facilities or services for public use that is consistent with the intent and purpose of the land.

The terms and conditions of a lease, licence or permit will ensure that property management of the
area is undertaken such that it is maintained in a safe and functional condition, and that the interest
of Council and the public are protected.

There are a number of leases, licences and permits issued to various parties over land included in this
Management Plan — details of these agreements are displayed in the Schedule, Item 12-13.

A lease, licence or permit enables Council to negotiate agreements with organisations and individuals
who occupy or manage Community Land. These agreements allow clear legal definition of the rights
and obligations that an organisation or individual has in regard to the land whilst ensuring public
access is maintained. From time to time leases, licences and permits will expire, require renewal
and/or renegotiation, and new leasing proposals considered.

Where the agreement is for a period exceeding five years, Council is required by the Local
Government Act, 1999 to consult with the community. However, exemptions of certain
leasesflicences over community land from consultation requirements when it is a term of the
lease/licence that there is to be no substantial change in the use of the land. Local Government
(General) Regulations 2013, Section 22, (1) (b).

Council will only grant a lease, licence or permit for use of Community Land under this Management
Plan if it is:

+ Consistent with the current use and purpose of the land
+  For activities appropriate to the current and future needs of the community
+ Acknowledged that all suitable insurances have been sighted by Council.
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CATEGORY 4 — BUSINESS AND COMMERCIAL

PROPERTY DETAILS

Community Land Register — Item 1-7

OWNERSHIP DETAILS

Community Land Register — Iltem 8

PURPOSE FOR WHICH LAND IS HELD

The properties listed in the schedule have been developed and/or modified to include one or more
of the following: caravan park, airstrip, commercial premises, marinas, waste depots, weighbridges
etc.

REASON WHY MANAGEMENT PLAN IS REQUIRED

Land specifically modified for the benefit and enjoyment of the public
Lease/Licence
+  Act of Parliament or Trust

OBJECTIVES FOR THE MANAGEMENT OF THE LAND

* To provide a financial return to Council

*  Optimise opportunities for business and industry
Where appropriate, grant leases and grant or accept easements, and or rights of way over the
land

POLICIES AND PROPOSALS FOR MANAGEMENT OF THE LAND
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Ensure consistency with the objectives set out in the Yorke Peninsula Council’s corporate documents
and any other council by-law, plan or policy or government legislation where applicable. Including

but not limited to the following: irchsding:

- Strategic Management Plan
- Indigenous Land Use Agreement (Yorke Peninsula and adjoining

coastal waters)

- Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016

- DPevelepmentRlan-Planning and Design Code
- Animal Management Plan

-—Parks & Gardensinfrastructure Asset Management Plan

- By lLaw No. 2 Local Government Land
Any-othercouhci-orgovermmentpolelaswheraappheable-or future Acts, or council by-law,

plan or policy where the above has been updated or superseded.

DEPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENT AND WATER

.

Dedicated land may only be used for purposes consistent with that for which it was dedicated,
and no other purpose. A change of land use will require the resumption of the land and re-
dedication for a purpose consistent with the new use.

The granting of a lease/licence over dedicated land requires approval from the Minister if
native title has not been extinguished and the lease will cause any development (within the
meaning of the Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016). That the Council is
satisfied that the lease would not detract from any existing public use and enjoyment of the
land, would not prevent the land being used for the purpose far which it was dedicated and
would not otherwise be improper or undesirable.

The Doctrine of Fixtures applies to dedicated land. Any buildings or other improvements
erected on the land determined to be fixtures will be the property of the Crown unless the
Minister has expressly stated in writing that the improvements shall be deemed to be severed
from the land.

Easements required over dedicated land may only be granted by the Minister pursuant to the
Crown-tands-Act—1929 Crown Land Management Act 2009.

The clearance of native vegetation (including grasslands) must not occur without the prior
approval of the relevant Minister and the Native Vegetation Council.

PERFORMANCE TARGETS

See Schedule
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PERFORMANCE MEASURES

See Schedule

ADOPTED BY COUNCIL: Date — per Council Resolution 209/2018-{8/08/2018}

MAYOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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PERFORMANCE TARGETS AND MEASURE

Schedule

Management Issues

Objectives, Policies and
Proposals

Performance Targets

Performance
Measures

Business and

Commercial Use

To approve
business/commercial use
of community land with
such conditions as may be
deemed appropriate by
Council.

To ensure
business/commercial use
of community land is not
in conflict with other users
and that business activities
are appropriately

Ensure conditions of
approval are adhered
to through regular
inspections.

Periodical review of

controlled. agreements to ensure
terms and conditions
To ensure occupants meet | are met.
the terms and conditions

of approval.

Permits, Licences and Leasing of Business and Commercial

The granting of a lease, licence or permit formalises the use of council facilities by individuals such as
caravan parks, airstrips, Marinas and commercial organisations who are providing facilities or
services for public use that is consistent with the intent and purpose of the land.

The terms and conditions of a lease, licence or permit will ensure that property management of the
area is undertaken such that it is maintained in a safe and functional condition, and that the interest
of Council and the public are protected.

There are a number of leases, licences and permits issued to various parties over land included in this
Management Plan — details of these agreements are displayed in the Schedule, Item 12-13.

A lease, licence or permit enables Council to negotiate agreements with organisations and individuals
who occupy or manage Community Land. These agreements allow clear legal definition of the rights
and obligations that an organisation or individual has in regard to the land whilst ensuring public
access is maintained. From time to time leases, licences and permits will expire, require renewal
and/or renegotiation, and new leasing proposals considered.

Where the agreement is for a period exceeding five years, Council is required by the Local
Government Act, 1999 to consult with the community. However, exemptions of certain
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leases/licences over community land from consultation requirements when it is a term of the
lease/licence that there is to be no substantial change in the use of the land. Local Government
(General) Regulations 2013, Section 22, (1} (b).

Council will only grant a lease, licence or permit for use of Community Land under this Management
Plan if it is:

« Consistent with the current use and purpose of the land.

* Allow compatible business and community uses of the land.

* Encourage and maximise economic opportunities for community growth and development.
+  Acknowledged that all suitable insurances have been sighted by Council.
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CATEGORY 5 — CFS AND SES

PROPERTY DETAILS

« Community Land Register — Item 1-7

OWNERSHIP DETAILS

+ Community Land Register — ltem 8

PURPOSE FOR WHICH LAND IS HELD

Land owned or controlled by Council to be leased or licensed to the Minister for Emergeney-Paolice
Emergency Services and Correctional Services Serviees-for the purpose of providing emergency
services to the community.

REASON WHY MANAGEMENT PLAN IS REQUIRED

+ Lease/Licence
+ Act of Parliament or Trust

OBJECTIVES FOR THE MANAGEMENT OF THE LAND

*  Maintain the land primarily for providing emergency services to the community.
* Where appropriate, grant leases and grant or accept easements, and or rights of way over the
land.

POLICIES AND PROPOSALS FOR MANAGEMENT OF THE LAND

Ensure consistency with the objectives set out in the Yorke Peninsula Council’s corporate documents
and any other council by-law, plan or policy or government legislation where applicable. Including
but not limited to the following: including:
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- Strategic Management Plan
- _Indigenous Land Use Agreement (Yorke Peninsula and coastal waters)
- HUA-AgreementPlanning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016

—~Planning and Design CodePevelopmentPlan

——Parks & Gardens infrastructure Asset- Management Plan
- By law No. 2 Local Government Land

*  Or future Acts, or council by-law, plan or policy where the above has been updated or
superseded.

DEPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENT AND WATER-WATER-AND-NATURAL RESOURCES

+ Dedicated land may only be used for purposes consistent with that for which it was dedicated,
and no other purpose. A change of land use will require the resumption of the land and re-
dedication for a purpose consistent with the new use.

+ The granting of a lease/licence over dedicated land requires approval from the Minister if
native title has not been extinguished and the lease will cause any development (within the
meaning of the Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016). That the Council is
satisfied that the lease would not detract from any existing public use and enjoyment of the
land, would not prevent the land being used for the purpose for which it was dedicated and
would not otherwise be improper or undesirable.

* The Doctrine of Fixtures applies to dedicated land. Any buildings or other improvements
erected on the land determined to be fixtures will be the property of the Crown unless the
Minister has expressly stated in writing that the improvements shall be deemed to be severed
from the land.

* Easements required over dedicated land may only be granted by the Minister pursuant to the
Crown Land Management Act 2009.Craws-tands-Act 1929

+ The clearance of native vegetation (including grasslands) must not occur without the prior
approval of the relevant Minister and the Native Vegetation Council.

PERFORMANCE TARGETS

+ See Schedule
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PERFORMANCE MEASURES

See Schedule

ADOPTED BY COUNCIL: Date — per Council Resolution 209/2018-{8/08/2018}

MAYOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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PERFORMANCE TARGETS AND MEASURE

Services.

determined in
accordance with
Council policy.

agreements in place
and that
responsibilities and use
thereof is clearly
incorporated within
individual licence
agreements.

To ensure all tenants
meet the terms and
conditions of the
agreement.

Permits, Licences and Leasing of Land for Emergency Services

Management Issues Objectives, Policies and | Performance Targets | Performance Measures
Proposals
Land under lease/licence Provide leases/licences | To ensure all facilities Ensure terms of
to Minister for Emergency | which will be have current leases/licences are

adhered to through
conducting regular
inspections and/or
assessments in
accordance with Council
policy and maintenance
plans/schedules.

Periodical reviews of

agreements to ensure
terms and conditions

are met.

Provide leaseflicence to the Minister for Emergeney—ServicesPolice, Emergency Services and
Correctional Services for emergency service purposes for terms up to 21 years with 21 years right of
renewal.

The terms and conditions of a lease, licence or permit will ensure that property management of the
area is undertaken such that it is maintained in a safe and functional condition, and that the interest
of Council and the public are protected.

There are a number of leases, licences and permits issued to various parties over land included in this
Management Plan — details of these agreements are displayed in the Schedule, Item 12-13.

A lease, licence or permit enables Council to negotiate agreements with organisations and individuals
who occupy or manage Community Land. These agreements allow clear legal definition of the rights
and obligations that an organisation or individual has in regard to the land whilst ensuring public
access is maintained. From time to time leases, licences and permits will expire, require renewal
and/or renegotiation, and new leasing proposals considered.
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Where the agreement is for a period exceeding five years, council is required by the Local
Government Act, 1999 to consult with the community. However, exemptions of certain
leases/licences over community land from consultation requirements when it is a term of the
lease/licence that there is to be no substantial change in the use of the land. Local Government
(General) Regulations 2013, Section 22, (1) (b).

Council will only grant a lease, licence or permit for use of Community Land under this Management
Plan if it is:

+ Consistent with the current use and purpose of the land
*  Maintain the land primarily for providing emergency services.
+ Acknowledged that all suitable insurances have been sighted by Council.
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CATEGORY 1 - RESERVES

PROPERTY DETAILS

« Community Land Register — Iltem 1-7

OWNERSHIP DETAILS

« Community Land Register — Item 8

PURPOSE FOR WHICH LAND IS HELD

Conservation reserves primarily used to protect flora and fauna. Coastal reserves primarily used to
minimise harm to coastal areas. Water or Stone reserves primarily established to provide water and
stone resources for use now or in the future. Reserves to allow trails and access compatible with
conservation use but excluding any commercial or sports activities.

REASON WHY MANAGEMENT PLAN IS REQUIRED

* Land specifically modified for the benefit and enjoyment of the public

OBJECTIVES FOR THE MANAGEMENT OF THE LAND

* To retain land for use as a conservation reserve in order to protect flora and fauna.

* To retain land as a Coastal reserve to minimise harm to coastal areas and provide a buffer
zone between the dunes and sea.

+ To provide access to a bore for rural and remote locations for stock and fire fighting purposes.

+ To stockpile rubble for future road resurfacing.

* To allow trails and access compatible with conservation use.

+ Allow improvements consistent with the objectives established for this type of land use.

»  Strictly exclude any commercial, recreational or sports activities.

*  Where appropriate, grant leases and grant or accept easements, and or rights of way over the
land.
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POLICIES AND PROPOSALS FOR MANAGEMENT OF THE LAND

Ensure consistency with the objectives set out in the Yorke Peninsula Council’s corporate documents
including:

- Strategic Plan
- ILUA Agreement
- Development Plan

- Animal Management Plan
- Parks & Gardens Infrastructure Asset Management Plan
- By Law No. 2 Local Government Land
- By Law No. 5 Dog and Cats
« Any other council or government policies where applicable.

DEPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENT, WATER AND NATURAL RESOURCES

+ Dedicated land may only be used for purposes consistent with that for which it was dedicated,
and no other purpose. A change of land use will require the resumption of the land and re-
dedication for a purpose consistent with the new use.

* The granting of a lease/licence over dedicated land requires approval from the Minister if
native title has not been extinguished and the lease will cause any development (within the
meaning of the Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016). That the Council is
satisfied that the lease would not detract from any existing public use and enjoyment of the
land, would not prevent the land being used for the purpose for which it was dedicated and
would not otherwise be improper or undesirable.

* The Doctrine of Fixtures applies to dedicated land. Any buildings or other improvements
erected on the land determined to be fixtures will be the property of the Crown unless the
Minister has expressly stated in writing that the improvements shall be deemed to be severed
from the land.

+ Easements required over dedicated land may only be granted by the Minister pursuant to the
Crown Lands Act, 1929.

* The clearance of native vegetation (including grasslands) must not occur without the prior
approval of the relevant Minister and the Native Vegetation Council.

PERFORMANCE TARGETS

*  See Schedule
Page 2 of 4

Item 25.8- Attachment 2 Page 245



COUNCIL MEETING ATTACHMENTS 13 DECEMBER 2023

Capiic,

@
YORKE PENINSULA COUNCIL PR -
COMMUNITY LAND MANAGEMENT PLAN

PERFORMANCE MEASURES

*  See Schedule

ADOPTED BY COUNCIL: Date - per Council Resolution 209/2018 (8/08/2018)

MAYOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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PERFORMANCE TARGETS AND MEASURE

Schedule

Management Issues

Landscape Character for
Conservation Area

Objectives, Policies and
Proposals

Reflect the character of
adjoining conservation
areas.

Performance Targets

Maintain and manage
according to biodiversity
principles and
expectations.

Performance Measures

Clear of illegal dumping
including building
material, garden waste
and general household
waste.

Fenced.

Pest plant species
controlled within
budgetary constraints.

Management of access
points including
prevention of
unauthorised access
points, within budgetary
constraints.

Fire Prevention and Fuel
Reduction

Such measures as may
be identified and
specified by Council’s
Fire Prevention Officer
from time to time.

Implement identified
measures as needed.

Regular inspections for
fire prevention and fuel
reduction and
rectification of any
issues identified.

Bike/Walking Trails
(where applicable)

To maintain accessibility
and safety of reserves
whilst minimising
degradation of
biodiversity.

Increase the emphasis
on design for improved
physical access, safety
and biodiversity
protection.

Carry out periodic
audits.
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CATEGORY 2 — RECREATIONAL AND SPORTING

PROPERTY DETAILS

* See Schedule - Item 1-7

OWNERSHIP DETAILS

+ See Schedule = Item 8

PURPOSE FOR WHICH LAND IS HELD

Recreation, Sports Grounds and Community Facilities help to unite and strengthen communities by
providing safe and functional facilities.

Many of the facilities are for organised sports managed by clubs and organisations under lease or
licence. Venues are also popular for informal recreation, many have playgrounds and provide a
variety of experiences for people of all ages.

Facilities should be protected and improved where appropriate, for current and future generations.

REASON WHY MANAGEMENT PLAN IS REQUIRED

+ Land specifically modified for the benefit and enjoyment of the public
+  Lease/Licence
+  Act of Parliament or Trust

OBJECTIVES FOR THE MANAGEMENT OF THE LAND

* Promote recreational pursuits with organised formal and informal sporting and non-sporting
activities.

* To assist in meeting the sporting needs of the community and visitors.

* Foster and develop proactive participation by the local community.
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* Identify potential hazards in a timely manner to minimise Council exposure to complaints,
compensation claims and litigation.

»  Where appropriate, grant leases and grant or accept easements, and or rights of way over the
land.

POLICIES AND PROPOSALS FOR MANAGEMENT OF THE LAND

Ensure consistency with the objectives set out in the Yorke Peninsula Council’s corporate documents
including:

- Strategic Plan
- ILUA Agreement
- Development Plan
- Animal Management Plan
- Parks & Gardens Infrastructure Asset Management Plan
- By lLaw No. 2 Local Government Land
- By law No. 5 Dog and Cats
* Any other council or government policies where applicable.

DEPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENT, WATER AND NATURAL RESOURCES

* Dedicated land may only be used for purposes consistent with that for which it was dedicated,
and no other purpose. A change of land use will require the resumption of the land and re-
dedication for a purpose consistent with the new use.

* The granting of a lease/licence over dedicated land requires approval from the Minister if
native title has not been extinguished and the lease will cause any development (within the
meaning of the Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016). That the Council is
satisfied that the lease would not detract from any existing public use and enjoyment of the
land, would not prevent the land being used for the purpose for which it was dedicated and
would not otherwise be improper or undesirable.

* The Doctrine of Fixtures applies to dedicated land. Any buildings or other improvements
erected on the land determined to be fixtures will be the property of the Crown unless the
Minister has expressly stated in writing that the improvements shall be deemed to be severed
from the land.

* Easements required over dedicated land may only be granted by the Minister pursuant to the
Crown Lands Act, 1929.

* The clearance of native vegetation (including grasslands) must not occur without the prior
approval of the relevant Minister and the Native Vegetation Council.
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PERFORMANCE TARGETS

* See Schedule

PERFORMANCE MEASURES

+  See Schedule

ADOPTED BY COUNCIL: Date - per Council Resolution 209/2018 (8/08/2018)

MAYOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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PERFORMANCE TARGETS AND MEASURE

Schedule
Management Issues Objectives, Performance Performance
Policies and Targets Measures
Proposals

Clubrooms/Community To provide To ensure all Ensure terms of
Buildings/Storage/Kiosk/Ovals/Courts/Golf | buildings and facilities have leases/licences are
Course/Swimming Pool/Sporting facilities for current adhered to
Infrastructure/Fencing/Lighting/Bowling sporting and agreements in through
Greens/Car park/Drive-ways/Footpaths community place and that conducting regular

organisation use.
The buildings and
facilities are to be
leased/licensed to
an appropriate
incorporated body
and must be
available for use
by patrons and
visitors of the

responsibilities
and use thereof is
clearly
incorporated
within individual
licence
agreements.

To ensure all
tenants meet the

inspections and/or
assessments in
accordance with
Council policy and
maintenance
plans/schedules.

Periodical reviews
of agreements to
ensure terms and

club, as deemed terms and conditions are met,
appropriate by the | conditions of the

lessee/licensee. agreement.

Leases/Licences

will be

determined in

accordance with

Council policy.

Fauna Park To provide a fauna | To ensure Regular inspections
park for animals are with animal health
educational adequately assessed and
purposes and the | housed and the maintenance
enjoyment of the | parkis issues rectified.
public. maintained to an

acceptable
standard.
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Permits, Licences and Leasing of Recreational and Sporting Facilities

The granting of a lease, licence or permit formalises the use of council facilities by groups such as
sporting clubs, community groups, commercial organisations or individuals who are providing
facilities or services for public use that is consistent with the intent and purpose of the land.

The terms and conditions of a lease, licence or permit will ensure that property management of the
area is undertaken such that it is maintained in a safe and functional condition, and that the interest
of Council and the public are protected.

There are a number of leases, licences and permits issued to various parties over land included in this
Management Plan — details of these agreements are displayed in the Schedule, Item 12-13,

A lease, licence or permit enables Council to negotiate agreements with organisations and individuals
who occupy or manage Community Land. These agreements allow clear legal definition of the rights
and obligations that an organisation or individual has in regard to the land whilst ensuring public
access is maintained. From time to time leases, licences and permits will expire, require renewal
and/or renegotiation, and new leasing proposals considered.

Where the agreement is for a period exceeding five years, Council is required by the Local
Government Act, 1999 to consult with the community. However, exemptions of certain
leases/licences over community land from consultation requirements when it is a term of the
lease/licence that there is to be no substantial change in the use of the land. Local Government
(General) Regulations 2013, Section 22, (1) (b).

Council will only grant a lease, licence or permit for use of Community Land under this Management
Plan if it is:

+ Consistent with the current use and purpose of the land
* For activities appropriate to the current and future needs of the community
+  Acknowledged that all suitable insurances have been sighted by Council.
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CATEGORY 3 — PUBLIC AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES

PROPERTY DETAILS

« Community Land Register — Iltem 1-7

OWNERSHIP DETAILS

* Community Land Register — Item 8

PURPOSE FOR WHICH LAND IS HELD

A Public and Community facility is defined as a piece of land or building set aside to encourage,
promote and facilitate recreational, cultural, social, historical and educational pastimes and activities,
and to provide for passive recreational activities.

Council community facilities may include:

Conservation areas Passive recreation
Public toilets Playgrounds
Kindergartens/childcare facilities Cemeteries

Public halls Walkways

Bike and Walking Trails

Facilities should be protected and improved where appropriate, for current and future generations.

REASON WHY MANAGEMENT PLAN IS REQUIRED

* Land specifically modified for the benefit and enjoyment of the public
* Lease/Licence
* Act of Parliament or Trust
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OBJECTIVES FOR THE MANAGEMENT OF THE LAND

* To maintain the land for mixed uses including conservation, active and passive recreation,
educational facilities and broad community uses.

* To improve the maintenance of public infrastructure and facilities and to preserve local
heritage and places of significance.

* Toincrease the use, enjoyment and accessibility and safety of community land.

*  Where appropriate, grant leases and grant or accept easements, and or rights of way over the
land.

POLICIES AND PROPOSALS FOR MANAGEMENT OF THE LAND

Ensure consistency with the objectives set out in the Yorke Peninsula Council’s corporate documents
including:

- Strategic Plan
- ILUA Agreement
- Development Plan
- Animal Management Plan
- Parks & Gardens Infrastructure Asset Management Plan
- By Law No. 2 Local Government Land
- By law No. 5 Dog and Cats
* Any other council or government policies where applicable.

DEPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENT, WATER AND NATURAL RESOURCES

* Dedicated land may only be used for purposes consistent with that for which it was dedicated,
and no other purpose. A change of land use will require the resumption of the land and re-
dedication for a purpose consistent with the new use.

* The granting of a lease/licence over dedicated land requires approval from the Minister if
native title has not been extinguished and the lease will cause any development (within the
meaning of the Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016). That the Council is
satisfied that the lease would not detract from any existing public use and enjoyment of the
land, would not prevent the land being used for the purpose for which it was dedicated and
would not otherwise be improper or undesirable.

* The Doctrine of Fixtures applies to dedicated land. Any buildings or other improvements
erected on the land determined to be fixtures will be the property of the Crown unless the
Minister has expressly stated in writing that the improvements shall be deemed to be severed
from the land.
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* Easements required over dedicated land may only be granted by the Minister pursuant to the
Crown Lands Act, 1929.
The clearance of native vegetation (including grasslands) must not occur without the prior
approval of the relevant Minister and the Native Vegetation Council.

PERFORMANCE TARGETS

See Schedule

PERFORMANCE MEASURES

* See Schedule

ADOPTED BY COUNCIL: Date — per Council Resolution 209/2018 (8/08/2018)

MAYOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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PERFORMANCE TARGETS AND MEASURE

Schedule
Management Issues Objectives, Policies and Performance Targets | Performance Measures
Proposals
Car park/drive- Carparks/drive- To ensure Regular inspections and

ways/footpaths/stairways

ways/footpaths/stairways
are provided for use by
the public where
required,

infrastructure is in
reasonable condition,
can be utilised by the
public and is safe.

maintenance in
conjunction with the
inspection process
schedule,

maintained cemeteries to
meet the needs of the
community and provide
burial/internment rights
for the deceased.

of appropriate
burial/internment
rights for the
deceased. To ensure
all areas of the
cemetery are
maintained to an
acceptable standard.

To ensure all fencing
is safe and in
reasonable condition.
To ensure
infrastructure and
improvements are in
reasonable condition
and suitable for use
by the community.

Public Toilets To provide public toilet To ensure public Regular inspection by
facilities as deemed toilets are serviced Council staff as part of
necessary by Council for and maintained to a an ongoing
use by the community. satisfactory condition. | maintenance schedule

and to identify any
issues for rectification.

Cemeteries To provide well To facilitate granting | Periodic inspections of

fencing, lawned and
garden areas,
leased/licensed areas,
infrastructure and
improvements and
implementation of
maintenance measures
as appropriate.

Residential Tenancies

To provide residential
housing as deemed
appropriate by Council.

To negotiate
adequate
lease/licences to
personsforganisations
for use of the
property and
improvements.

To ensure
lessees/licensees
meet the terms and

Periodical reviews of
agreement
arrangements and
responsibilities to
ensure terms and
conditions are satisfied.
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conditions of the

agreement.
Drainage To provide drainage To ensure drainage Regular inspections of
Reserves systems in appropriate systems are the drainage systems
locations for redirection unobstructed, act as and rectification of any
of stormwater. part of Council’s issues identified.

drainage network
systems and that they
do not pose a safety
hazard to members of

the public.

Easements to Service To grant easements To ensure service Inspection of

Authorities required by service authorities infrastructure location
authorities for above or infrastructure for to ensure compliance
below ground community needs is with easement
infrastructure. located and installed | requirements.

with minimal impact
on land use,

Campgrounds To provide maintained To ensure Regular inspection by
campgrounds that meet campgrounds are Council staff as part of
the needs of the maintained to a an ongoing
community and visitors. satisfactory condition. | maintenance schedule

and to identify any
issues for rectification.

Memorial To approve memorial To facilitate granting | Inspection of memaorial

walls/monuments/plaques | infrastructure as of appropriate infrastructure to ensure
requested by community | memaorials for the compliance with Council
members. deceased. policy.

Airstrips To provide maintained To ensure airstrips Regular inspection and
airstrips that service the are unobstructed, maintenance program.
community. safe and meet all

reguirements,
Landscape Character for Reflect the character of Maintain and manage | Clear of illegal dumping

Conservation Area adjoining conservation according to including building
areas. biodiversity principles | material, garden waste
and expectations. and general household
waste
Fenced

Pest plant species
controlled within
budgetary constraints
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Management of access
points including
prevention of
unauthorised access
points

Fire Prevention and Fuel
Reduction

Such measures as may be
identified and specified
by Council's Fire
Prevention Officer from
time to time

Implement identified
measures as needed

Regular inspections for
fire prevention and fuel
reduction and
rectification of any
issues identified

Bike/Walking Trails (where
applicable)

To maintain accessibility
and safety of reserves

Increase the
emphasis on design

Carry out periodic
audits

for improved physical
access, safety and
biodiversity
protection

whilst minimising
degradation of
biodiversity

Permits, Licences and Leasing of Public and Community Facilities

The granting of a lease, licence or permit formalises the use of council facilities by groups such as
community groups, commercial organisations or individuals who are providing facilities or services
for public use that is consistent with the intent and purpose of the land.

The terms and conditions of a lease, licence or permit will ensure that property management of the
area is undertaken such that it is maintained in a safe and functional condition, and that the interest
of Council and the public are protected.

There are a number of leases, licences and permits issued to various parties over land included in this
Management Plan — details of these agreements are displayed in the Schedule, Item 12-13,

A lease, licence or permit enables Council to negotiate agreements with organisations and individuals
who occupy or manage Community Land. These agreements allow clear legal definition of the rights
and obligations that an organisation or individual has in regard to the land whilst ensuring public
access is maintained. From time to time leases, licences and permits will expire, require renewal
and/or renegotiation, and new leasing proposals considered.

Where the agreement is for a period exceeding five years, Council is required by the Local
Government Act, 1999 to consult with the community. However, exemptions of certain
leases/licences over community land from consultation requirements when it is a term of the
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lease/licence that there is to be no substantial change in the use of the land. Local Government
(General) Regulations 2013, Section 22, (1) (b).

Council will only grant a lease, licence or permit for use of Community Land under this Management
Plan if it is:

* Consistent with the current use and purpose of the land
* For activities appropriate to the current and future needs of the community
*  Acknowledged that all suitable insurances have been sighted by Council.
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CATEGORY 4 — BUSINESS AND COMMERCIAL

PROPERTY DETAILS

Community Land Register — Item 1-7

OWNERSHIP DETAILS

* Community Land Register — Item 8

PURPOSE FOR WHICH LAND IS HELD

The properties listed in the schedule have been developed and/or modified to include one or more
of the following: caravan park, airstrip, commercial premises, marinas, waste depots, weighbridges
etc.

REASON WHY MANAGEMENT PLAN IS REQUIRED

+ Land specifically modified for the benefit and enjoyment of the public
+ LeasefLicence
Act of Parliament or Trust

OBJECTIVES FOR THE MANAGEMENT OF THE LAND

* To provide a financial return to Council

* Optimise opportunities for business and industry

*+  Where appropriate, grant leases and grant or accept easements, and or rights of way over the
land

POLICIES AND PROPOSALS FOR MANAGEMENT OF THE LAND

Ensure consistency with the objectives set out in the Yorke Peninsula Council’s corporate documents
including:
Pagelof5
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- Strategic Plan
- ILUA Agreement
- Development Plan
- Animal Management Plan
- Parks & Gardens Infrastructure Asset Management Plan
- By Llaw No. 2 Local Government Land
* Any other council or government policies where applicable.

DEPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENT, WATER AND NATURAL RESOURCES

» Dedicated land may only be used for purposes consistent with that for which it was dedicated,
and no other purpose. A change of land use will require the resumption of the land and re-
dedication for a purpose consistent with the new use.

+ The granting of a lease/licence over dedicated land requires approval from the Minister if
native title has not been extinguished and the lease will cause any development (within the
meaning of the Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016). That the Council is
satisfied that the lease would not detract from any existing public use and enjoyment of the
land, would not prevent the land being used for the purpose for which it was dedicated and
would not otherwise be improper or undesirable.

* The Doctrine of Fixtures applies to dedicated land. Any buildings or other improvements
erected on the land determined to be fixtures will be the property of the Crown unless the
Minister has expressly stated in writing that the improvements shall be deemed to be severed
from the land.

* Easements required over dedicated land may only be granted by the Minister pursuant to the
Crown Lands Act, 1929,

* The clearance of native vegetation (including grasslands) must not occur without the prior
approval of the relevant Minister and the Native Vegetation Council.

PERFORMANCE TARGETS

+ See Schedule

PERFORMANCE MEASURES

» See Schedule
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ADOPTED BY COUNCIL: Date — per Council Resolution 209/2018 (8/08/2018)

MAYOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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PERFORMANCE TARGETS AND MEASURE

Schedule
Management Issues Objectives, Policies and Performance Targets Performance
Proposals Measures
Business and To approve To ensure Ensure conditions of

Commercial Use

business/commercial use
of community land with
such conditions as may be
deemed appropriate by

business/commercial use
of community land is not
in conflict with other users
and that business activities

approval are adhered
to through regular
inspections.

Periodical review of
agreements to ensure
terms and conditions
are met.

are appropriately
controlled.

Council.

To ensure occupants meet
the terms and conditions
of approval.

Permits, Licences and Leasing of Business and Commercial

The granting of a lease, licence or permit formalises the use of council facilities by individuals such as
caravan parks, airstrips, Marinas and commercial organisations who are providing facilities or
services for public use that is consistent with the intent and purpose of the land.

The terms and conditions of a lease, licence or permit will ensure that property management of the
area is undertaken such that it is maintained in a safe and functional condition, and that the interest
of Council and the public are protected.

There are a number of leases, licences and permits issued to various parties over land included in this
Management Plan — details of these agreements are displayed in the Schedule, Item 12-13.

A lease, licence or permit enables Council to negotiate agreements with organisations and individuals
who occupy or manage Community Land. These agreements allow clear legal definition of the rights
and obligations that an organisation or individual has in regard to the land whilst ensuring public
access is maintained. From time to time leases, licences and permits will expire, require renewal
and/or renegotiation, and new leasing proposals considered.

Where the agreement is for a period exceeding five years, Council is required by the Local
Government Act, 1999 to consult with the community. However, exemptions of certain
leases/licences over community land from consultation requirements when it is a term of the
lease/licence that there is to be no substantial change in the use of the land. Local Government
(General) Regulations 2013, Section 22, (1) (b).
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Council will only grant a lease, licence or permit for use of Community Land under this Management
Plan if it is:

* Consistent with the current use and purpose of the land.
* Allow compatible business and community uses of the land.

* Encourage and maximise economic opportunities for community growth and development.
*  Acknowledged that all suitable insurances have been sighted by Council.
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CATEGORY 5 — CFS AND SES

PROPERTY DETAILS

« Community Land Register — Iltem 1-7

OWNERSHIP DETAILS

* Community Land Register — Item 8

PURPOSE FOR WHICH LAND IS HELD

Land owned or controlled by Council to be leased or licensed to the Minister for Emergency
Services for the purpose of providing emergency services to the community.

REASON WHY MANAGEMENT PLAN IS REQUIRED

+ Lease/Licence
+ Act of Parliament or Trust

OBJECTIVES FOR THE MANAGEMENT OF THE LAND

*  Maintain the land primarily for providing emergency services to the community.
*  Where appropriate, grant leases and grant or accept easements, and or rights of way over the
land.

POLICIES AND PROPOSALS FOR MANAGEMENT OF THE LAND

Ensure consistency with the objectives set out in the Yorke Peninsula Council’s corporate documents
including:

- Strategic Plan
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- ILUA Agreement
- Development Plan
- Parks & Gardens Infrastructure Asset Management Plan
- By Llaw No. 2 Local Government Land
* Any other council or government policies where applicable.

DEPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENT, WATER AND NATURAL RESOURCES

* Dedicated land may only be used for purposes consistent with that for which it was dedicated,
and no other purpose. A change of land use will require the resumption of the land and re-
dedication for a purpose consistent with the new use.

+  The granting of a lease/licence over dedicated land requires approval from the Minister if
native title has not been extinguished and the lease will cause any development (within the
meaning of the Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016). That the Council is
satisfied that the lease would not detract from any existing public use and enjoyment of the
land, would not prevent the land being used for the purpose for which it was dedicated and
would not otherwise be improper or undesirable.

* The Doctrine of Fixtures applies to dedicated land. Any buildings or other improvements
erected on the land determined to be fixtures will be the property of the Crown unless the
Minister has expressly stated in writing that the improvements shall be deemed to be severed
from the land.

* Easements required over dedicated land may only be granted by the Minister pursuant to the
Crown Lands Act, 1929,

* The clearance of native vegetation (including grasslands) must not occur without the prior
approval of the relevant Minister and the Native Vegetation Council.

PERFORMANCE TARGETS

+ See Schedule

PERFORMANCE MEASURES

* See Schedule
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PERFORMANCE TARGETS AND MEASURE

Management Issues

Land under lease/licence
to Minister for Emergency
Services.

Objectives, Policies and
Proposals

Provide leases/licences
which will be
determined in
accordance with
Council policy.

Performance Targets

To ensure all facilities
have current
agreements in place
and that
respansibilities and use
thereof is clearly
incorporated within
individual licence
agreements.

To ensure all tenants

Performance Measures |

Ensure terms of
leases/licences are
adhered to through
conducting regular
inspections and/or
assessments in
accordance with Council
policy and maintenance
plans/schedules.

Periodical reviews of

meet the terms and
conditions of the
agreement.

agreements to ensure
terms and conditions
are met.

Permits, Licences and Leasing of Land for Emergency Services

Provide lease/licence to the Minister for Emergency Services for emergency service purposes for
terms up to 21 years with 21 years right of renewal.

The terms and conditions of a lease, licence or permit will ensure that property management of the
area is undertaken such that it is maintained in a safe and functional condition, and that the interest
of Council and the public are protected.

There are a number of leases, licences and permits issued to various parties over land included in this
Management Plan = details of these agreements are displayed in the Schedule, Item 12-13.

A lease, licence or permit enables Council to negotiate agreements with organisations and individuals
who occupy or manage Community Land. These agreements allow clear legal definition of the rights
and obligations that an organisation or individual has in regard to the land whilst ensuring public
access is maintained. From time to time leases, licences and permits will expire, require renewal
and/or renegatiation, and new leasing proposals considered.

Where the agreement is for a period exceeding five years, council is required by the Local
Government Act, 1999 to consult with the community. However, exemptions of certain
leases/licences over community land from consultation requirements when it is a term of the
leaseflicence that there is to be no substantial change in the use of the land. Local Government
(General) Regulations 2013, Section 22, (1) (b).
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Council will only grant a lease, licence or permit for use of Community Land under this Management
Plan if it is:

Consistent with the current use and purpose of the land
Maintain the land primarily for providing emergency services.
Acknowledged that all suitable insurances have been sighted by Council.
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